A

A 4

Transportation Transportation
Disadvantaged Disadvantaged

NASSAU COUNTY
TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED

LocAL COORDINATING BOARD (LCB) QUARTERLY MEETING
MEETING AGENDA

Nassau County Board of County Commissioner’s Conference Room
96135 Nassau Place, Yulee, FL 32097
Teams Meeting ID: 276 516 085 477 4
Password: 4k4Xm24T

Thursday, September 19, 2025, at 1:00 p.m.
*Denotes Required Action Item

Welcome, Call to Order, Roll Call/Quorum Review — Chair Gray
Additions, Deletions, and Changes to the Agenda — Chair Gray
Approval of May 15, 2025, Meeting Minutes — Chair Gray* (pg.2-7)
LCB Membership (pg.8)
Northeast Florida Regional Council Update — Ms. Jones
a. TD 101 (pg.9-15)
b. TDSP — updated with demographic information (pg.16-67)
c. United Way 211 — Ride United Transportation (pg.68)
Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) System Update — Ms. Johnson
a. Annual Operation Report™*
b. 2025-2026 Rate Model* (pg.69-83)
c. CTC Quarterly Update (pg.84)
d. Grants Update* (Approval if required)
Old Business
New Business

Public Comment — LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES PER SPEAKER

10. Member and Department Reports

11.

Adjournment — Chair Gray

Next LCB Meeting: November 20, 2025, at 1:00 p.m.
Nassau County Commission Chambers, 96135 Nassau Place, Yulee FL. 32097



Florida Commission for the

Nassau County Transportation Disadvantaged

{ Local Coordinating Board Quarterly Meeting
Thursday, May 15, 2025

Transportation

Disadvantaged

Northeast Florida Regional Council
Elizabeth Payne, AICP
Chief Executive Officer

Nassau County Commission
Hon. Jeff Gray, Chair

State of Florida Transportation
Disadvantaged Commission
Monica Russell, Chair

Meeting Minutes
*Denotes Required Action Item

1. Welcome, Call to Order, Roll Call/Quorum Review
A quarterly meeting of the Nassau County Transportation Disadvantaged (TD) Local Coordinating
Board (LCB) was held in person and virtually via Zoom on Thursday, May 15, 2025. Vice Chair, Donna
Johnson called the meeting to order at 1:01 pm with the following members present:

Representing: Voting Member:

FDOT Janell Damato (Virtual)
Department of Children and Families Donna Johnson (In-person)
Public Education Megan Johnson (In-person)

Dept. of Education (Voc. Rehab.)

Rochelle Price (Virtual)

Veterans Services

Bob Sullivan (Virtual)

Citizen Advocate/Non-User

Jennifer Paulk (In-person)

Dept. of Elder Affairs

Janet Dickinson (Virtual)

Dept. of Health Care Admin.

Reeda Harris (Virtual)

Agency for Persons with Disabilities

Sheryl Stanford (Virtual)

Regional Workforce Dev. Board

Sean Rush (In-person)

Members Not Present

Representing: Voting Member:
Elected Official/Chair Jeff Gray
Children at Risk Patricia Langford
Elderly Van Dyke Walker
Local Medical Community Kernice Taylor

Staff Community Transportation Coordinator Present

Mia Johnson, Ervin Flynn (In-Person)

Planning Agency Staff Present

Cassidy Taylor and Summer Jones (In-Person)




Guests
Marshall Eyerman, Krista Long, Paula Crisp (In-Person)
JB Warnock (Virtual)

After a roll call took place, a quorum was confirmed.

. Additions, Deletions, and Changes to the Agenda

There were no changes to the agenda.

. Approval of January 16, 2025, Meeting and Public Hearing Minutes*

There was a motion to approve the January 16, 2025, meeting and public hearing minutes by Ms. Paulk
and a second by Mr. Rush. The January 16, 2025, meeting and public hearing minutes were approved
unanimously.

. LCB Membership

LCB Membership was considered next. Ms. Jones went over the LCB membership. Ms. Jones stated
Ms. Baptista has retired and is no longer serving on the board. Ms. Jones will reach out to her alternate.

. Grievance Procedure Review*

Grievance Procedures are established for grievances to be brought before the Grievance Subcommittee.
The Grievance Procedures are used when a passenger, system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, and/or
community service provider/subcontractor has a concern, complaint, or problem relative to
transportation services.

There were no suggested changes. Ms. Stanford motioned to approve the grievance procedure with a
second from Mr. Rush. The grievance procedure passed unanimously.

. Annual Review of Bylaws*

Ms. Jones conducted an Annual Review of the Bylaws. There were no suggested changes. Ms.
Stanford motioned to approve the Bylaws with a second from Ms. Harris. The Annual review of the
Bylaws was approved unanimously.

. Northeast Florida Regional Council Update

Ms. Jones gave an update for the Northeast Florida Regional Council.

a) TDSP Annual Review (Roll Call Vote)*
Ms. Jones stated she had a question regarding how the name in the TDSP should appear since
Jacksonville Transportation Authority is the CTC, but they are still operating under the name
Nassau Transit. Ms. Mia Johnson stated it should read Nassau Transit powered by JTA.

Ms. Jones also stated there are some formatting issues and images that need to be refined so they
show clearer.

Ms. Jones conducted a roll-call vote. The TDSP annual review was approved unanimously.

3



b) Proposed LCB Meeting Schedule*
1:00 pm on the 3rd Thursday Quarterly: 9/18/25, 11/20/25, 2/19/26, 5/21/26, 9/17/26
Proposed LCB Annual Hearing 2/19/26

Ms. Paulk motioned to approve the schedule. Mr. Rush seconded the motion. The meeting
schedule passed unanimously.

c¢) CTC Evaluation*
Ms. Jones reviewed the results of this year’s CTC evaluation. There were no reported findings.

Ms. Paulk motioned to approve the annual evaluation. Ms. Stanford seconded the motion. The
annual evaluation passed unanimously.

d) Virtual Meeting Option — Zoom to Teams

Ms. Jones stated this will be the last meeting that Zoom will be utilized. Going forward, Microsoft
Teams will be utilized.

8. Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) System Update
a) CTC Quarterly Update:

Ms. Johnson reviewed the Quarterly report:

e In February, there was a total of 1,902 trips. In March, there was a total of 1,941 trips. In
April there was a total of 2,100 trips.
¢ On-time performance continues to increase as the months progresses. Ms. Johnson stated

service has tremendously improved once they figured out the logistics and what really
needed to be done.

b) Grants Update*
There are no grant updates.

9. Old Business
There was no old business

10. New Business
There was no new business.

11. Public Comment

Krista Long, who represents the low vision community members in Nassau County, was present. She
explained why transportation is so vital to those community members. Since the transition from Nassau
County Council on Aging to Jacksonville Transportation Authority, service has drastically changed.
Most appointments are now geared towards life sustaining appointments. Ms. Long emphasized the
importance of transportation to social activities, shopping, and other trips that are examples of access
needs. Paula Crisp, one of the low vision community members, expressed how vital transportation is
for her and how it has helped her achieve independence.

4



12. Member and Department Report.
Jennifer Paulk — Citizen advocate/non-user- Ms. Paulk is a representative from The ARC Nassau. She
expressed the need for more trips alongside medical and life sustaining trips.

13. Adjournment

There being no further discussion, Vice Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 1:27 p.m. The next
LCB meeting will take place on September 18, 2025, at 1:00 p.m. in the Nassau County Board of
County Commissioners Meeting Room.



ATTENDANCE RECORD
NASSAU COUNTY
LOCAL COORDINATING BOARD

Position Name/Alt. 5/15/25 1/16/25 | 11/21/24 | 9/19/24
1. Chairperson Jeff Gray a P P P
2. Dept. of Transportation Janell Damato / ALT P P P P
3. Dept. Of Children and Families Donna Johnson/ ALT P P P P
4. Public Education Brad Underhill P a a a
5. Vocational Rehab. (Dept. Ed.) Rochelle Price P P a P
6. Veteran Services Bob Sullivan P a a a
7. Econo. Disadvan (Comm. Action) Vacant - - - -
8. Elderly Van Dyke Walker a a a a
9. Disabled Vacant - - - -
10. Citizen Advocate/User Vacant ) ) ) )
11. Citizen Advocate /Non User Jennifer Paulk/Vacant P P - -
12. Children at Risk Patricia Langford a a a a
13. Dept. Of Elder Affairs Janet Dickinson/Neil-Ambrus P P P
14. Private For Profit Transportation Vacant - - - -
15. Agency for Health Care Adm. Reeda Harris / ALT P P P P
16. Agency for Persons w/Disabilities Sheryl Dick-Stanford / ALT P P P P
17, Regional Workforce Dev. Brd. Sean Rush / ALT P a a a
18. Local Medical Community Barb-Baptista/Kenice Taylor a P P P

VACANCIES

Economically Disadvantaged
Disabled

Citizen Advocate/User

Private For Profit Transportation




PLEASE SIGN IN!

Florido Commizsion for the.
———

9/ 4

Transportation
Disadvantaged

TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED

COMMISSION FOR THE

Date:
Time:

May 15, 2025
1:00 p.m.

Nassau County Commission Chambers, 96135 Nassau Place, Yulee FL 32097

Name Address Phone E-Mail
Siummer Jones NETKC Soeseneric g
Casady Taylor \ekve |
/\%M réer Pavlle 30051 damiton St, \/L//ee o0-5/9-1170 j{ﬂni%‘crﬁaa//c@%%%%w or) |
VV\CW'\ Tohnson | Dublic  Cdumfion 904225012 TTOWI,\ML-,, B ppssers

Fl.us
Col*

u) Q.
Cc ™

_6__QAQ QUSL\. Q“fctertgwmce lef’L 01 Q-565-0500 | 5ush(@ Cartee L Soukiewed !,
' Donnn Tohnseo D 904-251-5495 TD00na.. J shnsen © myf) P
S Lo,

Mig- bhm% JTA

il TH AN JTA

Moyshall Ff ormani _

Nassar ConT/

;DG\-U&O\ Cris

Page 2



Voting/ Non- Grievance Evaluation
>alutatior First Name Last Name Organization Representing Voting Committee Committee Comment
NASSAU COUNTY
Hon. Jeff Gray Nassau Co Board of County Commissioners|Elected Official Voting Chair
Ms. Janell Damato FDOT, District 2 FDOT Voting
Ms. Chris Nalsen FDOT, District 2 FDOT Alternate
Ms. Angela Gregory FDOT, District 2 FDOT Alternate
Ms. Heather Fish FDOT, District 2 FDOT Alternate
Ms. Donna Johnson Dept. of Children and Families DCFC Voting Feb-26 Vice Chair
Ms. Christina Gillis Dept. of Children and Families DCFS Alternate
Mr. Brad Underhill Nassau County School District Public Education Voting
Ms. Rochelle Price Vocational Rehabilitation Dept. of Education Voting
Mr. Bob Sullivan Nassau County Veterans’ Services Veterans Voting
VACANT Economically Disadvantaged VACANT
Mr. Van Dyke Walker Elderly Voting
VACANT Disabled VACANT
VACANT Citizen Advocate/User VACANT
Ms. Jennifer Paulk Citizen Advocate/Non-User Voting Feb-26
Ms. Patricia Langford Nassau County School Board Children at Risk Voting
Ms. Janet Dickinson NE Florida Area Agency on Aging Elder Affairs Voting Feb-26
VACANT Private for Profit Transportation VACANT
Ms. Reeda Harris Agency for Health Care Administration AHCA / Medicaid Voting
Ms. Pamela Hagley Agency for Health Care Administration AHCA / Medicaid Alternate
Ms. Sheryl Stanford Agency for Persons with Disabilities Agency for Persons with Disabilities Voting
Ms. Diana Burgos-Garcia |Agency for Persons with Disabilities Agency for Persons with Disabilities Alternate
Ms. Lou Anne Hasty CareerSource Northeast Florida Workforce Development Voting
Mr. Jerry Box, Jr. CareerSource Northeast Florida Workforce Development Alternate
Ms. Melissa Terbrueggen |CareerSource Northeast Florida Workforce Development Interested Party
Ms. Cara Gluck Nassau County Health Department Medical Community Voting
Ms. Mia Johnson Jacksonville Transportation Authority CTC/JTA Non-Voting Connexion Manager
Ms. Angela Brown Jacksonville Transportation Authority
Mr. Taco Pope Nassau County BOCC Interested Party
Mr. Marshall Eyerman Nassau County BOCC Interested Party
Mr. Glenn Akramoff Fernandina Beach Interested Party
Ms. Sabrina Robertson Nassau County Commissioners Office Include in emails
Ms. Susan Gilbert Nassau County Attorney's Office Include in emails (Sabrina Robertson and Susan Gilbert are contacts for the meeting room

Corey Poore Nassau County BOCC IT Dept
Mikaela Sullivan (msullivan@nassaucountyfl.com) or Amy Grissinger reserves room (agrissinger@nassaucountyfl.com)




Quarter One

Administrative Items

<Annual Operations Report (AOR):
Requires CTD approval prior to LCB
approval)

Annual Expenditure Report: drafted with
information from AER. not subject to LCB
review/approval

+2025-2026 Rate Model: requires approval
from CTD prior to LCB approval
Standing Items
*NEFRC Report
-Grants Update
*CTC Report
Service Development/Local Issues

OTUD) THO
*Update demographic info for new TDSP
JTA)
+United Way 211 Transportation (possible
speaker and discussion on collaboration)

a. TD 101

Quarter Two

Administrative Items

*Annual Public Hearing (see Public Hearing
folders)

*Election of LCB Vice Chair

*Election of Grievance Committee

*Election of CTC Evaluation Committee
*Annual Operations Report (AOR); <If not

Quarter Three

Administrative Items

*Annual review of LCB by-laws, subject to
LCB amendment and/or approval

*Annual TDSP review, subject to LCB
amendment and/or approval (Roll Call Vote)

*Selection of time and date for CTC Evaluation

(March — April)

approved in Q1> Requires CTD approval prior*’LCB review/approval of members, final

to LCB approval)

«Annual Grievance Procedures Review:;
Requires LCB approval

Standing Items

* NEFRC Update

*Grants Update

*CTC Report

Service Development/Local Issues
*TD 101

membership review/approval subject to
NEFRC Board of Directors action before
submission to CTD

Standing Items

* NEFRC Report

*Grants Update

*CTC Report

Service Development/Local Issues

*TD 101

Administrative Items

*Review of CTC Evaluation, requires
LCB approval

*Meeting Schedule (Workplan)(Note:
when approved, send to point person in
County to reserve meeting room)(SJ)
Standing Items

* NEFRC Report

*Grants Update

*CTC Report

Service Development/Local Issues
*TD 101



The “Transportation Disadvantaged”

o o - o000
M an i
OLDER ADULTS PERSONS WITH PEOPLE WITH AT-RISK

DISABILITIES LOW INCOME CHILDREN

10



They Could Need A Ride To...

|
|
|
bl

Yy o A B

Medical Services Work School Grocery Store

1"



“The purpose of the commission is to accomplish
the coordination of transportation services | OUR PURPOSE
provided to the transportation disadvantaged”

12



Creation of the
Transportation
Disadvantaged (TD)

Program

Established by the Florida Legislature in 1979.

Intended to ensure TD customers have access to
transportation services across the state.

Created Commission and TD Trust Fund in 1989.

Designated provider network responsible for
inating services in a counties.

Defined “coordination” as services provided in
manner that is “cost-effective, efficient, and
reduces fragmentation or duplication”.

TD Trust Fund subsidizes a part of a TD person’s
transportation “not sponsored” by another agency.

13



TD Non-Sponsored Eligibility
Criteria (adopted in 1997)

No Other Funding Available - Individual has no other purchasing agency
“sponsoring” a trip to a certain activity

No Other Means of Transportation - Individual does not own a vehicle, have a
family member, or others who can provide a trip to an activity.

Public Transit - Individual does not have access to a fixed bus route, or one is
not available in their community, to access an activity.

Disability - Individual has a disability as defined by the ADA that presents a
barrier to transportation.

Age - The individual's age presents a barrier to transportation [the age limit is
defined by the CTC and LCB].

Income - The individual or household income presents a barrier to
transportation [the income threshold is defined by the CTC and LCB].

14



Our Organization: Florida Commission for the

g

Appoints Executive Director and oversees staff in Tallahassee. "

Independent state agency, housed in FL Dept of Transportation (FDOT).

Consists of 11 board members appointed by the Governor.

Administers TD Trust Fund and grant programs that support TD Services.

Adopts policies and rules governing the Coordinated System T l totiOﬂ
' ' Disadvantaged

Designates Community Transportation Coordinators (CTCs) and Planning
Agencies in all 67 counties.

Collects data on TD service operations and presents Annual Report to the
Governor and Legislature (January 1 each year).

Serves as a clearinghouse of information on TD services.

15



2024-2029 Nassau County
Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

Approved by the

Nassau County
Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board

1367 South 18th Street
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32063
(904) 261-0700

nes

Ms. Donna Jof(nson,_Vice-Chair

with Assistance from

Northeast Florida Regional Council
40 E. Adams Street, Ste 320
Jacksonville, FL 32202
www.nefrc.org
(904) 279-0880

May 2025

16



Table of Contents

SECTION 1: DEVELOPMENT PLAN ....cccuiomsmimmenmsenisenssessssnssssssesssesssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssanss 5
INTRODUCTION OF THE SERVICE PLAN ...ttt 5
Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program.......ccccceeeccciiiieee i e ccciirieee e eeeccrene e e e e e esinrre e e e e 5
Community Transportation Coordinator Designation Date and HiStory ........ccccceeeeeciiiiieee e, 5
(0] a2 4o o =1 I ©1 o T- Y SO PSRNS 6
Consistency ReVIEW Of Other PIANS ........ooiciiiiiiciie ettt ettt e e s et e e e s eata e e e sntaeeesabtaeesenseeaanans 6
] o [ Tol o T ol o T- Y 4o o SRS 7
SERVICE AREA PROFILE/DEMOGRAPHICS ...ceeeeuurrrrereeeeeeeeeissseereeeeeeeessssssseseseesssmsssssssesssssesessssssssseeseseesnsssssses 8
1 oo [0 PP O P U OUPTOTRRTI 8
POPUIAtION/COMPOSITION ....vvieiiiee ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e e e teeeteeeeteeeeabeeebeeeteeeesseesnteseseeesseeesnsesenseeenseeas 9
2300701 (o1 V70 0 1= o | A PRSP 13
MaJOr TriP GENEIALOIS/AtEIACTOIS ..ccuviitiitiecteeitieeeeeeeeteete bt e e teesteesteesteesteestbesabeeabeeabeesbeebeesbeestsestsesssesasenanes 25
Inventory of Available Transportation SEIVICES .....c.uiiiiiiiei it esree e et e e e e etre e e e s bae e e eentaeeeenes 25
SECTION 2: SERVICE ANALYSIS ...rrnremsmsssssemssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassss 2. 0
Forecasts of Transportation Disadvantaged Population ........ccccceeviiiiiiiiie i 26
NEEUS ASSESSIMBNT....eiiitieititeitie ettt ettt ettt e sttt e sttt sttt e subeesabeesabee e bteesabeesabaesaseeesabeesaseesabaeesbeesaseesasaesnseeesaseesases 26
Barriers to Coordination (From Prior PIAN) .......ooireeiii ettt eeeeeirae e e e e eeeatbeeeeeeeeeenstaaeeseeeennns 27
GOALS, OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND IMPLEMENTATION PLAN ...uuuiiiiiiiiiieiiiiiie ettt e e e eeeennnaen 28
SECTION 3 = SERVICE PLAN ...uccunemssnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssens 3 1
OPERATIONS .etiiiiiietiietiiettieeteetteeetteeteeetteeteeetteeteeettetteeettettteetteetteettettteetteeteeeteeetteeteeeteetteeetteeteeeeeeeeeenseenens 31
OPERATIONS ...ttt ittt ettt et e s ear e e s aa e s eaa e e e bb e e e ba e e e aab e e e an e e s asn e e s nneesaaneessnneeennneesnnis 31
Types, Hours, and Days Of SEIVICE...........cccooiiiiiiiiiiei ettt 31
Phone Number and Office HOUTS: ..........c..cooiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee ettt 31
ACCESSINZ SEIVICES .....coeiiiiiiiiice ettt ettt e b e e b e bt e s b e e s be e s bt e saeesar e s bt s b e e abeereeneen 31
ELGIDILItY PIOCESS .......ooiiiiiiiiieie et s st e e s e e s nn e s r e e sareeesmneesans 32
LOCAL SERVICE STANDARDS ......oooiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ittt iaeesiasessin e e ssaasessiasessaasessnaaessansesssnaesans 33
TP PrioritiZation ...........cccoooiiiiiiii e s s s e ne e ne e 33
Trip Scheduling PoLICIES..........ccooiiiiiiii e s s 33
Other LoCal SETVICE POLICIES tuviiiiriiiiiiieiiieiiesitertest sttt st sttt sbeesbeesbe e sbeesatesaeesabesabesbeensaenbeensaens 35
2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |2

17



COMMISSION SERVICE STANDARDS ....ivuuttttutttttetttetteettnesetsesetssetsnesessesetsnsessesssnseensetsessnseenere 36

Driver Safety POLICIES .........cocuiiiiiiiii e s s 36
RIAEE POLICIES ...ttt et et e st e s be e e st e e st e e s bt e e sabeesabe e e beeesnseesareeenneeesares 37
VERCLE POLICIES........eoiiiiiiiieie et et e et e s e e s bee e s be e e s ab e e s b e e eneeesabeesareesareeesnneesanis 38
SEIVICE POLICIES ......coouviiiiiiiiiii ettt ettt st e e rtt e e st e e s bt e e sabeesabeesabeeesabeesabeesnbeessteesabeesaseean 39
Additional INfOrmation ...........c..coooiiiiiiiiiiii e sttt 40
W N D N 0 31 (0 0 o1 PPN 41
Accommodating Mobility Aids / Life Support Systems .............cccccooviiiiiiiiiiie, 41
StANAEES 0T Lift..eeitiiiieiiiiie ettt s b e st st st sttt et et e st sheenae e st eaee 41
SEIVICE ANTIMIALS .eeitiitieitieiee ettt sttt ettt e bt e s bt e sheesaee s et st e st e et e et e enbeesbeesenesanenaee 41
TIAMSTEY ...ttt et e b e b e b e b e e s be e s bt e s et e s at e st e e bt e bt e bt e nbeenbeenbeesanesane e 41
Equipment Operation (Lift and Securement USAZE)...........ccccceeviiiriiiiiniiiiniiiinieeeee e sireesvee s 41
PSS N ZET SEIMSIEIVILY cuueetieitieitieitie ittt ettt ettt ettt st sttt st et e bt et e e sbe e sbeesbeesaeesaeesateeateeneeeteebeens 42
Clients’ Requirements for RecCeiving ServiCes ..........cccccceviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniee et siee e 42
CLIENT CODE OF CONDUCT AND DENIAL OF SERVICE ........ccoociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciiin e 42
Policy Statement ...........c.coooiiiiiiiiiiii e 42
Definitions of Prohibited Conduct ..............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 42
DiSCIPNArY ProCedures ...........cocoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e e 43
Code of Conduct for Nassau TRANSIT .........oooiiiiiiit ettt e e s e s sbe e e sabeesaeeas 43
APPEALS PROCEDURE FOR VIOLATIONS OF CODE OF CONDUCT ........coocuiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiienicciee e 45
LOCAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES/PROCESS..........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiic i 46
Definition of @ COmMPIAINT ............ccooiiiiiiiii e et rate e sbe e sbe e s beeesabeesabeeeneas 46
Filing a Complaint...........coooiiiiiii e e st e s e s san e sans 46
Recording of COMPIAINLS ............coooiiiiiiii e st 46
Appeal to the Grievance SUDCOMIMIEEEE .............cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiii e 46
Responsibility of Coordinating Board to Grievances...............cccoceeiiriiiiieiieiienenee e 46
Definition 0f @ GIIEVAIICE ........coccuiiiiiiiiiie et et sttt e s sat e e sabe e st e e s beeesabeesabeesanes 47
GrievancCe ProCeaUIes ...........oocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt sttt st s b e e b e s be e sbeesaeesanesane e 47
FIlINE @ GIIE VATICE ..eutieiieiieteeitte ittt ettt ettt et ettt e s bt e s bt e sheesatesateeae e e ab e et e eabe e be e bt esbeesaeesmeesmeeeneeenteenseans 47
Grievance Committee Hearing ProCedures .............ccoociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieeniee e siee e sieessieeeseaeesveessbeeesanes 47
2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |3

18



Appeal to the Grievance SUDCOMMItLEE ..............c.cooiiiiiiiiiiiiii 48

L @00)0) 0 T 610111 1] 51 4 KPP 49
Purpose and SCOPE .........ocoiiiiiiiiiiii e s 49
RULES Of TIANSIL. ......ooiiiiiiieiiee e st e et e e st e st e e be e e sabeesabe e e beeesareesareeesnneesans 49
CUSEOMET COUITESY .......oeeiiiiiiiieiieiteite ettt ettt et et e e bt e s bt e sreesaee s et e sate s bt s bt e bt e bt e bt e neesbeesaeesanesanesane 50
PERALLIES ...t h ettt e e s b e bt e bt e bt e nbeenbeenreesanesane e 50
FLOTIAA STATUEES.......ooieiiiiiiiii et s e s e bt e e s e s b e e e sbe e e smreesareeesnneesnnis 51
PUDBLICALION ...t e se e st e st e me e s e e be e e ne e e s r e e eneeennns 51

SECTION 4: QUALITY ASSURANUCE......ccssmmmmsemsamssssssssassssssssssssssssasssssssssasssssssssasssssssssasanes 52

CTC EVALUATION PROCESS ....uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiitiiiit ettt s e e e e e s naaaaa e e 52

APPENDICES — Posted at www.nefrc.org.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |4

19


http://www.nefrc.org/

SECTION 1: DEVELOPMENT PLAN
INTRODUCTION OF THE SERVICE PLAN

Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program

The overall mission of Florida’s Transportation Disadvantaged program is to ensure the availability of efficient,
cost-effective, and quality transportation services for transportation disadvantaged persons. People served by the
program include those who because of physical or mental disability, income status, or age are unable to transport
themselves or to purchase transportation and are, therefore, dependent upon others to obtain access to health care,
employment, education, shopping, social activities, or other life-sustaining activities, or children who are
handicapped or high-risk or at-risk as defined in Section 411.202, Florida Statutes.

Florida’s transportation disadvantaged program is governed by Part 1 of Chapter 427, Florida Statutes (F.S.), and
Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) Rule 41-2, and is implemented at the county or multi-county level by the
following major participants:

e Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD)
e Local Coordinating Board (LCB)

e Designated Official Planning Agency (DOPA)

e Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC)

e Purchasers of Transportation Services

e Transportation Operators

Part I of Chapter 427 was enacted in 1979 and has subsequently been amended and re-enacted. Amendments made
in 1989 resulted in the creation of the Florida Transportation Disadvantaged Commission, establishment of the
Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund, and enhancement of local participation in the planning and delivery of
coordinated transportation services to the transportation disadvantaged through the creation of LCBs and CTCs.
Amendments made since 1989 have, among other things, changed the name of the Florida Transportation
Disadvantaged Commission to the Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged (CTD), added members to
the CTD, modified the definition of “transportation disadvantaged”, and supplemented or modified the
responsibilities of the CTD, the LCBs, the Designated Official Planning Agencies (DOPAs), and the CTCs.

Community Transportation Coordinator Designation Date and History

In December of 1982, the Nassau County Board of County Commissioners adopted the Transportation
Disadvantaged Plan for Nassau County, recommending the Nassau County Council on Aging, Inc. to serve as the
Coordinated Community Transportation Provider. In 1983, the Nassau County Council on Aging amended the
Articles of Incorporation to create Caravan as an agency function. The first Memorandum of Agreement was
developed and approved in 1983. Beginning in 1984, the Nassau County Council on Aging began to coordinate
all county resources and execute Purchase of Service Agreements with other agencies that sponsor transportation
for their respective eligible clients. The Nassau County COA has served as the CTC for Nassau County through
September 30, 2024. The Northeast Florida Regional Council (NEFRC) is appointed by the Florida Commission
for the Transportation Disadvantaged as the “Designated Official Planning Agency,” to assist them in

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |5

20



accomplishing the coordination of transportation services to those who are transportation disadvantaged at the
local level. NEFRC conducted a thorough Request for Proposals (RFP) process and selected Jacksonville
Transportation Authority (JTA) as the provider and CTC for Nassau County. JTA began serving in this capacity
October 1, 2024.

Organizational Chart

Florida Commission for the

/ Coordinated Transportation System
Transportation O rga n i Zat i on

Disadvantaged

Commission for the
—— Designates Transportation
Disadvantaged
Contracts With
A 4
i ici Appoint ..
Designated Official _annggffs_.| Local Coordinating Board
Planning Agency
May o
contract |—Recommends to CTD—; versees
with
. Communit
I_ Purchasing Buys Trips—] n «
Agencies Transportation
- Coordinator
Ma; bil directly Contracts With B:ills
R !
~| Transportation Operators May provide
| direct services
Provides Transportation
Transportation
2

Disadvantaged Riders

Consistency Review of Other Plans

This TDSP has been developed to be consistent with the various plans compiled by the North Florida Transportation
Planning Organization, including the Unified Planning Work Program, the Transportation Improvement Program,
and the Long Range Transportation Program. In addition, the following plans have been reviewed and the TDSP is
also consistent with them:

Local Government Comprehensive Plan
The Transportation Disadvantaged program in Nassau County is addressed in the required Transportation Element

of the Nassau County Comprehensive Plan by Objective T.08 and related policies T.08.01, 02, 03, and 04.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |6

21



Strategic Regional Policy Plan
The TDSP is consistent with “Strategic Directions: The Northeast Florida Strategic Regional Policy Plan,” which

was adopted by the NEFRC by Rule on January 16, 2014. The regional transportation element supports mobility,
the transportation disadvantaged and transit in policies 2, 3 and 16.

Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 2005 S-year / 20-year Plan
The TDSP is consistent with the themes of the Commission’s 2005 plan, although much of the plan is outdated.

Public Participation

Representatives of public, private and non-profit transportation and human services providers and members of the
public participate in the development of the Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. Many of the Local
Coordinating Board members are staff to these agencies and review the Service Plan at least annually. They are all
invited to participate with the development and update of the TDSP.

a. Transportation - Staff for the Northeast Florida Regional Council actively participates with the
development of the TDSP and coordinates the efforts to ensure that the policies in the plan are

followed fully.

b. Passengers and Advocates — The CTC has close contact with its riders and get input on a continuing
basis.

c. Human Service Partners - The CTC staff has a close relationship with many local churches, health
care facilities, independent living centers, and job training and job placement agencies, and receive

input on a continuing basis.

d. Others - A public hearing is held annually in conjunction with a quarterly board meeting for public
input.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page [7

22



SERVICE AREA PROFILE /DEMOGRAPHICS

Land Use

AT e P,

2030 Future Land Use Map
"\ ‘

4 D

Future Land Use
Map Series
FLUMS-1

rduced siza repesentation
ofadopted 24% 36" map

Legend

[ CONSERVATION I and II

B gEMULTLUSE
AGRICULTURAL

I coMMERCIAL

[ HIGH DENSITY
INCORPORATED

/777 INDUSTRIAL
LOW DENSITY
MEDIUM DENSITY

Il PUBLIC BUILDING FACILITIES
RECREATION

2 1 0 2 Miles
I

\ )

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |8

23



Population/Composition

BEBR Population Estimates and Projections (Medium)

County
2020 Difference 2010 Population
Projections
Nassau County 89,258 15,944 73,314
Callahan 1,347 224 1,123
Fernandina Beach 13,534 2,047 11,487
Hilliard 3,076 -10 3,086
Unincorporated 71,301 13,683 57,618
2020 89,258
2025 99,200
2030 107,500
2035 114,600
2040 121,100
2045 126,900

Source: University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research, http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population

Population - Age 65+ - 5-year
Estimates and Projections

Estimate/Projection Year Data
2025 26,346
2030 31,567
2035 35,013
2040 37,610
2045 38,727
2050 40,226

Source: University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research, http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population

Racial Composition

Race 2023
White 84.3%

Black or African American 4.9%
Asian 1.6%

Some Other Race 1.9%

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (DP05)

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

24

Page |9


http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population
http://www.bebr.ufl.edu/population

Population by Age Groups

Ages Estimate
Under 5 4,595
5-9 4,578
10-14 6,493
15-19 5,715
20-24 4,120
25-34 11,065
35-44 12,777
45-54 12,259
55-59 7,339
60-64 7,706
65-74 14,944
75-84 8,537
85 and over 1,373
Total 101,501

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (DP05)

Veterans - Population

Female 1,208
Male 8,835
Age
18-34 748
35-54 2,880
55-64 1,631
65-74 2,611
75 years 2,173
and over
Total 10,043

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (B21001)

Veterans - Total Population - Projections

Year Data
2020 8,484
2025 8,018
2030 7,479
2035 6,897
2040 6,402
2045 6,017

Source: Veterans Administration, https://www.va.gov/vetdata/Veteran Population.asp

Poverty Status in the last 12 months by

Disability and Employment Status for the Population 2 to 64 years

Below Poverty Level Above Poverty Level
With a Disability 1,729 12,087
In Labor Force 493 3,445
2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |10

25


https://www.va.gov/vetdata/Veteran_Population.asp

Not in Labor Force 1,198 8,376

No Disability 4,595 54,824
In Labor Force 2,821 33,662
Not in Labor Force 1,668 1,989

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (B23024)

Families and People Living Below the Poverty

Level for the Prior 12 Months

Percent
All Families 7.5%
w/related children under 18 years 13.9%
w/related children under 5 years only 11.7%
Married couple families 3.9%
w/related children under 18 years 4.8%
w/ related children under 5 years only 0%
Families with female householder no husband present 20.3%
w/related children under 18 years 33.7%
w/ related children under 5 years only 54.4%
All people 11.2%
Under 18 19.7%
Related children under 18 years 19.7%
Related children under 5 years 33.6%
Related children 5 to 17 years 15.4%
18 years and over 8.9%
18 to 64 years 10.5%
65 years and over 5.8%
People in families 7.2%
Unrelated individuals 15 years and over 28.9%
All Families 6.8%
w/related children under 18 years 11.4%

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (DP03)

Statistics Related to County Population Age 60+

Year 2023 Nassau County Projection
At Poverty Level 2,010 (7%)

Minority At Poverty Level 460 (3%)

Below 125% of Poverty Level 2,500 (12%)

Minority Below 125% of Poverty 540 (4%)

Level

With a Florida Driver’s License 33,187 (35%)

Source: Florida Department of Elder Affairs, County Profiles, https://elderaffairs.org/publications-reports/demographic-profiles-
statistics/florida-county-profiles/

Household Income and Benefits

Income Amount Estimate
Less than $10,000 1,682
2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |11

26


https://elderaffairs.org/publications-reports/demographic-profiles-statistics/florida-county-profiles/
https://elderaffairs.org/publications-reports/demographic-profiles-statistics/florida-county-profiles/

$10,000-$14,999 1,067

$15,000-$24,999 1,847
$25,000-$34,999 2,832
$35,999-$49,999 3,981
$50,999-$74,999 5,172
$75,000-$99,999 6,198
$100,000-$149,999 8,578
$150,000-$199,999 4,638
$200,000 or more 2,196
Total Households 41,045
Median Household Income $90,671

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (DP03)

Number of Homeless People

County 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Nassau 92 86 86 28 17 55 55

Source: Florida’s Council on Homelessness, Annual Report, Council 2024 Annual Homelessness Report.pdf

Number of Homeless Students PK-12

Total Livin Shared
Homeless —Ving ) Shelters ) Other Motels
Situation: Housing
Students
388 <11 303 52 24

Source: Florida Department of Education Homeless Students 2022-23, Florida Department of Education

Population Over 65 with Disabilit

Disability Status Nassau County Projection
With One Type of Disability 4,335
With Two or More Disabilities 4,440
Total with Disabilities 8,775

Source: Florida Department of Elder Affairs, County Profiles, https://elderaffairs.org/publications-reports/demographic-profiles-
statistics/florida-county-profiles/

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |12


https://www.myflfamilies.com/sites/default/files/2024-07/Council%202024%20Annual%20Homelessness%20Report.pdf
https://www.fldoe.org/core/fileparse.php/20081/urlt/PERA-3356i-Homeless-and-Unaccom-Youth-2223-FS5-w-Charter-LEAs-DEH-Masked.pdf
https://elderaffairs.org/publications-reports/demographic-profiles-statistics/florida-county-profiles/
https://elderaffairs.org/publications-reports/demographic-profiles-statistics/florida-county-profiles/

Employment

Employment Data

Labor Force Employment/ Unemployment
Total
Participation Rate  Population Ratio  Rate
OP;’gr“lat“’“ 6 yearsand o) 15 56.2% 53.3% 3.7%
AGE
16 to 19 years 3,897 50.6% 44.2% 12.8%
20 to 24 years 4,120 73.9% 72.7% 1.6%
25 to 29 years 4,738 86.6% 86.6% 0.0%
30 to 34 years 6,327 83.8% 79.1% 2.6%
35 to 44 years 12,777 87.8% 77.7% 7.1%
45 to 54 years 12,259 77.3% 75.0% 2.9%
55 to 59 years 7,339 70.4% 68.6% 2.5%
60 to 64 years 6,662 47.2% 46.5% 1.5%
65 to 74 years 12,030 17.2% 16.8% 2.0%
75 years and over 8,667 7.2% 7.2% 0.0%
RACE AND HISPANIC
OR LATINO ORIGIN
White alone 71,344 54.8% 52.4% 2.6%
Black’ or African N N N N
American alone
American Indian and
Alaska Native alone N Y A Al
Asian alone N N N N
Native Hawaiian and
Other Pacific Islander N N N N
alone
Some other race alone N N N N
Two or more races N N N N
Hispanic or Latino origin N N N N
(of any race)
X}i‘ziﬁg’ne’ OISR o 55 54.5% 52.0% 2.7%
Population 20 to 64 years 55,266 75.9% 72.1% 3.4%
SEX
Male 27,425 79.6% 75.6% 1.9%
Female 27,841 72.3% 68.7% 5.0%
%‘;‘;;’:SV“ childrenunder ) 43, 76.8% 70.1% 8.7%
?;g;ﬁghﬂdren under ;97 62.4% 48.9% 21.7%
With own children under 1,586 66.1% 53.4% 11.7%
6 years and 6 to 17 years
;’Zﬁ; ‘(’Xlr; children 6 t0 17 5 04 82.9% 78.1% 5.7%
2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page [13

28



POVERTY STATUS IN
THE PAST 12
MONTHS

Below poverty level

At or above the poverty
level

DISABILITY STATUS
With any disability
EDUCATIONAL
ATTAINMENT
Population 25 to 64 years
Less than high school
graduate

High school graduate
(includes equivalency)
Some college or
associate's degree
Bachelor's degree or
higher

5,476
49,460

7,138

51,146
3,363

13,569
16,244

17,970

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (S2301)

52.8%
79.0%

56.1%

76.1%
65.4%

72.4%

78.5%

78.6%

Employment Status

In Labor Force
Civilian Labor Force
Employed
Unemployed
Armed forces

Not in Labor Force

Total Population 16 years and

over

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (DP03)

47,194

46,499

44,797

1,702

695

36,823

84,017

48.5%
75.2%

53.1%

72.1%
65.4%

70.8%

72.2%

74.1%

Employment Status

Employment Status

Private wage and salary
workers

Government workers

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

Estimate
35,070

7,706

Percentage

78.3%

17.2

29

8.2%
3.0%

2.5%

3.5%
0.0%

2.3%

3.3%

5.1%

Page |14



Self-employed workers in

own not incorporated 2,021 4.5%
business
Unpaid family workers 0 0%

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (DP03)

Housing Occupanc

Total housing units 46,601
Occupied housing Units 41,045
Owner-occupied housing units 33,298
Renter-occupied housing units 7,747
Vacant Housing Units 5,556

Source: 2023 American Community Survey, U.S. Census Bureau (DP04)

School Enrollment

Population 3 years and over

enrolled in school AP

Nursery school, preschool 1,019 4.9%
Kindergarten 864 4.1%
Elementary School (grades 1-8) 10,103 48.3%
High School (9-12) 4,043 19.3%
College or graduate school 4,879 23.3%

Source: 2023 American Community Survey (DP02)

Graduation Attainment

Less than 9™ grade 888 1.2%

9" to 12 Grade, no diploma 3,719 4.9%

High School graduate

0,
(includes equivalency) 20,306 26.7%

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

30

Page |15



Some College, no degree 15,521 20.4%

Associates degree 7,684 10.1%
Bachelor’s degree 16,074 21.2%
Graduate or professional 11,808 15.5%
degree

Pergent high school graduate 93.9%
or higher

Percent bachelor’s degree or 36.7%

higher
Source: 2023 American Community Survey (DP02)

Commuting to Work

Car, truck, or van—drive alone 33,593  75.9%
Car, truck or van—carpooled 1,745 3.9%
Public transportation (excluding taxicab) 0 0%
Walked 507 1.1%
Other means 453 1%
Worked at home 7,949 18%
Mean travel time to work (minutes) 29.8

Source: 201 American Community Survey (DP03)

Vehicle Ownership

No vehicles available 1,006 2.9%
1 vehicle available 9,949 28.3%
2 vehicles available 14,444 41%

3 or more vehicles
available
Source: 2019 American Community Survey (DP04)

9,813 27.9%

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

31

Page |16



2024 Profile of Older Floridians

This profile of older Flondians is a source of current information related to seniors in the county. Topics include the
current and future population of older adults, the prevalence of older adults who experience financial and housing issues,
the array of health and medical resources, and information related to disasters. As Florida's older adult population grows,
awareness of these issues is needed to ensure that elders continue to be vital participants in their communities.

Elder Needs Index

.

Legend
Massau County

EMI Caloulation: PSA 4
[ 13.64-13.11
[113.12- 1885

I 1885 - 26,40

B 26.50 - 37.90

B 3791 - 56.30

The Elder Needs Index (EMI) is 2 messure that indudes: (1) the percentage of the B0 and older population that is age 85 and older; (2] the
percentage of the 55 and older population that are members of racal or ethnic minority groups; [3) the percentage of the 65 and cider
populstion with one or more disability, and |£) the percentzge of the 55 and older population lking below 125 percent of the Federal Poverty
Lewel. EMI is an averaged score indicating older adults who may need social services within 2 geographic area. It is not a percentage of the
area's population. Interactive maps.  viewing  software, and @ detailed  user's  guide  are available  at
it felderaffairs. state. fl.us/does/eni_home.php

The Inciex cutpointy in the EM B acaled mt S PIA-level
Source: Florice Departmant of Elder Alsin ning U S Censw Buresy, 20013-20072 Amaricosn Commuonity Sureey 5-Fsar Extimatsa

Burezu of Ecomomic and Business Research {BEBR) Florida Division of Emengency Management (Shelters)
US. Census Buresu, Smerican Community Sursey [ACS) Floridz Housing Diata Clearinghouse

US. Census Buresw, Ouick Facts County Chronic Dizease Profile

Florida Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) Aging Integrated Database (AGIDY)

Florida Department of Elder Affairs [DOEA) Floridz DOEA EMI Maps

Horw to Become an Age Friendly Community

Unlazs otferwise noted, the dats presented i this Profile rafer fo p-upullm'un: in Flarids =gze 60 &nd oider. i

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page [17

32



2024 Profile of Older Floridians

MNassau County Demogra

The demographics section presents the population characteristics of those age 60 and older and examines traits about
older Floridians, such as the number of veterans, voters, and drivers.

Age Categon Valuee  Percent
All B 95,809 1007
Under 18 1E447 19%
Under 6 65,105 BE%
18-59 46,658 405
B+ 30,704 3%
65+ 23,023 2%
T+ 15,586 1%
5+ 8,797 108
B+ 5158 5%
B5+ 2383 2%
Source: BERR, 15
Gender Valee Percent|
Male 14,652 53%
Femnal= 16,062 &%
Source: BERR, 15
Living Alone Valhe Percent
Male Living Alone 1,530 6%
Female Living Alone 2,565 B%
Source: AGID 20T-21 ACE
Educational Attninmeent |65+] Value Percent
Less than High Schoal 2,345 B
High School Diploma 4,700 i
Some College, Mo Degree 3,530 18%
Associztes Degres or Higher 8,135 3%
Souroe: AGID T-21 ACE
Miarital Status Minlz  Female
Newer Married 625 355

Percentzze Never Married 1Fs B
Miarried 9,245 E.035
Percentzge Married 6% 52%
Widowed 1.175 3,415
Percentzge Widowed &% 22%
Diworced 1.595 1,850

E

Souroe: AGID 2007-21 ACE

Race and Ethnic Value Percemt
White 28417 o5%
Black 1,887 4%
Other Minorities 400 1%
Total Hispanic 570 13%
‘White Hispanic 503 12%
Mon-White Hispanic 67 (5]
Total Mor-Hispanic 30,132 E7%
Total Minority 2,857 18%
The minorty populsSon b the summation of blck, o, and Hicanic
Zecurom: BEEA, I3
Dyiver License Holders Walue Percemt
Drivpers 33,187 35%
Souros: Florice Departmant of Highsay Safaty and Mobor Vabices, 2028
egistered Voters Value Percent
Registered Woters L33 4%
Souros: Florice Departmant of State, 223
Percentage calosistion i3 baved oniotsl regtered wober.
Weterans Walue Percent
Bm A5-6L 2,734 3I5%
Bz G5-84 4,199 54%
BEm 55 ESB 11%
Souros: LUS. Deparsment of Mebersm: Aain, 2020
dparents: Walue Percent
Liwirgg Whth Grandchildren 1.170 %
Grandparent Responsible for Grandchildren 165 [
Grandparent Mot Responsible for Grandchildren 1.010 2%
Mot Living With Grandchildren 24760 ES5%

Grndchiidren sre defined s being under the age of 15
Source: AGID J017-21 ACS

!
|

With Limited English Proficiency &5 43

Souroe: ASID M1T-21 ACS

Note: The American Commaunity Sursey (AC5) requines & minimum of 50 cases in a geographic ares and therefons a value of O may denote fewer tham

50 seniors in & region.

Unlass otbaraize noted, the dats presented in this Profile nefer fo x!puhl:iurs in Florida Bze E0 and oider.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

33

Page |18



2024 Profile of Older Floridians

MNassau County Demog

The population pyramid below compares the projected older adult population by gender between 2022 and 2030,
demonstrating the changes expectad im the next decade. As a whole, Florida is expected to experience population
growth, with some areas expecting notable growth in the proportion of those age 65 and older.

85+
B20-84
75-79
T0-74
B5-69
&0-64
55-59
50-54
= 45-49
< 40-44
35-39
30-34
2529
20-24
15-13
10-14
5.9

0-4

5,000 4,000 3,000

Souroe: BEER, 203

Ta|

2,000 3000 4,000

= Florida Female

a Florida Male

2030 Female

u 2030 Male

3,000

0Older Adult Dependency Ratio

The dependency ratio contrasts the number of working-age (15-64) individuals compared to the number of
individuals age 65 and older who are likely retired from the workforce. This ratio reflects the ongoing contributions of
taxes and wages to support the health care and retirement systems used by retirees, as well as the availability of
yvounger individuals to serve as caregivers to older loved ones.

- 140,000
L 420,000
L 100,000
L 20,000
L o000
L 40000
| 2m000
2030 [ °
" R'";.:;ﬁ’ 31,367 7510 an228 Fopuation
'W'ITEE?‘E" 7,394 62,383 3,248 76,615
Source: BESA, TS m \Working-Age [15-64]) ¥ Retired Age (65+)
Unless otheraise noted, the data presentsd in this Frofile nefer to popuiations in Florida sg= 60 and okder.
2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

34

Page |19



2024 Profile of Older Floridians

Nassau County Financial Profile

This section examines financial conditions, poverty rates, and the cost of living for older Floridians. The ratio of
income to poverty lewvel graphic below shows the distribution of older adults relative to the poverty level to show
the proportion of the senior population who fall below the Federal Poverty Level [FPL). The portrayal of the financial
conditions of elder adults is detailed im the final graphic, which includes information about income relative to rates
of homeownership and partnership status in the consideration of cost of living.

Federal Paverty Level Poverty __________________ Value ___Perceni]

Sangle-Person Househaold 515,060 At Powverty Level 010 TH
Two-Person Househald 520,440 Below 125% of Poverty Level 2,500 1%
125% Single-Parson Household 518,825 Mingrity At Poverty Level 460 %
125% Twa-Person House bald 75,550 Minority Belew 125% of Poverty Lewve| 540 A%
Savarce: 115 Degartmesnt of Headth B Human Serdnes. 1024 Surce RS0 HILT-2L ALY

Ratio of Income to Poverty Level

100% Federl Poverty Lewel  15%% Pedeyal Fovesly Level
20,000 A H

18,000
16,000
14,000
= 12,000
Elﬂ.ﬂm
& g,000
£,000
4,000
2,000

o
Under 1,00 1040 ba 1.24 L5 to 140 15060 1.99 2,00 ta 249 250 1o 299 500 ard anver
Pervarty Laval
Wakit s manessed a5 i perosscags of v B0F pog itios, with The darted |ines i presint ng the Fefioral Posemy Livil.
Sonsrees MGID HOLT-F1 ACS

Financial Conditions

Median Income Cost of Living Based on Conditions
590,000 584,085
580,000 70,683
530,000
550,000
£50,000 T 45,048
540,000 27 744 533,684 532,664
£30,000 421,300 :
20,000 — . o e . e ¢ e — e — e <
P . P PrarERERA R AR R FTEE. e TP
S0
Owerall G5+ Single Owner  Single Renter, Single Owner Couple Owner Couple Renter, Couple Owner
without One Bedroom with Mortgage  without One Bedroom with Mortgage
Mortgage Marigage
=2r==+ FPL Single-Person Household = - FPL Two-Person Household

LEE1 G I r g o f e & alr ST el 10 ] O LS v il B el Tl B EE Mok 10 B oy IR 0TS iy w100
Sorartiic U 3. Civtwss Boraau, D008-2007 ACS, AE 0300721 0%, and Ekfir Indan. [H023), Tha Eider ickee™ [Puble Datasl]. Beslon, MA- Gerantekagy Frililte, Unmarly of Missictuet

uummﬁmnmmeuupﬂm‘bﬂdiﬁmurﬂ:rhpﬂpﬂﬁminﬁm‘idﬁg\eﬁﬂmﬂﬂdﬂ. 4

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |20

35



2024 Profile of Older Floridians

Massau County Livability Profile

The livability section presents new elements, such as available affordable housing for older adults. Many essential
community elernents are also included below, such as sidewalk safety, the safety of roadways, and availability of green
spaces. The rates of older Floridians who have access to a vehicle or public transportation, as well as the availability of
internat access and various food resources, are also provided. These provide estimates of older adults' ability to access

I:OI'I'lI'I"IIJI'iil'g' rasgurces.

Sidewzlics with Barriers 36%

Fhyakcsl Sarriery sre thoss that sspersts motorized wehices ke from
slcwwnlis o harss pesh e arsan for parking |ots, guerdeal, trea, sto)

Source: Florids Departmant of Tranmsportation, 209

Road Incidents Vahae
Total Imeolwed in Fatal Car Crashes per 100,000 11

Thiz figars Include rd e
Souroe: Florids Departmant of H sy Satety and Motor Vahides, 2024

Harve Imternet Access 5T
Source: LS. Caraun Burssn, J0LE-JET A0S

Food Resource Centers Value

SHAP fcomss Sites 3
Fresh ficoess Bucks Ouwthet ]
Farmer's Mariet 2
Food Distribution [No Cost) 2
SHAP Retmilers 71
Congregate Meal Sites 2

Food Distrisution (Mo Cot) b the num bar of food pantriar, soup bichen,
wnd foos barks e Se s,

Source: Fesding Floride ong, USOA, 123, FOACS, 2123, snd Florikds DOER, 20122

RBail Dperations at bkeast at the County

Public Transit Service Area [sg. mi.)

Public Transit Service Area Population

Annual Unlinked Trips

Vehicles Opersted in Maximum Service (VOS]

Total Miles of Bike Lanes

Indzrartion on ssrvios ares b ok recortsd by nersl snd intercity pusic tranalt

o
o
o
a
o
o
99

WM s tha nurmissr of weiiclen opsrated o mest the anmosd ms ssrdcs,
el unlinked trice sre S rumber of pansngen: boarding pebdic trengt.

Source: Federsl Tramit Adminirtretion, 027, and FDOT, 200220123

Number of Mearby State Parks

Mmarcy refers to the park Bt han the shorbat ditancs from e center
of She county.

Scuroe: Floride Departrant of Ervironmeantsl Protection, 2009

I

Rural-Urban Designation
Censies Tracts Rural
Census Tracts Urban

Mumber of Census Tracts
Sourse: LS. Decarbmarnt of AgricuBure, HILS

850

Uniess gtharwise noted, the dats presented i thiz Frofile refer to F-upulu‘h'c!n: in Flarids age 60 and older.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

Households With High Cost Burden (654 Wl
Owner-Occupied Households 3,401
Percent of Owners with High Cost Burden 15%
Renter-Occupied Households 1520
Percent of Renters with High Cost Burden 35%

Hounsbakds with & bigh oot burdsn hvs ocospents sge 54 caying mors than 50% of
Incora for houing couty snd having &n Inoomes below S0 of the sres maden oo

Source: The Shimberg Center for Housing Studier, 2002, US. Cerawun Buresy, 2008-2{123 ACS

Affordable Housing lwento Vishse
Properties 5
Properties Resdy for Qooupanoy 5
Total Units 263
Units with RBent andfor Income Restrictions 23
Units Receiving Monthly Rermtal fssicznce 158

Afordalsis houting Inwentony recetess furding from HUD, Florida Housling Firsncng Corm.,
s the USDA. Thas Irvanbony sbows Indudas clder sduits s it berget popesistion.

Source: The Shimberg Center for Housing Studier, 2002- 2003

Housing Units by Dcoupancy (65+) Percent
Owner-Oocupied Housing Units A5%
Renter-Oooupied Howsing Units 26%

fowrce: US Cenoun Burssy, 2008-2002 ACS

Viehidle Access [& Percent
Owner-Oocupied Howseholds with Aocess to Vehide(s) B6%
Renter-Oocupied Howseholds with Access to Viehide|s) BE%

fowrce: US Cenoun Burssy, 2008-2002 ACS

Employment Status [§ Walue Percent
Humber of Seniors Employed 11286 a5

fowrce: US Cenoun Burssy, 2008-2002 ACS

Retirement |65+ Value Percent
Social Security Benefidaries 21520 B2%
551 Rescipients 623 53%

5351 rturdn for Suppements] Sscurity ncoma. To qualty, & permon s e ek et ags E5
O s blind or dlusislec, Ahin, the parson mast hes lim s incoms snd rescuron.

Source: U S Sccl Ssosrity Adminbiration, X122

SNAP or Food Stamp Wb
Patentially Eligible 2500
Anruzl Participants 1504
Current Baneficiaries as of Dec-23 1133
Percent of Total Population Receiving Benefits 4%
Potertisily Eligibis ars incividush baiow 175% of the Feders| Foverty Level
Soures: Florids Dpartment of Children and Familes, 2123
3
Page |21

36



2024 Profile of Older Floridians

Nassau County Health Profile and Medical Resources

The health and medical section presents the wariety and availability of different types of facilities, medical
professionals, and treatment services in the community. This includes complex estimates based on probable usage by
older adults. For example, the "Medically Underserved” are areas designated by the U.5. Department of Health and
Human Services as having too few primary care providers, high infant mortality, high poverty, or a high elderly
population. Medical access and health support services information is an important area for community planners to
ensure that support is in place to accommodate an older population.

Facilities 1

Operating Rooms Z
Recovery Beds 5

Sourca: Florkce AHCA, 2003

-

Hospitals
Hespitals with Skilled Mursing Units

Hospital Beds [
Siilled Mursing Unit Beds

Souroe: Florkds AHCA, 2005

(=N -]

Miedical Professionals
Medical Doctors
Licens=d
Lirmited License
Critical Meed Area License
Restricted
Medical Faculty Certification
Puhblic Health Certificate
Other Professionals
Licensed Podiztric Physidans 5
|Licens=d Ostespathic Physicians 26
Dertisis 38
Licensed Registered Nurses 1,728
Pharmacies 15
Sourms: Florkds Deparimant of Haslh, 015

1

GQGQHQ

Assizted Living Fad Value
Total ALF Beds

=
1
o

Opticnzl Szt Supplementation (055) Beds
Nor-055 Becls
Total ALF Facilities
Facilities with Extended Congregate Care License
Facilities with Limited Mentzl Hesith License
Facilities with Limited Nursing Service License
Source: Floride AHEA, 2005

[FarSeE, E

Medically Underserved Value Percent
Total Medically Underserved 1] (]
Living in Aneas Defined as Having Medically o s
Underserved Populations
Living in Medically Underserved Areas L1} {751
Source: Calculted using U5, Hesith Bescurces & Services Adminkrtration snd ASID
Insured 20,746 Eo%
Uninsured 20 1%
Source: U5, Carmus Buresy, 20082022 A5
Disability Status Walue Percent
With One Type of Disability 4335 1%
With Two or More Diszhilities L2440 %
Total With Any Disability
Hearing 3770 7%
Wision 2095 3
Cognitive 1845 2%
Amibulatory 5200 11%
Self-Care 1590 %
Independent Living 2,705 7%
‘With No Disabilities 17335 TS
Probable Alzheimer's Cases (B5+) 2,060 o

Source- US. Cenmun Surssy, 2003-20022 ACS, ASID 2017-21 ACS

re Bemelfcimnes

60+ Mecdicid Eligible 2074 1%
60+ Dual Bigible 1843 T

Source- Florise AHCA, 1023

ADC Facilities
Capacity

Source- Florise AHCA, 1023

Adult Doy Care [ADC) Vnkue
2
&0

Agencies
Medicaid Certified Apendes
Medicare Certified Agencies
Homemazker and Companion Service Companies

Source- Florise AHCA, 1023

- -

Unlasz othearwise noted, the dats presented ini thiz Frodile refer to p-upuluﬁun: in Florida ame G0-anG clger.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

Page |22



2024 Profile of Older Floridians

MNassau County Health Profile and Medical Resources

Skilled Mursing Fad [SHF) U= Value Emergency Medical Services [EMS) Vol
SMFs With Beds 2 Providers 2
Community Beds z EME prowizers ind ude sk smizulsnc end smiulenon with Bmiz Lis
Shaeltered Beds [v] Suport (BL5] o Adwancsd e Supsort (ALSH
Vetersns Adminisration Beds o Source: Piorkis Dapartret of Healkh, 2005
Oeher Beds o
SMF Beds 240 Haduilt Fo Core: Homes Walue
Community Beds 240 Homes o
Sheftered Beds o Beds o
Veterans Administration Beds o Scusrco: Moricha RHCH, 328
Ocher Beds o
SMFs With Community Beds 2 ermory Disorder Clinics Walu=
Community Bed Days &7.600 Taotal 1]}
Community Patient Days 66,625 Source: Floride DOEA's Summaeny of Frograms snd Senvdoss [S095], 2123
Medicaid Patient Days 42543
Oceupancy e ™
Percent Medicid 6E% Enc-Stzze Renal Dizease Centers 2
Thas cimy the patlens b scimithed § s paSsrt dey. A Sed day | s dey during which s Zource: Florids AHCA, 23

paraon In confined to & bed ad in which the petiert they overnight bn @ homsital
Souroe: Florids AHCA, 305

Disaster Prepa

The disaster preparedness section presents the count and percentage of people age 60 or older living in the legislative
district that fall within particular storm surge evacuation zones, as well as the number of DOEA Home and Community-
Based Services (HCBS) clients who reside in these zones. The estimate of electricity-dependent individuals is presented
by insurance type to show the number of people who use electricity-dependant medical equipment necessary for things
such as survival or mobility. This information can also be used to evaluate the sufficiency of shelters, generators, and
evacuation route roadways to handle the needs of seniors and medically fragile adults in emergencies.

Electricity-Depend Shefter Resouroes Value
Mediczne Benefidary 1,108 Mumber of General Shelters 11
Mediczid Beneficiary 21 General Shelter Max Capadty in People 4348
------ the antirs fE= mrd 551 Mumber of Special Needs Shelters 3
we g0 o Special Needs Shelters Max Capacity in People 329

Sowroe: Florides AHCA, UL Cerrien: for WMedioers £ Medicsid Services, 222, snd US. Departrmant of Heslth & Source: FDER, J024

Evscuntion Zones Value Peroent

[OEA HCES Clients 205 1002

Zone & Ha s

Zone B a 2%

Zone C 27 13%

Zone D 25 4%

Zone E 27 13%

Lives in an Evac Zone and Has Memory Problems*® a7 23%

Lives in an Evac Zone and Lives Alone® Ba 43%

Zorm: arw snsocisbed with tha folowing surgs heighta Zons & up o 11 Pest, Jone & oz bo 18 deet,

Zorm € up o 20 fest, Zone D up b 2Edeet, and Zone ® up o 35 feet.

*Hote: Thers ss adciions| cxunty- sechic svecss Hon sones not lsbed on this besls.

Scuroe: Plorics DOES OIRTS, Florkls Dividon of Emanpency Mansgsmant (FOEW), 2004

Unlasz otberwise noted, the dats presented in this Prodile reafer to p-upulu'h'an: in Florids aze 50 and olger. 7
2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |23

38



2024 Profile of Older Floridians

MNassau County Disaster Preparedness

m Hospital
| Interstate Hawy
S Hwey
State Hay
:l Masmsau oy

County Boundary

H rackprd

M

20
Miles A

Geargia

Hurricans Evacuation Zones
B 7o s
Zone C
Tone O
B fone E
I Zone FCollien, Dival, Flagher Hti:-ba/u. =8, DJohna)

o

Morth
Adantic
cean

Troran arm sasodeted with tha folowing urgs heighte: Zons & up to 11 feat, fons B up bo LS dest, Zone © up bo 20 fest, Zons 0 up o 28 feet, and Tons Eop o 55 feat.

Sowrce: FDEM, 224

Unlasz otharwise noted, tha umpruumedl'n thiz Frodile rehrmp-apuluﬁan:in Fh:!riﬂuaﬁ: B mnd older.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

39

Page |24



Overview of Land Use, Population/Composition and Employment

The future land use map and demographics, when considered together indicate that Nassau is a rural County that is
projected to grow significantly. Growth and development have been brisk in the recent past, and this is anticipated
to continue, as evidenced by master planned communities and industrial areas currently in the planning or
development stages. This will result in more jobs. The population is projected to grow and is aging. Despite positive
trends, 10% of households in the County are in poverty, and this may be compounded if growth makes affordable
housing harder to find or overall causes the cost of living to rise. The ALICE (Asset Limited, Income Constrained,
Employed) County Profile for Nassau (updated in 2021) by the United Way of Florida, analyzed households that
earn more than the U.S poverty level but less than the basic cost of living for the County. In the case of Nassau
County, the median household income of $75,981 was higher than the statewide average of $63,062. The ALICE
report identified the household survival budget for a single adult as $28,308 and for a family with two working
adults and two children in childcare it was $70,128. The transportation portion of the family survival budget
exceeded the portion needed for health care and is the fourth largest factor after childcare, housing, and food. The
number of households in poverty (10%) combined with the number of ALICE households, who earn less than the
household survival budget (26%), make up 36% of Nassau County’s population. These households are among those
in need of transit, so they can save money and build wealth. If the transportation portion of their budgets can be

made more manageable, there is the potential for real impact on the future of Nassau County families and children.

Major Trip Generators/Attractors

Trips are generated by the daily needs of residents. They are also generated by nursing homes and long-term care
facilities, the local college, and public or multi-family housing. Nassau County Council on Aging facilities, doctor’s
offices and shopping areas are attractors for trips, as are the downtowns of Fernandina Beach, Yulee, and Callahan,
along with job centers on Amelia Island. The City of Jacksonville is an attractor outside of the County, for those
seeking education, health care and/or jobs.

Inventory of Available Transportation Services

Other than Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority and transportation network companies
that provide rides to or from Nassau County, the following taxi services are based in the County:

e 8 Flags of Amelia Airport Transportation
e Eagle Express Transportation

e First Coast Transportation

o Affordable Transportation

e Relax & Ride

e Amelia Airport Shuttle

e Cruz N Cab

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |25

40


https://www.unitedforalice.org/county-profiles/florida
https://www.unitedforalice.org/county-profiles/florida

SECTION 2: SERVICE ANALYSIS

Forecasts of Transportation Disadvantaged Population

Based on the Center for Urban Transportation Research (CUTR) 2013 Methodology Guidelines for Forecasting TD
Transportation Demand, the general TD population estimate for 2019 is 32,188 or 37.1% of the total population.
The forecast for 2019 considers that of the TD population, 4,792 persons are considered to be of critical need. This
is comprised of 3,871 persons who are considered to have severe disabilities and 921 persons of low income without
access to an automobile or transit. The critical need population could be expected to make 1,939 daily trips. The
forecast model is included as Appendix X.

Needs Assessment

This section provides an overview of the programs that are qualified for funding under the Public Transportation,
Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities, Job Access and Reverse Commute Program (JARC), and New
Freedom programs in support of the Federal Safe Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A
Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU).

Section 5310 - Transit for the Elderly and Persons with Disabilities — This program provides formula funding
to states for the purpose of assisting private non-profit groups in meeting the transportation needs of the elderly
and persons with disabilities with the transportation service provided is unavailable, insufficient, or inappropriate
to meeting these needs.

Section 5311 — Rural and Small Urban Areas — This program provides formula funding to states for the purpose
of supporting public transportation in areas for less than 50,000 people. Funds may be used of capital, operating,
and administrative assistance to state agencies, local public bodies, and nonprofits organizations and operators of
public transportation services. This formula funding will now be used to provide funding for the deviated fixed
route service from the west side and eastern Nassau County to Yulee and on to Jacksonville. This service was
previously funded through Section 5316 funding.

Section 5316 — Job Access and Reverse Commute Program (JARC) — The new MAP-21 Federal funding
legislation is combining the 5316 program into the 5311 program.

Section 5317 — New Freedom — The new MAP-21 Federal funding legislation is combining the 5317 program into
the 5310 program.

Section 5339 — Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program — Federal funding for capital assistance.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |26

41



5-Year Transportation Disadvantaged Transportation Improvement

Program Funding Requests and Results

Fiscal Section Section Section Funded
Year 5310 5311 5339 (updated the next year)
16/17 Capital - Eight Mobile Data General operating Two 14 passenger 5311: $419,476
Terminals $42,000. assistance $860,000. buses $167,858. 5399: 2 Vehicles
$88,214 X 2
17/18 $72,000 (one bus) $433,000 $90,037(one bus) 5310 Capital $90,038
18/19 $72,816 (one bus) $460,000 $91,020(one bus) 5310 $81,729 capital,
5339 $182,105 capital
5311 $426,917
operating, $226,432
for Nassau Express
Select
19/20 CTD $316,024
20/21 $957,928 $86,350 - One (1) 23' 5311 $957,928 Total
cutaway with 14 (Federal 50% -
ambulatory seats, two 478,964, Local 50% -
(2) W/C positions. 478,964)
5339 - $86,350 capital
21/22 $1,080,011 Operating $112,100 in federal CRRSAA/ARP -
funds CAPITAL funds for $1,778,030
(CRRSAA/ARP) two (2) 5339 - $145,600 (All
REPLACEMENT federal funding)
Chrysler Voyager
Minivans with three (3)
ambulatory seats and
two (2) W/C positions.
22/23 $1,080,011 $198,336 in federal
CAPITAL funds for
two (2)
REPLACEMENT
Cutaways with 12
AMB and 2 W/C
positions.
23/24 $533,265 in federal
CAPITAL funds for
three (3)
REPLACEMENT
Cutaways with 14
AMB and 2 W/C
positions.

Barriers to Coordination (From Prior Plan)

The following are identified barriers to the Coordination process:

Agencies that do not budget for transportation services. These agencies then place a heavy reliance on the
TD Trust Funds for their transportation needs. Agencies that do not adequately fund client transportation
cause other agencies and funding sources to pay the additional cost of agency transportation services.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan

42

Page |27




o Lack of a dedicated funding source for operating and capital expenses.

e Lack of adequate funding for coordinating transportation services.

e Increasing cost of fuel, vehicles and insurance.

e Lack of specialized medical care (particularly kidney dialysis) located in the county.

e Lack of job growth to handle potential WAGES clients.

GOALS, OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

Goal 1:
OBJECTIVE 1.1:

Strategy 1.1.1:

Coordination of transportation disadvantaged services

Contract with agencies purchasing transportation services using public funds.

Utilize executed Purchase of Service Agreements (POS) as necessary with all agencies
purchasing transportation services with public funds prior to service being initiated. Such
POS Agreements shall specify the service and cost of each type of transportation service
to be provided (fixed, direct, indirect, per mile, etc.).

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will act as soon as it becomes aware of the need for a POS. Reporting

Goal 2:
OBJECTIVE 2.1:
Strategy 2.1.1:

Strategy 2.1.2:

Strategy 2.1.3:

Strategy 2.1.4:

Strategy 2.1.5:

Strategy 2.1.4

will be as needed or in the final quarter, when the TDSP is reviewed.

Focus on consumer choice and efficiency.

Arrange transportation services to maximize consumer choice and vehicle efficiency.
As funding permits, maintain operations of deviated fixed-route systems.

Using Trapeze, analyze current service delivery and demands for service to develop
consumer travel patterns.

Survey transportation system users for potential ridership levels and develop routes
accordingly.

Increase number of clients/riders served.

Maximize the multi-loading of vehicle trips as practical to reduce cost per trip and
maximize efficiency.

As the State and County allow, and as the CTD develops a mechanism to authorize and
fund rides from transportation network companies or other providers, utilize the range of
services that make sense in Baker County or regionally to maximize efficiency and choice.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will track data and report in the final quarter, when the TDSP is reviewed.

OBJECTIVE 2.2:

Market the system within Nassau County and regionally.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |28

43



Strategy 2.2.1:

Promote service availability to agencies and consumers through advertising efforts, social
media, partnerships, the distribution of flyers to social service agencies and consumers, and
to the general public at County events.

Strategy 2.2.2: Maintain an on-time performance of at least 90 percent for all completed medical trips, as
this will help the system “sell itself” by word of mouth.
Implementation Schedule: The CTC will market on an ongoing basis. On-time performance will be reported
with the annual evaluation done by the LCB.
Goal 3: Accountability: Utilize the Transportation Disadvantaged trust fund

OBJECTIVE 3.1:

Strategy 3.1.1:

non-sponsored grant monies efficiently.

Adhere to strict budget of non-sponsored funding to prevent over-spending or under-
spending of non-sponsored trip monies at end of grant year cycle.

Delineate budget utilizing non-sponsored monies with monthly allocation. Provide report
to LCB on status of these funds at each meeting.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will track the budget on an ongoing basis and report quarterly to the
LCB.
Goal 4: Utilize the expertise of the LLocal Coordinating Board.

OBJECTIVE 4.1:

Strategy 4.1.1:

Strategy 4.1.2:

Strategy 4.1.3:

Strategy 4.1.4:

Strategy 4.1.5:

Complete all reports in a timely fashion, which require Coordinating Board approval and/or
review, including all reports requested by the Coordinating Board.

Final draft preparation of reports will be completed prior to the Quarterly meeting and
presented to the Board for their review.

Provide a written overview of ridership totals, vehicles miles, costs, and revenue at each
quarter, with a comparison to the same quarter of the previous year.

Provide and present the Annual Operating Report to the LCB prior to its submittal to the
CTD on or before September 15.

Present rate calculation for the LCB approval.

Information on grants applied for will be provided to the LCB for their approval for
incorporation into this plan.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC and Planning Agency will provide timely reporting to the LCB and the

Goal 5:

OBJECTIVE 5.1:

Commission on an ongoing basis.

Customer Satisfaction.

The LCB shall monitor the quality of service provided by the CTC.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |29

44



Strategy 5.1.1:

Strategy 5.1.2:

The CTC shall report complaints to the LCB.

The CTC will respond to grievances as specified by the bylaws of the LCB.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will provide timely reporting to the LCB on an ongoing basis.

Goal 6:

OBJECTIVE 6.1:

Strategy 6.1.1:

Strategy 6.1.2:

Maintain and plan for a safe and adequate fleet.

Develop and maintain a transit capital acquisition/replacement plan with an emphasis on
safety.

Identify vehicles due for replacement during the budget process at the start of each CTC
fiscal year.

Utilize all available Federal, State, and local grant funding sources including but not limited
to FDOT Section 5310, 5311(f), and 5339, as well as FDOT Service Development program
funds for procurement of vehicles for either replacement or expansion purposes as
necessary.

Implementation Schedule: The CTC will provide timely reporting to the LCB on an ongoing basis.

Goal 7:

OBJECTIVE 7.3:

Strategy 7.3.1:

Strategy 7.3.2:

Support regional transit.

Increase coordination with other counties in Northeast Florida and surrounding
communities.

Continue to participate in the Northeast Florida Regional Transit Working Group (RTWG)
in implementing the Regional Transit Action Plan.

Coordinate multi-county trips and service enhancement between Nassau County and other
counties by cooperating and working with nearby counties as well as the Community
Transportation Coordinators represented on the RTWG (Baker, Clay, Duval, Putnam and
St. Johns Counties).

Implementation Schedule: The CTC and Planning Agency will attend monthly meetings of the RTWG as

needed. Other efforts are ongoing.

Performance Measures (For Consideration)

These measures will assist in determining if the goals, objectives and strategies are being met:

Performance Measure Target

On-Time Performance At least 90% for

medical

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |30

45



SECTION 3 - SERVICE PLAN
OPERATIONS

Operations

The operations element is a profile of the Nassau County coordinated transportation system. This element is
intended to provide basic information about the daily operations of Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville
Transportation Authority.

Tvpes, Hours, and Days of Service

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority provides non-emergency transportation services
to ambulatory and clients utilizing a wheelchair within the Nassau County service area. Service days are Monday

through Friday, with the ability to extend service days and/or service hours to Saturday, Sunday and holidays at the
discretion of JTA Operations Leadership. Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority
observes all Federal holidays; only life sustaining trips will be accepted for these days.

The classifications of transportation services provided by Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation
Authority are Ambulatory and Wheelchair. Nassau TRANSIT transports its clients on a door-to-door basis
depending on the needs of those people who are ambulatory or wheelchair-bound. Nassau TRANSIT may determine
that the needs of a client require additional assistance. In these cases, the client will be required to travel by escort.
Drivers may not assist wheelchairs up and down more than one step unless it can be performed safely as determined
by the passenger, guardian, and the driver.

Phone Number and Office Hours:
e Phone Number: 904-261-0700 or 800-298-9122
o Office hours: Monday — Friday, 8:00am to 5:00pm

Accessing Services

Ridership Eligibility

It is the policy of the Local Coordinating Board (LCB) that Transportation Disadvantaged funds are to be used only
after all other transportation options have been exhausted. To be eligible for Transportation Disadvantaged (TD)
services, an applicant must be a Nassau County resident and meet the following eligibility criteria:

* Are not allowed to determine their eligibility.
* Are 60 years of age or older

* Must have no other means of transportation available or cannot purchase transportation. (Household Income (HHI)
guidelines may be used to meet this standard)

AND
* No other funding sources are available to provide them with transportation.

* Are eligible if they are: disabled, or their household income is less than 150% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines
as established by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |31

46



» If available, they must use flex route or micro transit if they have the ability to use.

» Must pay appropriate co-pay per trip as determined by LCB.

Eligibility Process

To determine eligibility for transportation, every rider must complete an eligibility application from the Nassau
Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority. To retrieve this form, in-person, by email or fax,
prospective clients can call the Operations Office — 904-261-0700 or toll-free number at 800-298-9122.
Additionally, the application can be retrieved online at www.jtafla.com/nassau. On this website, the prospective

client can review the instructions for eligibility, download the application and mail/drop-off the application at the
appropriate Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority Transportation office, currently
located at:

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority
102 N. 13" Street
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034

The eligibility application must be filled out along with valid identification (ID) to be considered for transportation
services. If assistance is needed in completing the application, the Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville
Transportation Authority staff members are available to help. The completed application is reviewed by the Nassau
Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority staff and a determination will be made based on the
information provided. The form will be reviewed within three business days of receipt. Eligibility will be
documented in scheduling software and a phone call will be made and a notification letter will be mailed with a
decision of eligibility.

The Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority serves a limited group of people, including
the following:
» Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): Individuals with disabilities.

* Transportation Disadvantaged (TD): Includes qualifying individuals in areas where fixed route service does not
operate who have no other means of transportation.

e Agencies: Includes people whose trips are under a negotiated agency contract with the Nassau County Board of
County Commissioners and an amendment to the Funding Agreement between Nassau County Board of County
Commissioners and the Jacksonville Transportation Authority has been fully executed.

The Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority staff will determine the funding category
appropriate for each customer.

The Nassau County Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board has established an eligibility process
for the provision of TD service to Nassau County residents. Recognizing that the TD funding is very limited the
CTC has decided to recertify clients every three (3) years. Clients will need to reapply every three (3) years to
continue eligibility. If there is a change in a customer’s financial or medical condition, they should contact eligibility
immediately to discuss. Proof of income is required to qualify for TD funding.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |32

47


http://www.jtafla.com/nassau

Upon expiration or failure to re-certify for eligibility, a customer will not be able to utilize transportation until the
process is completed. Applications for TD eligibility determination process requires a multi-step qualification
process that substantiates the individual’s ability to meet the criteria outline Chapter 427 F.S.

Local Service Standards

Trip Prioritization
Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority Transportation Non-Sponsored Priority Listing:
Utilized to prioritize trip types based on available funding.

Category 1: Life Sustaining/Medical Services

A. Life Sustaining Appointment (e.g., Dialysis/Cancer Treatment)

B. Medical Appointments (e.g. visit to a doctor’s medical offices or medical facilities)
Category 2: Essential Services

A. Nutrition/Grocery Shopping/Pharmacy

B. Social Services

C. Employment/Training

Category 3: Other

A. Shopping (Other), Recreation, Hygiene/Grooming, Other Trips

Trip Scheduling Policies

Advance Notification

Individuals wishing to use Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority services can access
the system by calling the reservation numbers (904) 261-0700 or 1-800-298-9122. Hearing and voice impaired
people may access the transportation system through the TDD dedicated line at (904) 284-3134 or through the
Florida Relay Service.

A 72-hour (not counting weekends and/or holidays) advance notice is required by Nassau Transit powered by
Jacksonville Transportation Authority to obtain transportation services. Less than 72-hour requests are allowed in
special circumstances on a space-available basis. Same-day requests for hospital discharges can be provided
dependent upon driver/schedule availability. Request service by calling Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville
Transportation Authority Operations Office at (904) 261-0700 or through the Florida Relay Service 1-800-955-8770
Voice.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |33

48



Trip Cancellation

Cancellations of reserved trips are effective only if received by telephone at the Transportation Office. Notifications
to Bus Operators are not recognized as cancellation notices. Cancellations should be received by 5:00pm the day
before the trip. A cancellation received after 5:00pm for a trip scheduled for the next business day will be considered
a “No-Show” if the trip is scheduled for pick-up at 12:00pm (noon) or later. Appointments must be made during
normal duty hours with Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority transportation office.

No-Show Policy

FTA regulations allow Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority services to be suspended
when a customer consistently misses scheduled trips and establishes a pattern of policy abuse. Trips missed by the
individual for reasons beyond his or her control shall not be a basis for determining that such a pattern or practice
exists.

Customers who indicate they are not ready or will not be traveling as scheduled will also be recorded as cancellation
at the door which is a form of No-Show. Customers who do not call to cancel at least ninety (90) minutes prior to
the negotiated pick-up time will be recorded as late cancels, which is considered a form of No-Show.

When a customer has violated the No-Show policy more than three times in 30 days, the following process and
suspension times will be utilized:

First thirty (30) day period:

¢ Phone call to the customer/caregiver to discuss the customer’s No-Show history for the current month.
o First No-Show notification letter is mailed.

Second thirty (30) day period:

¢ Phone call to the customer/caregiver to discuss the customer’s No-Show history for the current month.
o The second No-Show notification letter is mailed stating that the customer will be eligible for suspension with
additional violation of No-Show policy.

Third thirty (30) day period:

e End of the third thirty (30) day period.
e The final No-Show notification letter is mailed stating that the customer is eligible for suspension due to No-
Show policy abuse.

Fourth thirty (30) day period:

* A suspension of service letter is mailed to the client.

* A service suspension may be appealed by making a verbal or written appeal of suspension to the Eligibility Center
within 60 calendar days of the date of the written notification of suspension, and no later than the date listed in the
body of the letter. Verbal requests can be made by calling Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation
Authority Operations office, Monday through Friday 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. or a written request may be sent to:

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |34

49



Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority
102 N. 13" Street
Fernandina Beach, Florida 32034

* 1st offense - Seven (7) day suspension after written notification and opportunity for the customer to appeal.

* 2nd offense — Fifteen (15) day suspension after written notification and opportunity for the
customer to appeal.

* 3rd offense — Thirty (30) day suspension after written notification and opportunity for the
customer to appeal.

* In accordance with FTA regulations, when a No-Show occurs on the first leg of a trip, all later rides for the day
will not automatically be canceled. It is the customer’s responsibility to cancel the rides (service) they no longer
need; this includes return trips.

Standing Order/Subscription Trip

A standing order (or subscription trip) is the permanent reservation of a regular trip made by a rider. This eliminates
the need to make an individual reservation for each trip. The trip must be from the same place, at the same time on
the same day(s) of the week. The trip must be taken at least once per week, for at least six months. One standing
order is allowed per rider. Mirroring rules for the ADA paratransit service, subscription trips cannot exceed 50% of
the system’s capacity at any one time.

a Pom—81 [yzpid /g DA

Agency-Sponsored Trips
Definition:

Trips paid for by a sponsoring agency through a contractual agreement with the Nassau County Board of County
Commissioners and an amendment to the Funding Agreement between Nassau County Board of County
Commissioners and the Jacksonville Transportation Authority has been fully executed. Agency-Sponsored Trips
shall not impact Category 1: Life Sustaining/Medical Service trips nor ADA trips. Agency-Sponsored Trips shall

be tracked separately for monthly reporting purposes and shall seek to recover the full cost of such additional

services.
Door-to-Door
Definition:

Door-to-door is a type of service provided in which the point of origin is the client’s home, except when in a nursing
home or hospital. This service provides first floor door-to-door service. Drivers are not to enter the client’s
residence. Nursing homes, hospitals and facilities at point of origin can be picked up from nurse’s station or common
lobby area. Drivers are not required to act as personal care attendants, babysitters, or to provide any medical service.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |35

50



Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority transports clients on a door-to-door basis
depending on the needs of those individuals who are ambulatory or clients in wheelchairs. The driver should also
be required to open and close doors to buildings, except in situations in which assistance in opening/closing building
doors would not be safe for passengers remaining in the vehicle. Drivers may not assist wheelchairs up and down
steps. Clients requiring additional assistance will be required to travel with an escort.

Commission Service Standards

Service standards are integral to the development and implementation of a quality transportation program and are
intended to bring about uniform service provision in the coordinated system. The LCB will develop and evaluate
Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority’s compliance with established service standards

annually. The LCB will accept any agency's review of Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation
Authority which encompasses any of the standards as part of the evaluation to determine compliance with that
standard.

Driver Safety Policies
Drug and Alcohol Testing

All Safety-sensitive job positions shall comply with the pre-employment, randomized, post-accident and reasonable
suspicion testing requirements of the Federal Transit Administration if Section 5311 funds are used.

Driver Background Screening

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority (or subcontractor) will perform all required
background screening as required by 14.90. Level 2 background checks may be required on a case-by-case basis.

Driver Identification

Drivers shall be required to announce and identify themselves by name and company in a manner that is conducive
to communication with the specific passenger upon pickup except in situations where the driver regularly transports
the rider on a recurring basis. All drivers should wear clean uniform shirts and have a photo identification and/or
name badge always displayed in view when transporting passengers.

Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation

The CTC has elected to recommend but does not require its contracted drivers to be trained in First Aid or CPR.
Should the need arise for a client to require First Aid or CPR, it is the policy of the CTC that the driver notifies
Dispatch immediately. Dispatch will call rescue and request that emergency personnel be dispatched to the correct
location for professional emergency care.

Preventable Accidents

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority will compile a quarterly report of all reportable
preventable accidents for presentation to the Local Coordinating Board for its review. A reportable crash shall be
defined as an accident in which at least $1,000 damage occurred and/or Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville
Transportation Authority Nassau TRANSIT driver was cited with a traffic violation. Nassau Transit powered by
Jacksonville Transportation Authority shall strive to sustain not more than 1.0 reportable crash per 100,000 vehicle
miles for the established Annual Operating Report period.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |36

51



Rider Policies
Escorts

Escorts must be provided by the passenger. Any escort must have the same origin and destination as the client. The
escorts must be able to provide the necessary assistance to the passengers and must ride on the vehicle with the
client they are assisting. Escorts do not ride for free under the TD program. The Escort is required to pay the same
fare as the eligible individual. Only one escort may travel with the customer at any time, provided space is reserved
when the trip is booked. When scheduling trips, the customer must tell the reservationist that you will be traveling
with an escort. Drivers cannot add escorts who are not included on the reservation.

Children and Restraints

Children under age 14 and individuals requiring special loading assistance will be required to be accompanied by
an escort. All passengers under the age of 4 and/or under 45 pounds are encouraged to use a child restraint device.
This device shall be provided by the passenger.

Rider Property

Property that can be carried by the passenger and/or driver in one trip that can be safely stowed on the vehicle may
be brought on board the vehicle at no additional charge. The number of shopping bags allowed will be based on the
number of individuals on board the vehicle and the number of bags that can be safely stowed by the driver. Passenger
property does not include wheelchairs, child seats, stretchers, secured oxygen bottles and personal assistance
devices.

Passenger Assistance

A driver shall provide passengers with boarding assistance, if necessary or requested, to the seating portion of the
vehicle. Boarding assistance includes: (1) Opening the vehicle door; (2) Fastening the seat belt or utilization of a
wheelchair device; (3) Storage and securement of mobility assistance devices; and (4) Closing the door. All assisted
access must be given in courteous and dignified manner. Drivers will not drive/operate in a client’s motorized
wheelchair or scooter.

Wheelchair Assistance

Drivers may not assist with a wheelchair up or down stairs.
Smoking

Smoking is prohibited in any vehicle.

Food and Drinks

Except for medically necessary reasons verified by a licensed physician in writing, eating and drinking in a Nassau
Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle is prohibited.

Harassment/Disruptive Behavior

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority may deny service for those clients that violate the
code of conduct. The Code of Conduct referenced in Section E.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |37

52



Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority should maintain a database of client records
which include the name, address, telephone number, email, funding source eligibility and special requirements of
each passenger. Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority also maintains an emergency
contact name and number in the client records. These records are necessary in the event a trip delay occurs, and
Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority should contact a rider or guardian to explain the
delay or any relevant information.

Vehicle Policies
Vehicle Cleanliness

The interior of all vehicles shall be free of dirt, grime, oil, trash, torn upholstery, foul smells and strong odors,
graffiti, scratches, vandalism, damaged or broken seats, protruding metal or other objects or materials which could
soil items placed in the vehicle or provide discomfort for the passenger. All vehicles shall be cleaned (interior and
exterior) on a regular schedule. The exterior of all vehicles shall be free of dirt, grime, oil, trash, torn logos, leaks,
graffiti, scratches, vandalism, extensive damage and dents.

Adequate Seating
Vehicle seating shall not exceed the manufacture's recommended capacity.
Vehicle Availability

If it is determined that a person in the client’s household owns a vehicle, documentation must be provided that the
vehicle is not available to provide transportation for the client.

Communication Equipment

Each vehicle is equipped with two-way radio communications, in good working order and always audible from the
driver to the base. Portable radios are available should the main radio go down during the day. Radios that are
disabled will be reported and repaired/replaced immediately.

Air Conditioning/Heating of Vehicles

All vehicles in the coordinated system shall have working air conditioning and heating. Vehicles that do not have a
working air conditioner and heater will be scheduled for repair or replacement as soon as possible.

Road Calls

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority will compile a quarterly report of all road calls
for presentation to the Local Coordinating Board (LCB) for their review. A road call is defined as an interruption of
service during the time the vehicle is in-service, and which may or may not involve a mechanical failure of some
element of the vehicle.

Vehicle Inventory

A vehicle inventory for Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority will be included.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |38

53



Service Policies
Out-of-Service Area Trips

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority can provide out-of-service area trips as needed
up to 15 miles with the approval of the funding source and JTA Operations. Documentation from the client’s
physician that the requested service or treatment is not available within Nassau County may be required prior to the
transportation service being rendered. Because of the time and distance required to travel into the Jacksonville area
(or other areas outside of service area), Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority can restrict
how many days these routes will run; limit destinations along defined corridors to maximize loading; establish
higher co-pays based on distances; and other such measures to prevent long trips with low passenger rates that are
not cost effective to overall operations.

Rider/Trip Database

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority maintains a database of client records which
includes the name, address, telephone number, email, funding source eligibility and special requirements of each
passenger. When transporting children and adult day health care clients, Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville
Transportation Authority also maintains an emergency contact name and number in the client records. These records
are necessary in the event that a trip delay occurs, and Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation
Authority needs to contact a rider or guardian to explain the delay or any relevant information.

Hazardous Driveways

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority may deny service to any client on a private
driveway where a hazardous driveway is determined by a local Nassau government entity (e.g. Police, Fire and
Rescue, Public Works or School Board). This entity will provide documentation by way of a certified letter verifying
that the private driveway is hazardous and not appropriate for public vehicles.

Call Hold Time

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority takes all calls for all trips from eligible Nassau
Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority customers using a multi-line phone system that is covered
by staff from 8:00am to 5:00pm Monday through Friday. Calls made during these hours will not be placed on hold
for more than three (3) minutes. After-hour calls on the answering machine will be answered the next business day.

On-Time Performance

Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority uses computer-assisted scheduling software to
reserve and route all trips. The Operation Manager determines routes for the next working day and produces a
vehicle manifest for each assigned driver. These manifests are produced with cost effectiveness/vehicle availability
in mind and may not always result in convenience for the client. Based on the loading, the client will be given an
estimated pickup time.

Clients are asked to be ready 30 minutes before their scheduled (estimated) pickup times. Nassau Transit powered
by Jacksonville Transportation Authority will make every effort to reduce the length of travel and time delivered
prior to the appointment time to a minimum based on that day’s schedule. Because of multi-loading requirements,
especially trips cross-county, pick up times may be hours before appointment times to accommodate others with

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |39

54



earlier appointment times. Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority strives to maintain a
90% On-Time Performance for all medical/life sustaining trips.

Pick-Up Window

Passengers are required to call the day before their trip to receive their estimated pick-up time. Passengers must be
ready 30 minutes prior to the estimated pickup time and understand that drivers will make every attempt to pick up
passengers no later than 30 minutes after the approximate pick-up time. Drivers may call passengers the day prior
to a pick-up to confirm pick-up times, especially for very early morning pickups, but it remains the responsibility
of the passenger to call Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority to learn of their scheduled
time.

Additional Information
Local Toll-Free Telephone Number

A local toll-free telephone number shall be posted in all vehicles within the system for passengers to contact the
Transportation Office. These telephone numbers shall be included in the complaint process in addition to the
Ombudsman Telephone number in the complaint process. All Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville
Transportation Authority vehicles will also display local contact numbers visible from outside the vehicle.

Billing Requirements

The CTC shall pay all bills within 30 days to subcontractors after receipt of said payment by the CTC.
Complaints

See Local Complaint and Grievance Procedure/Process below.

Emergency Preparedness and Response

The Disaster Preparedness Plan for Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority has been
included in Nassau County’s Comprehensive Emergency Plan (CEMP) and the Jacksonville Transportation
Authority Disaster Preparedness Plan.

Education Efforts/Marketing

Currently, Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority advertises transportation services
through the following methods: driver distribution of collateral, printed mailers, social media campaigns, outreach
efforts, and on the JTA website: www.jtafla.com/nassau

System Safety Plan
The JTA System Safety Program Plan will be included.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |40

55



ADA Policies

Accommodating Mobility Aids / Life Support Systems

Portable medical oxygen is allowed on board all vehicles provided that the passenger is capable of administering
the oxygen themselves. At no time will Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority employees
be involved in the administration of oxygen.

Cf 1 x Vi da it
Clients can request the use of the lift as accommodation if necessary.

Service Animals
Service animals shall be permitted to accompany their users in any Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville
Transportation Authority vehicle or facility.

Transfer

When transporting users of three-wheeled wheelchairs or other mobility devices that pose securement problems,
entities can request that the user transfer to a vehicle seat. The regulations do not, however, allow entities to
require such a transfer. For some users of these devices, transfers pose a safety risk. Vehicle seats also are not
always designed to provide the specific support that an individual may need. Entities can explain to riders the
reasons for requesting a transfer but must allow them to make the final decision on whether a transfer is
appropriate given their particular disability.

Equipment Operation (Lift and Securement Usage)

Section 37.165 of the ADA regulations establishes the policy regarding the use of lifts and securement devices.
Subsection (b) requires that all “common wheelchairs” and their users be transported. A common wheelchair is a
wheelchair that does not exceed 30 inches in width and 48 inches in length, measured 2 inches above the ground,
and does not weigh more than 600 pounds when occupied. Wheelchairs are defined to include both three-wheeled
and four-wheeled mobility aids. Three-wheeled “scooters” and other non-traditional designs that fit within these
standards must be transported.

Subsection (c) requires that wheelchairs be secured during transport. Vehicle operators are to assist passengers in
the use of the lift, ramp, and securement systems.

Use of the securement system can be required as a condition of receiving service. If a vehicle has a securement
system which meets the new standards of Part 38 of the regulations, wheelchair users must be transported in a
forward-facing or rear-facing position.

Service cannot be denied on the grounds that a mobility device cannot be secured to the provider’s satisfaction.
Providers should make every effort to obtain state-of-the-art securement systems that accommodate all types of
wheelchairs.

In addition to a securement system for mobility aids, each securement area provided on a vehicle must be
equipped with a three-point passenger restraint system. Mobility aid users can only be required to use this
restraint system, however, if all other passengers on the vehicle are required to use a similar system. For example,
if a paratransit service requires all passengers to use a seat belt, mobility aid users can also be required to use a
seat belt (use of the shoulder harness could not be required, though, unless this was a policy for all passengers).

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page [41

56



Passenger Sensitivity
All employees of Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority will receive initial and ongoing
passenger sensitivity training.

Clients’ Requirements for Receiving Services
Proper Function of Client Equipment

a. Wheelchair Transport
This section refers to clients who can sit upright and have no acute medical problems that require them to remain
in a lying position or those clients who are continually confined to a wheelchair.

MANUAL WHEELCHAIRS: Wheelchair mechanisms for manual parts must be in proper working condition
in order to be transported. Parts include the following: Hand grips, vinyl back and seat, wheel casters, brakes/brake
lever, and footrests.

ELECTRIC WHEELCHAIRS AND SCOOTERS: Electrical systems of motorized wheelchairs and scooters must
be properly functioning and free of leaking parts.

Wheelchair Riders

Drivers are not permitted to lift a rider from bed into the wheelchair. The rider should be in the wheelchair, with
proper footrest attached, prior to pick up.

Clients with Illnesses and/or Wound(s)

If a medical professional deems that a client who is ill is medically contagious, then the CTC will not be able to
provide transportation. Clients who have open/leaking wounds and/or sores or leaking bodily fluids will not be
transported or must have them covered during transport for the safety of other clients and the driver.

Client Code of Conduct and Denial of Service

Policy Statement

It is the policy of Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority to provide safe and reliable
transportation services free of fear or violence. Unacceptable conduct by clients of Nassau Transit powered by
Jacksonville Transportation Authority shall not be tolerated and shall be discouraged by the use of increasingly

severe sanctions. It is recognized that some actions may be so intolerable or dangerous as to require immediate
termination of service and/or removal from the vehicle.

Definitions of Prohibited Conduct
VIOLENT CONDUCT: Conduct by an individual that creates fear in another individual or results in unwarranted
physical contact with another individual.

SERIOUSLY DISRUPTIVE CONDUCT: Conduct by an individual which demeans, denigrates or intimidates any
other individual or interferes with the performance of another individual’s actions.

ILLEGAL CONDUCT: Conduct which is prohibited by law or regulation and may include violent or seriously
disruptive behavior.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page [42

57



Disciplinary Procedures
These procedures shall be in accordance with Section 46,105 and Section 37.5(h) of the Department of
Transportation rule implementing the Americans with Disabilities Act which states:

“It is not discrimination for an entity to refuse to provide service to an individual with disabilities because that
individual engages in violent, seriously disruptive or illegal conduct. However, an entity shall not refuse to provide
service to an individual with disabilities solely because the individual’s disability results in appearance or
involuntary behavior that may offend, annoy or inconvenience employees of the entity or other persons.”

The following procedures have been developed to ensure the safety and well-being of employees and other clients
of Nassau TRANSIT. All instances of unacceptable conduct shall be documented, in writing, by the employee who
witnessed the conduct and forwarded it to the General Manager who shall then determine what action shall be taken.
Actions to be taken by the General Manager shall follow the incremental steps outlined below:

FIRST OFFENSE: A written notification shall be sent to the offending individual, via certified mail with a return
receipt requested. This notification shall detail the conduct deemed unacceptable, state that the notification is to be

considered an official warning, and state that any reoccurrence of the conduct deemed unacceptable within one
calendar year shall lead to further disciplinary action. A copy of the notification shall also be forwarded to the
Designated Official Planning Agency.

SECOND OFFENSE: For a second offense that occurs within one calendar year of a first offense, written
notification shall be sent, via certified mail with a return receipt requested, detailing the conduct deemed

unacceptable and stating that the client shall be suspended for a period of time not exceeding thirty (30) days. The<l
exact length of the suspension shall be determined by the General Manager. A copy of the notification shall be
forwarded to the Designated Official Planning Agency.

THIRD OFFENSE: For a third offense that occurs within one calendar year of a second offense, with the
concurrence of the Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority, a written notification shall be

sent, via certified mail with a return receipt requested, detailing the conduct deemed unacceptable and stating that
the client shall be removed from Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority permanently. A
copy of the notification shall also be forwarded to the Designated Official Planning Agency.

No suspension or expulsion shall occur until after the time limit for making an appeal has expired, with the exception
of Prohibited Conduct so dangerous or disruptive that it interferes with the immediate safety or well-being of any
employee or other client.

Code of Conduct for Nassau TRANSIT
All passengers are required to abide by this Code of Conduct.

1. All passengers must pay the proper fare, if applicable.
2. Appropriate clothing (shirt and shoes) is required of all passengers.

3. No smoking on board a Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle or
under a transit shelter covering.

4. No throwing of items.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page [43

58



5. No eating or drinking on board a Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority
vehicle, unless required for health reasons.

6. No alcoholic beverages are allowed on board a Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation
Authority vehicle or at a Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority passenger
facility.

7. No vandalism or graffiti of Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicles or
property.

8. Possession or consumption of illegal drugs is prohibited. Passengers may not ride a Nassau Transit
powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs.

9. Congregating or loitering on a Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle
or other passenger facility in a way that causes an inconvenience to other passengers is prohibited.

10. No rider shall interfere with the safe operation of any Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville
Transportation Authority vehicle and will at all times respect the instructions of the driver in regard to the
vehicle’s operation. Operating or tampering with any equipment is prohibited.

11. Riders must remain seated or secure themselves by provided handholds until the vehicle comes to a
complete stop.

12. Conversations between riders or on cell phones shall be kept at a reasonable volume on Nassau Transit
powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicles or other passenger facilities.

13. Physical violence, intimidation, and/or harassment of other passengers or the driver are
prohibited.

14. Vulgar, abusive, or threatening language or actions are prohibited on Nassau Transit powered by
Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicles or at transit shelters or other passenger facilities. Use of
racial slurs or displaying racist behaviors is prohibited.

15. Use of personal radios, cassette tape players, compact disc players or other sound generating equipment
is prohibited on Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicles or other
passenger facilities, unless utilized solely with earphones. Volume on the earphones shall be kept at a level
which does not disturb other passengers or the driver.

16. Possession of weapons or flammable materials is prohibited on a Nassau Transit powered by
Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle or other passenger facility.

17. Guide, signal, or service animals are allowed for passengers who have visual, hearing or mobility
impairments. All other animals are prohibited on Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation
Authority vehicles or other passenger facilities.

18. Passengers are prohibited from lying down or otherwise occupying more than one seat on board a
Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle, facilities, transit areas, buildings
or any other Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority properties.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |44

59



19. Passengers may not bring objects on board a Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation
Authority vehicle that block an aisle or stairway or occupy a seat if to do so would cause a danger to or
displace passengers or expected passengers.

20. Passengers are prohibited from extending an object or portions of one’s body through a door or window
of a Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle.

21. Panhandling, sales, or soliciting activities are prohibited on board a Nassau Transit powered by
Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle or other passenger facility.

22. Infant strollers and similar articles must be folded prior to boarding a Nassau Transit powered by
Jacksonville Transportation Authority vehicle.

23. Children under six years of age must be accompanied by an adult or guardian 14 years of age or older.
Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority does not accept any responsibility for any
unaccompanied minor.

Appeals Procedure for Violations of Code of Conduct

An administrative process shall allow a decision regarding a conduct-related issue to be appealed. The process shall
be separate and distinct from the established grievance process contained elsewhere in this document and only apply
to conduct-related issues unless otherwise specified. Furthermore, this process shall include an opportunity for the

affected party to be heard and to present information and arguments.

Anyone wishing to appeal a written notification of a First Offense shall present their request for appeal in writing
to the General Manager of Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority within ten (10)
calendar days of receipt of notification of such offense. The Manager shall investigate the circumstances
surrounding the appeal and render a decision within seven (7) calendar days. The decision of the Manager shall be
final. If a client elects to pursue the appeals process for a first offense, the agency funding the client’s service shall
be notified of the appeal and the final decision by the Manager.

Anyone wishing to appeal a disciplinary action resulting from either a Second or Third Offense shall present their
request for appeal in writing to the Director of the Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority
within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of notification of disciplinary action. All written appeals shall contain the
following information:

* The name and address of the appellant.

* Location, bus number, date and approximate time of the incident(s).

* A statement of the grounds for the appeal and supporting documentation.
* An explanation of the relief desired by the appellant.

The Director shall immediately forward the request for an appeal to the grievance committee of the Nassau County
Local Coordinating Board via the Designated Official Planning Agency. Within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt
of the appeal request, the Grievance Committee shall meet and render a decision on the appeal. Furthermore, if a
client elects to pursue the appeals process for a SECOND or THIRD OFFENSE, the agency funding the client’s
service shall be notified of the appeal and requested to attend the grievance committee meeting. A written copy of

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |45

60



the decision of the grievance committee will be forwarded to the appellant, via certified mail with return receipt
requested, within ten (10) calendar days of the conclusion of the committee meeting. Additional copies of the
decision shall be sent to the funding agency for the trip in question, as well as the Local Coordinating Board. If the
appeal fails, the notification of the decision will also state the effective date(s) of the suspension or expulsion.

Suspensions or expulsions from Nassau Transit powered by Jacksonville Transportation Authority shall not be
enforced during an appeal period, except in cases where the conduct is so dangerous or disruptive that it interferes
with the immediate safety or well-being of any employee or other person.

Local Grievance Procedures/Process

Definition of a Complaint
For the purpose of this Section, a complaint is defined as:

An issue brought to the attention of the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) either verbally or in
writing by a system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, or community service provider/subcontractor, addressing
one or more issues concerning transportation services of the CTC or operators used or employed by the CTC.

Filing a Complaint

The Community Transportation Coordinator will provide all system user/advocates, sponsoring agencies, and/or
community service providers using Transportation Disadvantaged services a description of and process to be used
to make a complaint to the CTC. Complaints may also be made directly to the TD Ombudsman by calling 1-800-
983-2435. If a system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, or community service provider/subcontractor has a
complaint, the CTC will address each complaint, making whatever investigation is required to determine the facts
in the issue presented and take appropriate action to address each complaint. Complaints that cannot be resolved
by the CTC directly or through mediation with operators and/or sponsoring agency, can be brought before the
Nassau County Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board Grievance Committee.

Recording of Complaints

The Community Transportation Coordinator will keep a MEMO OF RECORD file of all complaints received. A
copy of the MEMO OF RECORD file will be made available to the Community Transportation Coordinating
Board on an as needed basis.

Appeal to the Grievance Subcommittee

The Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) shall advise and provide directions to all customers, system
user/advocates, sponsoring agencies, and/or community service providers from which a complaint has been
received by the CTC of the right to file a formal written grievance! If after the CTC attempts to resolve the
complaint, the complainant is not satisfied with the action taken by the CTC, the individuals should proceed to the
next grievance step.

Responsibility of Coordinating Board to Grievances

The Local Coordinating Board shall appoint a Grievance Committee to serve as a mediator to process and
investigate complaints from agencies, users and potential users of the system, and the Community Transportation
Coordinator in the designated service area, and to make recommendations to the Coordinating Board for
improvement of service. The Coordinating Board shall establish procedures to provide regular opportunities for

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |46

61



issues to be brought before such committee and address them in a timely manner. Members appointed to the
committee shall be voting members of the Coordinating Board. (Rule 41-2.012, FAC).

Definition of a Grievance
For purposes of this section, a grievance is defined as:

A circumstance or condition thought to be unjust and grounds for bitterness or resentment due to lack of clear
resolution by the CTC through the notice of complaint procedure or due to the seriousness of the grievance.

Grievance Procedures

The following Grievance Procedures are established for grievances to be brought before the Grievance
Subcommittee. When a passenger, system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, and/or community service
provider/subcontractor has a concern, complaint, or problem relative to transportation services, proper grievance
procedures which are described below should be followed in sequence.

[ edd -',ff/nl 10V

a. If a passenger, system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, and/or community service provider/subcontractor has
a complaint as defined previously, the party should first discuss the matter with the staff involved for immediate
resolution, if possible. If no resolution or satisfaction is reached, the individual should then proceed to the grievance
level.

b. If a system user/advocate, sponsoring agency, and/or community service provider/subcontractor has a
grievance with the service, the individual will present the grievance to the Community Transportation
Coordinator (CTC) within ten (10) working days of the incident. All grievances must be in writing and shall
include the following:

1. The name and address of the grievant.

2. Location, bus number, date and approximate time of the incident(s).

3. A statement of the grounds for grievance and supporting documentation.
4. An explanation of the relief desired by the grievant.

Grievance Committee Hearing Procedures
The grievance committee agenda shall be conducted in accordance with the following procedures:

Call to order - Planning Staff

Election of Grievance Committee Chairman - Committee Members

Presentation of Grievance by Planning Staff

Presentation of Grievance by Complainant

Response of party(s) concerned

Discussion of grievance - Shall take place in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order amongst the

moe o o

Grievance Committee, the complainant and other interested parties. Discussion shall focus solely on the
grievances.

g. Following discussion of the grievance, the Grievance Committee shall provide its recommendation to
all interested parties in response to the grievance.

h. Close Hearing.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |47

62



i. Facts concerning the grievance should be stated in clear and concise language. If assistance is needed in
preparing a written grievance, assistance will be provided by the CTC staff and/or the designated official
planning agency. Within fifteen (15) working days following the date of receipt of the formal grievance,
the Community Transportation Coordinator (CTC) staff will respond, in writing, to the system
user/advocate or other party concerning the registered grievance. The Community Transportation
Coordinator's response shall explain the factors that influenced the decision and shall identify the action,
if any, that will be taken.

j. The Community Transportation Coordinator will keep a GRIEVANT RECORD file of all grievances
received. A copy of the RECORD file will be made available to the Transportation Disadvantaged Local
Coordinating Board on an as needed basis.

Appeal to the Grievance Subcommittee

The decision of the Community Transportation Coordinator may be appealed to the Grievance Subcommittee of the
Transportation Disadvantaged Coordinating Board within fifteen (15) working days of the receipt of the Community
Transportation Coordinator's final decision. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the appeal, the Grievance
Subcommittee will meet to make recommendations to the Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board.

The grievant will be notified in writing of the date, time and place of the subcommittee meeting at which the appeal
will be heard. This written notice will be mailed at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting. The notice shall clearly
state the purpose of the discussion and outline the issues involved.

A written copy of the decision will be forwarded to the Board and all parties involved within ten (10) days of the
date of the decision. Written decisions will include the following information:

1. A statement that a meeting was held in which the parties involved, their representatives, and witnesses were given
an opportunity to present their position.

2. A statement that clearly defines the issues discussed.
3. An opinion and reasons for the decision based on the information provided.
4. A finding that the issue affects safety, provision of service, or efficiency; and

5. A recommendation by the Grievance Subcommittee based on their investigation and findings.

Recommendation to the County Transportation Disadvantaged Local Coordinating Board

Within thirty (30) working days of the receipt of the recommendation, the County Transportation Disadvantaged
Coordinating Board will meet and consider the recommendation. A written copy of the recommendation will be
forwarded to the Board and all parties involved within ten (10) working days of the date of the recommendation.
The grievant will be notified in writing of the date, time and place of the Board meeting at which the
recommendation will be presented. This written notice will be mailed at least ten (10) working days prior to the
meeting.

Appeal to the State Transportation Disadvantaged Commission

Should a grievant remain dissatisfied with the decision, appeal may be made directly to the Commission for the
Transportation Disadvantaged. The appeal should be addressed to:

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |48

63



Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged
605 Suwannee Street, MS - 49
Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Code of Conduct

The following is the transit authority’s standards of conduct and behavior for all users of the Jacksonville Transit
Authority (JTA) transit services and/or facilities.

Purpose and scope

This code of conduct is a rule of the Jacksonville Transportation Authority, help you to acquaint yourself with our
current standards of conduct and behavior that is applicable to all JTA transit services and / or facilities for your
safety, security and comfort. The following rules are design to preserve our customers’ right to free speech, while
simultaneously ensuring the safety and comfort of all customers, operators and the public at large. The Code of
Conduct applies to all modes and means of JTA transportation, including but not limited to the following:

Fixed Route and Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

* ADA Paratransit and TD service

* Microtransit and Commuter Shuttle service
 Skyway and Ferry

* Charter service / special services vehicles

* Park and ride lots

* Transit shelters and all other passenger facilities

Rules of Transit
All passengers are required to abide by this “Code of Conduct for Transit Customers” to ensure that all JTA
customers enjoy a comfortable ride on the JTAJ

1. Please think of others and follow our no eating, drinking or smoking policy on board any JTA vehicle.

2. Please do not open containers of food or drink. Not only are they not allowed on the JTA, but this rule
also helps us to keep our vehicles clean and comfortable.

3. We are very protective of our customers, including you, so please don’t use physical violence,
profanity, intimidation, and/or harass other passengers or the operator. All of these actions are prohibited
by JTA.

4. Possession or consumption of illegal drugs is not allowed by law.

5. To assure the safety of you, our operator and our customers, please remain behind the yellow line and
minimize conversation with the operator.

6. Please remain seated and/or secure yourself until the vehicle comes to a complete stop.

7. Panhandling, sales, or solicitation is prohibited on-board a JTA vehicle. The distribution of printed
materials at JTA public facilities should not interfere with bus operations.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page [49

64



8. The use of sound-generating electronic devices- like cell phones or portable disc players can only be
used on our buses if you are using earphones. Conversations and other noise should be kept at a level that
does not disturb other passengers or the operator.

9. Possession of weapons or flammable materials is prohibited on JTA vehicles, transit

shelters and other JTA customer facilities.

10. All objects, such as strollers, should be folded prior to boarding and cannot block the aisle or stairway.
11. Appropriate clothing, shirt and shoes, is required to board the bus.

12. Operating or tampering with any JTA equipment is dangerous and prohibited.

13. Children under six years of age must be accompanied by an adult or guardian 15 years of age or older.
JTA employees are not allowed to accept responsibility for unaccompanied minors.

14. All animals are prohibited unless used as service animal.
15. Vandalism or graffiti of JTA vehicles or property is illegal and therefore prohibited.

Customer Courtesy
* Please have the correct fare ready when boarding.

* Please occupy only one seat and make room for other passengers.

* Please consider offering you seat to the elderly or disabled passengers when
possible.

* Please keep conversation and other noises to a minimum for the comfort of all JTA
customers.

* Please allow customers in wheelchairs to board the bus first.

* Please reserve front seats for customers with disabilities.

Penalties

Persons who violate the Code of Conduct are subject to penalties, up to and including suspension of service. A range
of penalties may be used to address non-compliance with the Code of Conduct. Non-compliance with the Code of
Conduct may include one or any combination of the following:

1. Verbal warning by transit driver or JTA supervisor to correct a customer’s non-compliance with JTA
rules.

2. Offensive conduct on the part of a JTA customer may require their removal from the transit vehicle. If a
passenger is removed from a transit vehicle, the passenger is suspended from riding privileges on any JTA
vehicle and from use of any JTA transit shelter or passenger facility for the remainder of the day. When a
passenger is in violation of the Code of Conduct and is asked to leave a JTA vehicle, their fare is forfeited.
If a suspended passenger is seen on another JTA vehicle or at a JTA transit shelter or other passenger facility
during the suspension period, the passenger will be considered trespassed and law enforcement will be
contacted.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |50

65



3. A passenger may be suspended from all use of the JTA transit system for a determined period of time. A
suspended passenger is not allowed to use any JTA vehicle or any JTA transit shelter or other passenger
facility for the duration of the suspension period. When a passenger returns from a suspension, the returning
passenger’s behavior will be closely monitored. If another incident of non-compliance with the Code of
Conduct occurs, the passenger may be suspended for an additional period of time and / or have all JTA
transit privileges permanently terminated.

4. A passenger’s transit privileges may be permanently terminated for repeat offenses or for one major
offense, including but not limited to physical threats, violence or disruptive behavior which presents a safety
hazard.

Florida Statutes
Please read and become familiar with the following State of Florida laws that can result in felony charges, are
created to protect all JTA services and employees:

Florida Statute 784.07 — Assault or battery of law enforcement officers, firefighters, emergency medical care
providers, public transit employees or agents, or other specified officers: minimum sentence.

Florida Statute 812.015 — Retail and farm theft; transit fare evasion; mandatory fine; alternative punishment;
detention and arrest; exemption from liability for false arrest; resisting arrest; penalties.

Publication
This code of conduct is available on-line at www.jtafla.com. Hard copies are available without charge at JTA’s office
100 LaVilla Center Dr. Jacksonville, Florida 32204 and at selected JTA transit hub locations.

Community Transportation Coordinator: Jacksonville Transportation Authority
Effective Date: July 2024
Type of Service to be Provided Unit Cost Per Unit
(Passenger Mile or Trip) S
Ambulatory Trip $18.87
Wheelchair Trip $32.35
Non-Sponsored Trip charge $2.00
Public Transit Trip charge $1.00
NassPASS: 6 Rides $5.00
10 Rides $10.00
20 Rides $15.00
2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |51

66



SECTION 4: QUALITY ASSURANCE
CTC EVALUATION PROCESS

CTC Evaluation

The Northeast Florida Regional Council conducts an annual evaluation of the Nassau County TD program pursuant
to Rule 41-2, Florida Administrative Code (FAC) and utilizing guidelines established by the Commission for the
Transportation Disadvantaged. This evaluation utilizes, at a minimum, Chapters 5 (Competition), 7 (Cost
Effectiveness & Efficiency) and 12 (Availability) of the Commission’s Workbook for CTC Evaluations.

CTC Monitoring Procedures of Operators

Nassau County TD program does not have any sub-contracted operators at this time.

Coordination Contract Evaluation Criteria

Nassau County TD program does not have a coordination contractor at this time.

Planning Agency Evaluation Process

The Florida Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged conducts biennial reviews of the planning agency’s
performance based upon established procedures utilizing staff from the CTD’s Quality Assurance & Program
Evaluation (QAPE) section.

2024-2029 Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan Page |52

67



Northeast Florida

NEED A RIDE?

RIDE UNITED TRANSPORATION ACCESS

We believe that everyone should have safe, reliable
and easily accessible transportation.

Ride United offers temporary, prescheduled

Lyft rides to residents in Duval, Clay, Putnam,

St. Johns, Nassau, Baker, Columbia,
Suwannee and Hamilton counties.

Those in need of transportation assistance to
critical services such as education,
employment, health care, or food access
should contact United Way 211 to determine
ride eligibility.

Ride scheduling is available during operating
business hours (Monday through Friday from
8am.to5pm.).

lgﬂ Li HEAITH

* Drivers are not employed through
United Way.

* All riders must be 18 years of age
or accompanied by an adult.

Dial 2-1-1 to learn more

For additional information please contact

Brittny Woodard, 211 Operati
Supervisor at Rrittnvw@uwnefl.org or
904-390-3227

MAYO

CLINIC mlmmu

@y - WAY

68




From: Zeruto, Dan

To: Eron Thompson; Carl Weckenmann
Cc: Summer Jones
Subject: 2025-2026 Nassau County Rate Model Approved
Date: Friday, May 23, 2025 11:18:41 AM
Attachments: image003.pna

image004.png

image005.0na

image006.pna
imaae007.ona
image008.ona
image0(
image0( a
image011.png

I
2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved.xls

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good Morning,

| have reviewed the corrections and adjustments made to the attached 2025-26 Rate Model Calculation Spreadsheet for some of the most common procedural and utilization
errors. Items previously noted have been addressed and it is approved for further review at the local level as appropriate. My review and opinion does not confirm the validity or
accuracy of any financial or operational data elements that have been entered, nor does it address the reasonableness of the unsubsidized cost of services.

By copy of this email, | am advising your planning agency on our completion of this effort and the readiness to advance the spreadsheet to the LCB for approval and inclusion in
the TDSP update.

When the time comes, | will produce your T/E grant contract with the passenger trip rates from this spreadsheet presuming no further changes by the LCB.

Ambul Wheel Chair Strercher Group
Leave Blank Leave Blank
0j Trips, ing totally services in Section If) = 23,505 = 20,109 = 3,396 |+ +

Rate per Passenger Trip =

Thank you,
-Dan-

Feres Coreression s .

’ 2 Daniel Zeruto
[ Transportation Disadvantaged Specialist

y Project Manager — Area 2
Tronsportation Tel: (850) 410-5704
Disacvantaged Email: Dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us

Website: https://ctd.fdot.gov/

FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED
605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 49

Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Tel: (850) 410-5700 Fax (850) 410-5752

TD Helpline: 1-800-983-2435

From: Eron Thompson <EThompson@jtafla.com>

Sent: Tuesday, May 20, 2025 6:36 PM

To: Zeruto, Dan <Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us>

Cc: Eron Thompson <EThompson@jtafla.com>

Subject: RE: 05 19 2025 RE: FY26 T&E Grant Application Documents for Nassau/Clay/Duval counties

Good Afternoon Dan,
Attached please find the updated documents.

Thanks,
Eron

Eron D. Thompson, AICP

Director — Grants Management

Jacksonville Transportation Authority

100 LaVilla Center Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32204
Email: ethompson@jtafla.com

Office: (904) 630-3187

www.jtafla.com

From: Zeruto, Dan <Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us>

Sent: Monday, May 19, 2025 3:17 PM

To: Eron Thompson <EThompson @jtafla.com>

Subject: RE: 05 19 2025 RE: FY26 T&E Grant Application Documents for Nassau/Clay/Duval counties

EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from a non-JTA email address. Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the sender and
know the content is safe.

69


mailto:Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:EThompson@jtafla.com
mailto:cweckenmann@jtafla.com
mailto:Sjones@nefrc.org
mailto:Dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fctd.fdot.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188565115%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=tZ%2Bniqjuxwi0MTlH5tYrzStnBazCwepUrZoSvQE6ihc%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188592265%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SzJlqBEsJlc5MXsF7Ehc7eOso60XsXp4EWEG%2BC0Wy0E%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FJTAFLA&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188610365%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cU%2B0LVH7FwODuMf5qMpvGf%2BETa6Crtssbs6ASjhFPSM%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FJTAFLA&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188625178%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=iwnY%2FjKIjrNsykNtP66GFz7FAUY2zNiOPPlD3xCdXac%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fjtafla&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188639397%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=joQ0vPUI3wTmRDeFmHZJjnnyDXrZ5c%2FrhrzDlwGhA5Q%3D&reserved=0
mailto:ethompson@jtafla.com
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188658036%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=fHilzM%2FSvXZ8ULsy6i%2FVzuc39%2FtevdJbKhAILkqvlF0%3D&reserved=0

Lqrj
















£
| oS J




& Clayratecalctemplate_2025-202FirstSubrmission - Read-Only - Compatibility Mode » Saved to this PC v/ el e
jome Insert Draw Pagelayout Formulas Data Review View Automate Developer Help DYMO Label Kofax PDF  Power Pivot |2 cor
3 (avial 10 -

B - - % .
s - [ Format o~
4 Font Alignment Number Styes cells Editing Sensitivty | Addins
TES AVAILABLE  Updates for Office are readly to be installed, but first we need to close some apps. | Update now
~ fe 46852
3 3 G H 1 3 K u M NO P QR s T U
July 1stor atihe rate per il funds to purchase
2025 determined by this equipment, OR
L spreadsheet, OR | DUdgeted Rate | - yijpe ysed o
o usedaslocal |Subsidy Revenuel  “ryztcn for the.
match for these | EXcluded from purchase of
2026 type revenues? | the Rate Base | _equipment?
1 2 3 3 5

REVENUES (CTC/
Local Non-Govt

Farebox
Hiedicaid Co-Pay Recsived
Donations/ Contributions
in-Kind, Contributed Services
Giher

Bus Pass Program Revenue

District School Board
Compl. ADA Senvices

County Cash

Countyin-Kind, Contributed Services
City Cash

Cityin-kind, Confributed Services
‘Gther Cash

Otherin-Kind, Coniributed Senvices
Bus Pass Program Revenue

CTD
Hion-Spons. Trip Brogram
Nion-Spons. Capital Equipment

Rural Capital Equipment
Gher 1D

Bus Pass Program Revenue

vevnoa

DIPTSR PR P s

YELLO
erated by A

BLUE
generated |

GREE

MAY BE Revenue Ge
Authorized Rate pe!

local match req
5 46852
s B
s B

Fill in that portion of budgetec
will be GENERATED through th




@ Autosave (@ of) [ Nassauratecalctemplate_2025-2026FirstSubmission - Protected View » Saved to this PC v rel [
Fle  Home Insert Draw Pagelayout Formuls Data View Automate Developer Help DYMO Label KofaxPDF  Power Pivot
@) PROTECTED VIEW  Be careful—email attachments can contain viruses. Unless you need to edit it safe o stay in Protected View, | Enable Editing
() UPDATES AVAILABLE Updates for Office are ready to be installed. but first we need to close some apps. | Update now
1% ™ : Feo| saam1
ABCD 3 F 3 K M NO P QR s T U
e Budgeted the Subsidy
from Revenuein col. 2 Revenuein col 4
will be generated will come from
July tstof attne rate perunit funds to purchase
2025 determined by this ‘equipment, OR
P spreadsheet, OR | DUdgeted Rate | - yijpe ysed o
- usedas local (Subsidy Revenuel -zt for he
match for these | EXcluded from purchase of
2026 type revenues? | the Rate Base | equipment?
] 2 3 3 5

REVENUES
Local Non-Got

Farebox
egicaid Co-Pay Recsived
‘Bonations/ Contributions

In-Kind, Contributed Services
Giher

Bus Pass Pmnmn Revenue

Local Governm:

District School Board
Compl. ADA Senvices

County Cash

Countyin-Kind, Contributed Services
City Cash

Cityin-kind, Confributed Services
‘Gther Cash

Otherin-Kind, Coniributed Senvices
Bus Pass Program Revenue

Rion-Spons. Trip Prograrm 769238
Non-Spons. Capital Equipment :

Rural Capital Equipment z
Gher 1D B

Bus Pass Program Revenue

DIPTSR PR P s

nds gene

MAY BE Reven
Authorized R:

Fill in that portion of buc
will be GENERATED thro
per mile, per trip, or con




Ambul  VheelChair Stretcher Group
Leave Blank Leave Blank

20108 o 3% 4

Projected Passenger Trips (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section )= 23,505

Rate per Passenger Trip. $55.51 $0.00 $0.00  $0.00

petpszsenger  pergroup













Preliminary Information

																														1

																														2		Alachua

								Preliminary Information Worksheet												Version 1.4										3		Baker

																														4		Bay

																														5		Bradford

												CTC Name:		Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services																6		Brevard

												County (Service Area):		Nassau														1		7		Broward

												Contact Person:		Carl Weckenmann																8		Calhoun

												Phone #		(904) 633-5805																9		Charlotte

																														10		Citrus

																														11		Clay

																														12		Collier

										Check Applicable Characteristic:																				13		Columbia

										ORGANIZATIONAL TYPE:						NETWORK TYPE:														14		Dade

																														15		Desoto

																														16		Dixie

		1										Governmental						Fully Brokered								2				17		Duval

												Private Non-Profit						Partially Brokered												18		Escambia

												Private For Profit						Sole Source												19		Flagler

																														20		Franklin

																														21		Gadsden

																														22		Gilchrist

								Once completed, proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Comprehensive Budget"																						23		Glades

																														24		Gulf

																														25		Hamilton

																														26		Hardee

																														27		Hendry

																														28		Hernando

																														29		Highlands

																														30		Hillsborough

																														31		Holmes

																														32		Indian River

																														33		Jackson

																														34		Jefferson

																														35		Lafayette

																														36		Lake

																														37		Lee

																														38		Leon

																														39		Levy

																														40		Liberty

																														41		Madison

																														42		Manatee

																														43		Marion

																														44		Martin

																														45		Monroe

																														46		Nassau

																														47		Okaloosa

																														48		Okeechobee

																														49		Orange

																														50		Osceola

																														51		Palm Beach

																														52		Pasco

																														53		Pinellas

																														54		Polk

																														55		Putnam

																														56		Santa Rosa

																														57		Sarasota

																														58		Seminole

																														59		St. Johns

																														60		St. Lucie

																														61		Sumter

																														62		Suwannee

																														63		Taylor

																														64		Union

																														65		Volusia

																														66		Wakulla

																														67		Walton

																														68		Washington



&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N

Provide the name and phone number of the contact person knowledgeable about the CTC’s services and financial data used in this Rate Calculation Model.

Throughout this version you will see red triangles that include explanatory comments for your review.  Please hover your cursor over the triangle to see the comment.

&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N



Comprehensive Budget

		

						Comprehensive Budget Worksheet										Version 1.4				CTC:		Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services

																				County:		Nassau

						1.		Complete applicable GREEN cells in columns 2, 3, 4, and 7

												Prior Year's ACTUALS		Current Year's APPROVED Budget, as amended		Upcoming Year's PROPOSED Budget				Proposed % Change from Current Year to Upcoming Year

												from		from		from						Confirm whether revenues are collected as a system subsidy VS

												July 1st of		July 1st of		2		% Change from Prior Year to Current Year				a purchase of service at a unit price.

												2023		2024		2025

												to		to		to

												June 30th of		June 30th of		June 30th of

												2024		2025		2026						Explain Changes in Column 6 That Are > ± 10% and Also > ± $50,000

						1						2		3		4		5		6		7

								REVENUES   (CTC/Operators ONLY / Do NOT include coordination contractors!)

								Local Non-Govt

										Farebox				$   18,664		$   19,504				4.5%

										Medicaid Co-Pay Received										0.0%

										Donations/ Contributions										0.0%

										In-Kind, Contributed Services										0.0%

										Other										0.0%

										Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								Local Government

										District School Board										0.0%

										Compl. ADA Services										0.0%

										County Cash				$   73,611		$   76,924				4.5%

										County In-Kind, Contributed Services										0.0%

										City Cash										0.0%

										City In-kind, Contributed Services										0.0%

										Other Cash										0.0%

										Other In-Kind, Contributed Services										0.0%

										Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								CTD

										Non-Spons. Trip Program				$   736,113		$   769,238				4.5%

										Non-Spons. Capital Equipment										0.0%

										Rural Capital Equipment										0.0%

										Other TD (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								USDOT & FDOT

										49 USC 5307										0.0%

										49 USC 5310										0.0%

										49 USC 5311 (Operating)										0.0%

										49 USC 5311(Capital)										0.0%

										Block Grant										0.0%

										Service Development										0.0%

										Commuter Assistance										0.0%

										Other DOT (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								AHCA

										Medicaid										0.0%

										Other AHCA (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								DCF

										Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health										0.0%

										Family Safety & Preservation										0.0%

										Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv.										0.0%

										Other DCF (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								DOH

										Children Medical Services										0.0%

										County Public Health										0.0%

										Other DOH (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								DOE (state)

										Carl Perkins										0.0%

										Div of Blind Services										0.0%

										Vocational Rehabilitation										0.0%

										Day Care Programs										0.0%

										Other DOE (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								AWI

										WAGES/Workforce Board										0.0%

										Other AWI (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								DOEA

										Older Americans Act										0.0%

										Community Care for Elderly										0.0%

										Other DOEA (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								DCA

										Community Services										0.0%

										Other DCA (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Admin. Revenue										0.0%

								APD

										Office of Disability Determination										0.0%

										Developmental Services										0.0%

										Other APD (specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								DJJ

										(specify in explanation)										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								Other Fed or State

										xxx										0.0%

										xxx										0.0%

										xxx										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								Other Revenues

										Interest Earnings										0.0%

										xxxx										0.0%

										xxxx										0.0%

										Bus Pass Program Revenue										0.0%

								Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit

										Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve

										Balancing Revenue is Short By =				None		$   1

										Total Revenues =		$0		$828,388		$865,666				4.5%

								EXPENDITURES  (CTC/Operators ONLY / Do NOT include Coordination Contractors!)

						Operating Expenditures

								Labor												0.0%

								Fringe Benefits												0.0%

								Services												0.0%

								Materials and Supplies						$   166,150		$   173,627				4.5%

								Utilities												0.0%

								Casualty and Liability												0.0%

								Taxes												0.0%

								Purchased Transportation:												0.0%

						0				Purchased Bus Pass Expenses										0.0%

										School Bus Utilization Expenses										0.0%

										Contracted Transportation Services				$   747,085		$   780,704				4.5%

										Other										0.0%

								Miscellaneous												0.0%

								Operating Debt Service - Principal & Interest												0.0%

								Leases and Rentals												0.0%

								Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund												0.0%

								In-Kind, Contributed Services				$   -		$   -		$   -				0.0%

								Allocated Indirect						$   (84,848)		$   (88,665)				4.5%

						Capital Expenditures

								Equip. Purchases with Grant Funds												0.0%

								Equip. Purchases with Local Revenue												0.0%

								Equip. Purchases with Rate Generated Rev.												0.0%

								Capital Debt Service - Principal & Interest												0.0%

								0												0.0%

										0		$0		$0		$0

										Total Expenditures =		$0		$828,388		$865,666				4.5%

										0				0		0						0

						Once completed, proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Budgeted Rate Base"

								0

								0

								0		0		0		0		0		0		0		0



&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N

If you are pricing School Board services using the rates in this spreadsheet, confirm so in the explanation.  Also, in the Program-Wide Rates sheet, INCLUDE the trip and passenger miles on the respective sheets IF you are using the rate model to price your School Board services.

EXPLAIN whether the 5311 operating revenue is generated as an overall system operating expense subsidy OR being paid at the per unit trip or mile rates generated by this or prior spreadsheets.  This will determine where to place the revenue in the following Budgeted Rate Base sheet.

Monies Contributed to Capital Equipment Replacement Fund annually based on a depreciation schedule for existing equipment are treated as operating expenditures.  When replacement equipment is actually purchased from this Fund, it should NOT appear again as a capital expenditure on this worksheet.  That would be double counting.

Includes capital equipment purchased with grant funds, or local or rate-generated revenues, or with Debt Service Payments (principal and interest) – but NOT with revenues from the Contrib. to Capital Equipment Replacement Fund.

Figures in this column should be auditable; related to the transportation services priced by the rate model; and supported by a documented cost allocation plan in multi-functional organizations.

This spreadsheet has the ability to accurately calculate both a "subsidized" & "unsubsidized" price for services.  However, in certain situations it can NOT do both perfectly IF you have included Expense, Revenue, and trip/mile projections related to services that are priced different than what is calculated by this spreadsheet.

Ideally, you should have a "documented" cost/revenue allocation plan that relates to each functional activity or differently priced service; and each differently priced service would have its own rate model spreadsheet.  In reality it is not uncommon to have certain purchased transportation services priced minutely different than what this rate model has calculated.  It is important to know, in these situations the calculated rate will be subsidizing the transportation services which have a special price, OR vice versa.

The prelude to putting any expense and revenue information into this pricing spreadsheet is to determine the portion of such expense and revenues attributable to the services being priced, and to do so in accordance with your documented cost/revenue allocation plan.  Your cost/revenue allocation plan should be available for review by auditing agencies.

&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N



Rate Base Adjustment

		

						Rate Base Adjustment Worksheet														Version 1.4				CTC:				Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services

																								County:				Nassau

						DO NOT COMPLETE THIS WORKSHEET UNTIL THE 3rd YEAR OF USING THE RATE CALCULATION MODEL TO COMPUTE RATES FOR SERVICE!

						Section I - Identification of Actual Subsidy Revenue

						1.		Complete applicable GREEN cells in column 3; YELLOW and BLUE cells are automatically completed in column 3

						2.		Complete applicable GOLD cells in column 5.

												Prior Year's ACTUALS								What amount, if any, of the Actual Rev. in col. 2 was generated at the per unit rate of the prior year's rate spreadsheet, OR used as local match?				Actual Rate Subsidy Revenue EXcluded from the Rate Base				What amount, if any, of the Actual Revenue in col. 4 came from Grant Funds to purchase equipment, OR was used as match for the purchase of equipment?

												from

												July 1st of

												2023

												to

												June 30th of

												2024

						1						2								3				4				5

								REVENUES (CTC/Operators ONLY)

								Local Non-Govt

										Farebox		$   -												$   -														YELLOW cells

										Medicaid Co-Pay Received		$   -								$   -				$   -														are NEVER Generated by Applying Authorized Rates

										Donations/ Contributions		$   -								$   -				$   -

										In-Kind, Contributed Services		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other		$   -												$   -

										Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								Local Government

										District School Board		$   -												$   -														BLUE cells

										Compl. ADA Services		$   -								$   -				$   -														are funds generated by rates in the prior year's spreadsheet

										County Cash		$   -												$   -

										County In-Kind, Contributed Services		$   -								$   -				$   -

										City Cash		$   -												$   -

										City In-kind, Contributed Services		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other Cash		$   -												$   -

										Other In-Kind, Contributed Services		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								CTD																								local match req.						GREEN cells

										Non-Spons. Trip Program		$   -								$   -				$   -								$   -						MAY BE Revenue Generated by Applying

										Non-Spons. Capital Equipment		$   -								$   -				$   -				$   -				$   -						Authorized Rate per Mile/Trip Charges

										Rural Capital Equipment		$   -								$   -				$   -				$   -				$   -

										Other TD		$   -												$   -														Fill in that portion of Actual revenue in Column 2 that was GENERATED through the application of the prior year rate spreadsheet's authorized per mile, per trip, or combination per trip plus per mile rates.   Also, include the amount of funds that were used as local match for Transportation Services and NOT Capital Equipment purchases.  

If the Farebox Revenues were used as a source of Local Match Dollars, then identify the appropriate amount of Farebox Revenue that represents the portion of Local Match required on any state or federal grants.  This does not mean that Farebox is the only source for Local Match.  

Please review all Grant Applications and Agreements containing State and/or Federal funds for the proper Match Requirement levels and allowed sources.

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								USDOT & FDOT

										49 USC 5307		$   -								$   -				$   -

										49 USC 5310		$   -								$   -				$   -				$   -				$   -

										49 USC 5311 (Operating)		$   -												$   -

										49 USC 5311(Capital)		$   -								$   -				$   -				$   -				$   -

										Block Grant		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Service Development		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Commuter Assistance		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other DOT		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Admin. Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								AHCA

										Medicaid		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other AHCA		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								DCF

										Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Family Safety & Preservation		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv.		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other DCF		$   -												$   -														GOLD cells

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -														Fill in that portion of Actual Rate Subsidy Revenue in Column 4 that came from Grant Funds Earmarked by the Funding Source for Purchasing Capital Equipment.  Also include the portion of Local Funds used as Match related to the Purchase of Capital Equipment if a match amount was required by the Funding Source.

								DOH

										Children Medical Services		$   -								$   -				$   -

										County Public Health		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other DOH		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								DOE (state)

										Carl Perkins		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Div of Blind Services		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Vocational Rehabilitation		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Day Care Programs		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other DOE		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								AWI

										WAGES/Workforce Board		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other AWI		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								DOEA

										Older Americans Act		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Community Care for Elderly		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other DOEA		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								DCA

										Community Services		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other DCA		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								APD

										Office of Disability Determination		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Developmental Services		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Other APD (specify in explanation)		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								DJJ

										DJJ		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								Other Fed or State

										xxx		$   -												$   -

										xxx		$   -												$   -

										xxx		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								Other Revenues

										Interest Earnings		$   -								$   -				$   -

										xxxx		$   -												$   -

										xxxx		$   -												$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -				$   -

								Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit

										Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve		$   -								$   -				$   -

										Total Revenues =		$   -								$   -				$   -				$   -

																												$   -

																												Amount of Actual Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue

						Section II - Actual v. Budgeted Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue

						1.				In the GREEN cell below, input the Total Budgeted Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue from Fiscal Year that appears below:

																												2023		-		2024

														Actual Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue		=				$   -

										Same Fiscal Year's Total Budgeted Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue						=				na

								Actual Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue Over / (Under) Budgeted Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue								=				$   -				Rate Base Adjustment

						Once Completed, Proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Budgeted Rate Base"



&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N

If the Farebox Revenues are used as a source of Local Match Dollars, then identify the appropriate amount of Farebox Revenue that represents the portion of Local Match required on any state or federal grants.  This does not mean that Farebox is the only source for Local Match.  Please review all Grant Applications and Agreements containing State and Federal funds for the proper Match Requirement levels and allowed sources.

What amount of these funds are earmarked as local match on a transportation service grant?  See GREEN CELL notes on the right.

What amount of these funds are earmarked as local match on a transportation service grant?  See GREEN CELL notes on the right.

What amount of these funds are earmarked as local match on a transportation service grant?  See GREEN CELL notes on the right.

Show only the amount of revenue that is generated by billing the funding source for transportation services provided at the approved rate per unit.  Also, include the amount of funds that are earmarked for local match for Transportation Services and not Capital Equipment purchases.

Show only the amount of revenue that is generated by billing the funding source for Transportation Services provided at the approved rate per unit.  Also, include the amount of funds that are earmarked for local match for Transportation Services and not Capital Equipment purchases.

This RED cell displays the difference between the totals for col. 4 and col. 5.  It is the Operating Subsidy portion of revenue that is removed from the rate base.

If the actual operating rate subsidy revenues were less than the budgeted amount used 2 years earlier, it means the rates were set too high back then.  In this case, a downward adjustment will made to the revenue amounts expected to be generated from applying service rates in the upcoming budget year, thereby lowering the proposed  rates below what they would otherwise need to be.  Conversely, if the actual operating rate subsidy revenues were more than the budgeted amount, an upward adjustment will be made to the revenue amounts expected to be generated from applying rates in the upcoming budget year, thereby increasing the proposed rates above what they would otherwise need to be.

If you have already adjusted for Actual Prior year differences in subsequent years and do not wish to make this correction, enter NA and the worksheet will show $0 rate base adjustment.

PURPOSE:  Because the Rate Calculation Model relies on projected passenger trips and passenger miles and service differential factors, it will never be perfect.  Sometimes the rates will be slightly high; other times they will be slightly low.  The Rate Base Adjustment worksheet is designed to correct for this imprecision by calculating and applying an adjustment 2 years later, if needed.
The Rate Base Adjustment worksheet determines whether the actual revenues received from sources other than agencies purchasing paratransit services for transportation disadvantaged passengers and grants earmarked by grantors for capital equipment or required deliverables were greater or less than the budgeted amounts used 2 years earlier when the rates were determined by the Rate Calculation Model.
IMPORTANT:  This worksheet should not be completed until the 3rd year of using the Rate Calculation Model.  This is the first time actual revenues will be available that relate to a proposed budget used by the Rate Calculation Model to determine service rates per passenger trip/passenger mile.

Make sure you read the RED cell to the right in completing this cell.

An increases in the rate base adjustment raises the proposed rates & the unsubsidized cost.   A decrease in the rate base adjustment lowers the proposed rates & lowers the unsubsidized cost.

The 1st year for which the budgeted rate subsidy revenue will be available for use on this worksheet will be 2 years after starting to use this rate calculation model, meaning the 3rd year of use. 

For the 1st and 2nd year of use, enter NA in the GREEN cell to the left.  The worksheet will then show $0 rate base adjustment. 

In the 3rd year of use, enter the budgeted operating rate subsidy revenue from 2 years before.  It can be found on the Budgeted Rate Base worksheet for that year.  If you have already adjusted Actual Prior year differences in subsequent years and do not wish to make this correction, enter NA and the worksheet will show $0 rate base adjustment.  Typically a rate base adjustment is NOT needed.

&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N



Budgeted Rate Base

		

						Budgeted Rate Base Worksheet														Version 1.4		CTC:				Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services

																						County:				Nassau

						1.		Complete applicable GREEN cells in column 3; YELLOW and BLUE cells are automatically completed in column 3

						2.		Complete applicable GOLD cells in column and 5

												Upcoming Year's BUDGETED Revenues								What amount of the Budgeted Revenue in col. 2 will be generated at the rate per unit determined by this spreadsheet, OR used as local match for these type revenues?		Budgeted Rate Subsidy Revenue EXcluded from the Rate Base				What amount of the Subsidy Revenue in col. 4 will come from funds to purchase equipment, OR will be used as match for the purchase of equipment?

												from

												July 1st of

												2025

												to

												June 30th of

												2026

										1		2								3		4				5

								REVENUES (CTC/Operators ONLY)

								Local Non-Govt

										Farebox		$   19,504								$   8,547		$   10,957																YELLOW cells

										Medicaid Co-Pay Received		$   -										$   -																are NEVER Generated by Applying Authorized Rates

										Donations/ Contributions		$   -										$   -

										In-Kind, Contributed Services		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other		$   -										$   -

										Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								Local Government

										District School Board		$   -								$   -		$   -																BLUE cells

										Compl. ADA Services		$   -								$   -		$   -																Should be funds generated by rates in this spreadsheet

										County Cash		$   76,924								$   76,924		$   (0)

										County In-Kind, Contributed Services		$   -								$   -		$   -

										City Cash		$   -										$   -

										City In-kind, Contributed Services		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other Cash		$   -										$   -

										Other In-Kind, Contributed Services		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								CTD																						local match req.								GREEN cells

										Non-Spons. Trip Program		$   769,238								$   769,238		$   -				$   -						$   85,471						MAY BE Revenue Generated by Applying

										Non-Spons. Capital Equipment		$   -								$   -		$   -				$   -						$   -						Authorized Rate per Mile/Trip Charges

										Rural Capital Equipment		$   -								$   -		$   -				$   -						$   -

										Other TD		$   -										$   -																Fill in that portion of budgeted revenue in Column 2 that will be GENERATED through the application of authorized per mile, per trip, or combination per trip plus per mile rates.   Also, include the amount of funds that are Earmarked as local match for Transportation Services and NOT Capital Equipment purchases.  

If the Farebox Revenues are used as a source of Local Match Dollars, then identify the appropriate amount of Farebox Revenue that represents the portion of Local Match required on any state or federal grants.  This does not mean that Farebox is the only source for Local Match.  

Please review all Grant Applications and Agreements containing State and/or Federal funds for the proper Match Requirement levels and allowed sources.

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								USDOT & FDOT

										49 USC 5307		$   -								$   -		$   -

										49 USC 5310		$   -								$   -		$   -				$   -						$   -

										49 USC 5311 (Operating)		$   -										$   -

										49 USC 5311(Capital)		$   -								$   -		$   -				$   -						$   -

										Block Grant		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Service Development		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Commuter Assistance		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other DOT		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								AHCA

										Medicaid		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other AHCA		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								DCF

										Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Family Safety & Preservation		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv.		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other DCF		$   -										$   -																GOLD cells

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -																Fill in that portion of Budgeted Rate Subsidy Revenue in Column 4 that will come from Funds Earmarked by the Funding Source for Purchasing Capital Equipment.  Also include the portion of Local Funds earmarked as Match related to the Purchase of Capital Equipment if a match amount is required by the Funding Source.

								DOH

										Children Medical Services		$   -								$   -		$   -

										County Public Health		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other DOH		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								DOE (state)

										Carl Perkins		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Div of Blind Services		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Vocational Rehabilitation		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Day Care Programs		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other DOE		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								AWI

										WAGES/Workforce Board		$   -								$   -		$   -

										AWI		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								DOEA

										Older Americans Act		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Community Care for Elderly		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other DOEA		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								DCA

										Community Services		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other DCA		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								APD

										Office of Disability Determination		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Developmental Services		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Other APD		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								DJJ

										DJJ		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								Other Fed or State

										xxx		$   -										$   -

										xxx		$   -										$   -

										xxx		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								Other Revenues

										Interest Earnings		$   -								$   -		$   -

										xxxx		$   -										$   -

										xxxx		$   -										$   -

										Bus Pass Program Revenue		$   -								$   -		$   -

								Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit

										Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve		$   -								$   -		$   -

										Total Revenues =		$   865,666								$   854,709		$   10,957				$   -

								EXPENDITURES (CTC/Operators ONLY)																		$   10,957

						Operating Expenditures																				Amount of Budgeted Operating Rate Subsidy Revenue

								Labor				$   -

								Fringe Benefits				$   -

								Services				$   -

								Materials and Supplies				$   173,627

								Utilities				$   -

								Casualty and Liability				$   -

								Taxes				$   -

								Purchased Transportation:

										Purchased Bus Pass  Expenses		$   -																																														$854,710

										School Bus Utilization Expenses		$   -

										Contracted Transportation Services		$   780,704

										Other		$   -

								Miscellaneous				$   -																																														$854,710

								Operating Debt Service - Principal & Interest				$   -

								Leases and Rentals				$   -

								Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund				$   -

								In-Kind, Contributed Services				$   -

								Allocated Indirect				$   (88,665)

						Capital Expenditures

								Equip. Purchases with Grant Funds				$   -

								Equip. Purchases with Local Revenue				$   -

								Equip. Purchases with Rate Generated Rev.				$   -

								Capital Debt Service - Principal & Interest				$   -

								0				$   -

										Total Expenditures =		$   865,666								$   -

										minus EXCLUDED Subsidy Revenue =		$   10,957

										Budgeted Total Expenditures INCLUDED in Rate Base =		$   854,710

										Rate Base Adjustment1 =

										Adjusted Expenditures Included in Rate Base =		$   854,710

																				1 The Difference between Expenses and Revenues for Fiscal Year:		2023		-		2024

								Once Completed, Proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Program-wide Rates"



&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N

If the Farebox Revenues are used as a source of Local Match Dollars, then identify the appropriate amount of Farebox Revenue that represents the portion of Local Match required on any state or federal grants.  This does not mean that Farebox is the only source for Local Match, nor that all farebox revenue is applied as match.  Please review all Grant Applications and Agreements containing State and Federal funds for the proper Match Requirement levels and allowed sources.  Farebox revenues beyond that needed for match is typically applied as system subsidy in column 4.

What amount of these funds are earmarked as local match on a transportation service grant?  See GREEN CELL notes on the right.  Revenues beyond that needed for match is typically applied as system subsidy in column 4.

What amount of these funds are earmarked as local match on a transportation service grant?  See GREEN CELL notes on the right. Revenues beyond that needed for match is typically applied as system subsidy in column 4.

What amount of these funds are earmarked as local match on a transportation service grant?  See GREEN CELL notes on the right.  Revenues beyond that needed for match is typically applied as system subsidy in column 4, unless they are being generated by the purchase of services at the rates calculated by this spreadsheet.

Show only the amount of revenue that is generated by billing the funding source for transportation services provided at the approved rate per unit.  Also, include the amount of funds that are earmarked for local match for Transportation Services and not Capital Equipment purchases.

Show only the amount of revenue that is generated by billing the funding source for Transportation Services provided at the approved rate per unit.  Also, include the amount of funds that are earmarked for local match for Transportation Services and not Capital Equipment purchases.

Purpose:  The Budgeted Rate Base worksheet determines the BASE funding amount that will be divided by the upcoming fiscal year's projected passenger miles and trips.  The initial rate base is the amount of expenditures that must be funded with rate-generated revenues.

Revenues EXcluded from the rate base will fund the remaining proposed expenditures.  EXcluded revenues include operating system subsidies and grants (including their match) that have been included in the proposed budget.

In this worksheet projected revenues are further differentiated between being generated: through the purchase of service at the unit price calculated in this spreadsheet (rate base); or as a system operating subsidy; or for purchasing capital equipment. 

Unless otherwise reconciled, the initial rate base may be adjusted upward or downward starting in the 3rd year of using the Rate Calculation Model.  If necessary, appropriate and justified, the adjustment amount is based on program income (including unapproved profit) or losses from the prior year's "actual" and auditable figures.

This RED cell displays the difference between the totals for col. 4 and col. 5.  Both Operating and Capital subsidy revenues are removed from the rate base calculations.

A shift of Budgeted Rate Subsidy Revenue from column 4 to this column RAISES your rate.

A shift of Actual Rate subsidy revenue from column 4 to this column RAISES your rate.

1 Rate Base Adjustment Cell

If necessary and justified, this cell is where you could optionally adjust proposed service rates up or down to adjust for program revenue (or unapproved profit), or losses from the Actual period shown at the bottom of the Comprehensive Budget Sheet. This is not the only acceptable location or method of reconciling for excess gains or losses.  If allowed by the respective funding sources, excess gains may also be adjusted by providing system subsidy revenue or by the purchase of additional trips in a period following the Actual period.  If such an adjustment has been made, provide notation in the respective exlanation area of the Comprehensive Budget tab.

&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N



Program-wide Rates

		

						Worksheet for Program-wide Rates																CTC:				Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services						Version 1.4

																						County:				Nassau

						1.		Complete Total Projected Passenger Miles and ONE-WAY Passenger Trips (GREEN cells) below

										Do NOT include trips or miles related to Coordination Contractors!

										Do NOT include School Board trips or miles UNLESS…........

										INCLUDE all ONE-WAY passenger trips and passenger miles related to services you purchased from your transportation operators!

										Do NOT include trips or miles for services provided to the general public/private pay UNLESS..

										Do NOT include escort activity as passenger trips or passenger miles unless charged the full rate for service!

										Do NOT include fixed route bus program trips or passenger miles!

														PROGRAM-WIDE RATES

																				Total Projected Passenger Miles =		166,236						Fiscal Year

																				Rate Per Passenger Mile =		$   5.14						2025		-		2026

																				Total Projected Passenger Trips =		23,505

																				Rate Per Passenger Trip =		$   36.36						Avg. Passenger Trip Length =								7.1		Miles

												Rates If No Revenue Funds Were Identified As Subsidy Funds

																				Rate Per Passenger Mile =		$   5.21

																				Rate Per Passenger Trip =		$   36.83

								Once Completed, Proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Multiple Service Rates"

				Vehicle Miles

				The miles that a vehicle is scheduled to or actually travels from the time it pulls out from its garage to go into revenue service to the time it pulls in from revenue service.

				Vehicle Revenue Miles (VRM)

				The miles that vehicles are scheduled to or actually travel while in revenue service. Vehicle revenue miles exclude:

				Deadhead

				Operator training, and

				Vehicle maintenance testing, as well as

				School bus and charter services.

				Passenger Miles (PM)

				The cumulative sum of the distances ridden by each passenger.



&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N

This worksheet inputs the CTC’s total projected passenger miles and total projected passenger trips related to the projected expenses & revenues entered into this spreadsheet.  A program-wide rate per passenger mile and rate per passenger trip will be computed for comparison purposes only.  The total projected passenger miles and passenger trips on this worksheet are automatically carried over and used in the following worksheet (Multiple Service Rates) where the rates are further differentiated by ambulatory, wheelchair, stretcher, and group services.

In addition to displaying the program-wide rates, the worksheet also calculates what those program-wide rates would need to be in order to generate enough revenue to balance the CTC’s proposed budget if all grants and operating subsidies were eliminated. 

This spreadsheet calculates both a "subsidized" & "unsubsidized" price for services.  However, in certain situations it can NOT do both perfectly IF you have included Expense, Revenue, and trip/mile projections related to services that are priced different than what is calculated by this spreadsheet.

Ideally, you should have a "documented" and consistantly applied cost/revenue allocation plan that relates to each functional activity or differently priced service; and each differently priced service would have its own rate model spreadsheet.  In reality it is not uncommon to have certain purchased transportation services priced minutely different than what this rate model has calculated.  It is important to know, in these situations the calculated rate will be subsidizing the transportation services which have a special price, OR vice versa.

The prelude to putting any expense and revenue information into this pricing spreadsheet is to determine the portion of such expense and revenues attributable to the services being priced, and to do so in accordance with your documented cost/revenue allocation plan.  Your cost/revenue allocation plan should be available for review by auditing agencies.

UNLESS, you are pricing their services with this spreadsheet and you have included their respective revenue and expenses in the comprehensive budget.

UNLESS, you are pricing their services with this spreadsheet and you have included their respective revenue and expenses in the comprehensive budget!    If so, you must enter their revenue as LOCAL NON-GOVT "OTHER" or "OTHER REVENUES", and explain in the respective section.

&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N



Multiple Service Rates

		

								Worksheet for Multiple Service Rates								CTC:				Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services				Version 1.4

								1.		Answer the questions by completing the GREEN cells starting in Section I for all services						County:				Nassau

								2.		Follow the DARK RED prompts directing you to skip or go to certain questions and sections based on previous answers

								SECTION I:  Services Provided

														1		Ambulatory		1		Wheelchair		2		Stretcher		2		Group

								1.		Will the CTC be providing any of these Services to transportation disadvantaged passengers in the upcoming budget year?........................................................................................						Yes				Yes				Yes				Yes

																No				No				No				No

																Go to Section II for Ambulatory Service				Go to Section II for Wheelchair Service				STOP! Do NOT Complete Sections II - V for Stretcher Service				STOP! Do NOT Complete Sections II - V for Group Service

								SECTION II:  Contracted Services

														1		Ambulatory		1		Wheelchair		2		Stretcher		2		Group

								1.		Will the CTC be contracting out any of these Services TOTALLY in the upcoming budget year?....						Yes				Yes				Yes				Yes

																No				No				No				No

																Answer # 2 for Ambulatory Service				Answer # 2 for Wheelchair Service				Do Not Complete Section II for Stretcher Service				Do Not Complete Section II for Group Service

								2.		If you answered YES to #1 above, do you want to arrive at the billing rate by simply dividing the proposed contract amount by the projected Passenger Miles / passenger trips?.....				2		Yes		2		Yes		2		Yes		2		Yes

																No				No				No				No

																Leave Blank				Leave Blank				Do NOT Complete Section II for Stretcher Service				Do NOT Complete Section II for Group Service

								3.		If you answered YES to #1 & #2 above, how much is the proposed contract amount for the service?																						$   -		0

												How many of the total projected Passenger Miles relate to the contracted service?																				0		0

												How many of the total projected passenger trips relate to the contracted service?																				0		0

												Effective Rate for Contracted Services:				Ambulatory				Wheelchair				Stretcher				Group

												per Passenger Mile		=		$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0

												per Passenger Trip		=		$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0

																Go to Section III for Ambulatory Service				Go to Section III for Wheelchair Service				Do NOT Complete Section II for Stretcher Service				Do NOT Complete Section II for Group Service

								4.		If you answered # 3 & want a Combined Rate per Trip PLUS a per Mile add-on for 1 or more						Combination Trip and Mile Rate

												services, INPUT the Desired per Trip Rate (but must be less than per trip rate in #3 above		=

												Rate per Passenger Mile for Balance		=		$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0

																Leave Blank and Go to Section III for Ambulatory Service				Leave Blank and Go to Section III for Wheelchair Service				Do NOT Complete Section II for Stretcher Service				Do NOT Complete Section II for Group Service

								SECTION III:  Escort Service						2

								1.		Do you want to charge all escorts a fee?.................................................................						Yes

																No

																Skip #2 - 4 and Section IV and Go to Section V

								2.		If you answered Yes to #1, do you want to charge the fee per passenger trip OR ………....						Pass. Trip		1		Leave Blank

												per passenger mile?.........................				Pass. Mile

								3.		If you answered Yes to # 1 and completed # 2, for how many of the projected

												Passenger Trips / Passenger Miles will a passenger be accompanied by an escort?								Leave Blank

																				$   - 0

								4.		How much will you charge each escort?....................................................................										Leave Blank

								SECTION IV:  Group Service Loading								Do NOT Complete Section IV

								1.		If the message "You Must Complete This Section" appears to the right, what is the projected total

										number of Group Service Passenger Miles? (otherwise leave blank)............................

																0				Loading Rate

												………. And what is the projected total number of Group Vehicle Revenue Miles?								0.00		to 1.00

																0

								Computations:

										Differentiation Method:  Wait Time & Grouping

										Factor % Weight

										50.0%		Factor 1:  Wait Time				Ambulatory				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group (per individual)

												Average # of minutes for pick-up per stop				7				12				25				3

												Average # of minutes for drop-off per stop				7				12				25				7

												Average Wait Time in Hours =				0.23				0.40				0.83				0.00

												Service Differentiation for Factor 1 (Ambulatory = 1.00)				1.00				1.71				3.57				0.00

										50.0%		Factor 2:  Grouping

												Projected total Group PASSENGER Passenger Miles =																0

												Projected total Group ROUTE Miles =																0

												Average # of Group Passenger Rev. Miles per Group Route Mile =																0.00

										100.0%		Service Differentiation for Factor 2 (Inverse; Ambulatory = 1.00)																1.00

										0

														Service Differentiation for All Factors, with APPLIED factor weighting =		1.00				1.71				3.57				0.50

								Final Service Differentiation:

																Ambulatory				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group				Aggregate Wght

												Relative Differentiation =				1.00				1.71				3.57				0.00				6.29

												(Ambulatory = 1.00)

								SECTION V:  Rate Calculations for Mulitple Services:																																				$   854,709.69		$   854,709.69

								1.		Input Projected Passenger Miles and Passenger Trips for each Service in the GREEN cells and the Rates for each Service will be calculated automatically

										* Miles and Trips you input must sum to the total for all Services entered on the "Program-wide Rates" Worksheet, MINUS miles

										and trips for contracted services IF the rates were calculated in the Section II above

										* Be sure to leave the service BLANK if you answered NO in Section I or YES to question #2 in Section II

																										RATES FOR FY:		2025		-		2026

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																				0				0				Leave Blank				Leave Blank

														Projected Passenger Miles (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section II) =		166,236		=		141,001		+		25,235		+				+		0														$   - 0

																Rate per Passenger Mile =				$4.64				$7.95				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00										$   854,709.69		$   854,709.69

																																per passenger		per group

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																				0				0				Leave Blank				Leave Blank

														Projected Passenger Trips (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section II) =		23,505		=		20,109		+		3,396		+				+

																Rate per Passenger Trip =				$32.96				$56.51				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00										$   854,709.69		$   854,709.69

																																per passenger		per group

								2		If you  answered # 1 above and want a COMBINED Rate per Trip PLUS a per Mile add-on for 1 or more services,…										Combination Trip and Mile Rate

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																				0				0				Leave Blank				Leave Blank

																…INPUT the Desired Rate per Trip (but must be less than per trip rate above) =																		$0.00

																Rate per Passenger Mile for Balance =				$4.64				$7.95				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00										$   854,709.69		$   854,709.69

																				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00				per passenger		per group

																																0

																				0				$0				0.0				$0

																		Rates If No Revenue Funds Were Identified As Subsidy Funds

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																Rate per Passenger Mile =				$4.70				$8.05				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00										$   865,666.37

																																per passenger		per group

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																Rate per Passenger Trip =				$33.38				$57.23				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00										$   865,666.37

																																per passenger		per group

																		Program These Rates Into Your Medicaid Encounter Data



&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N

&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N



Version Notes

		Version 1.4 Notes:

		1.  Created new sheet -Version Notes.

		2.  Added Version 1.4 to top of first sheet, and linked the version number to the top of all other sheets.

		3.  Eliminated Rate Base Adjustment sheet and changed method of adjusting for program income (or unapproved profit) or losses in Actual year.

		4.  Improved the instructions at the top of columns 3,4, and 5 of the Budgeted Rate Base sheet.

		5.  Added comment box instructions to Budgeted Rate Base sheet.

		6.  Replaced DOT Revenue 5311(F) row on Comprehensive Budget Sheet to delineate between 5311 Operating vs Capital.

		7.  Changed the Green and Gold cell instructions on the Budgeted Rate Base sheet.

		8.  Added 10% match calculating cells for the CTD Trip, CTD Capital, and 5310 5311 capital revenues. Located to the right of the respective rows on Budgeted Rate Base sheets.

		9.  Added comment to Distr Schl Board revenue in Comp Budget sheet with instructions in situations where the calculated rates are used in generating Schl Brd Rev.

		10. Added comment to "49 USC 5311" rev in Comp Bdgt sheet to identify whether operating rev is generated by rates in this spreadsheet.

		11. Added comment to "Contr to Cap Equip Repl" Fund on Comp Budg sheet. (cell D170 )

		12. Added comment to "Capital Expenditures" section on Comp Budg sheet. (cell C173)

		13. Added formula to note balance error for Actual Prior year in cell F181 of Comp Budg sheet.

		14. Added explanatory box at bottom of Budgeted Rate Base sheet about Rate Base Adjustments from Actual Prior year.

		15. Added Rate Base Adjustment cell to Budgeted Rate Base sheet to adjust for program income (or unapproved profit) or losses.

		16. Expanded instructions and added comments clarifying which passenger mile and passenger trips should be included on Program-wide Rates sheet.

		17. Added formula on Program-wide Rates sheet to show Average Passenger Trip Length.





adj

		

								Worksheet for Multiple Service Rates								CTC:				Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services

								1.		Answer the questions by completing the GREEN cells starting in Section I for all services

								2.		Follow the DARK RED prompts directing you to skip or go to certain questions and sections based on previous answers

								SECTION I:  SERVICES PROVIDED

														1		Ambulatory		1		Wheelchair		1		Stretcher		1		Group

								1.		Do you provide any of these Services?................................................................................................................................						Yes				Yes				Yes				Yes

																No				No				No				No

																Go to Section II for Ambulatory Service				Go to Section II for Wheelchair Service				Go to Section II for Stretcher Service				Go to Section II for Group Service

								SECTION II:  Contracted Services

														2		Ambulatory		2		Wheelchair		2		Stretcher		2		Group

								1.		Do you contract out any of these service TOTALLY?................................................................................................................................						Yes				Yes				Yes				Yes

																No				No				No				No

																Skip # 2, 3 &  4 and Go to Section III for Ambulatory Service				Skip # 2, 3 &  4 and Go to Section III for Wheelchair Service				Skip # 2, 3 &  4 and Go to Section III for Stretcher Service				Skip # 2, 3 &  4 and Go to Section III for Group Service

								2.		If you answered YES to #1 above, do you want to arrive at the billing rate by simply dividing the proposed contract amount by the projected revenue miles / passenger trips?.......................................................................				2		Yes		2		Yes		2		Yes		1		Yes

																No				No				No				No

																Leave Blank				Leave Blank				Leave Blank				Leave Blank

								3.		If you answered YES to # 1 & # 2 above, how much is the proposed contract amount for the service?...........																						$   -

												How many of the total projected revenue miles relate to the contracted service?																				0

												How many of the total projected passenger trips relate to the contracted service?																				0

												Effective Rate for Contracted Services:				Ambulatory				Wheelchair				Stretcher				Group

												per revenue mile		=		$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0

												per passenger trip		=		$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0

																Go to Section III for Ambulatory Service				Go to Section III for Wheelchair Service				Go to Section III for Stretcher Service				Go to Section III for Group Service

								4.		If you answered # 3 & want a Combined Rate per Trip PLUS a per Mile add-on for 1 or more services,....						Combination Rate

												….INPUT the Desired Rate per Trip (but must be less than per trip rate above)		=		$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0

												Rate per Revenue Mile for Balance		=		$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0				$   - 0

																Leave Blank and Go to Section III for Ambulatory Service				Leave Blank and Go to Section III for Wheelchair Service				Leave Blank and Go to Section III for Stretcher Service				Leave Blank and Go to Section III for Group Service

								SECTION III:  Escort Service						1

								1.		Do you want to charge all escorts a fee?...............................................................................................................................						Yes

																No

																Answer # 2, # 3 & # 4

								2.		If you answered Yes to # 1, do you want to charge per passenger trip OR per revenue mile?..........................						Pass. Trip		2		0

																Rev. Mile

								3.		If you answered Yes to # 1 and completed # 2, for how many of the projected passenger trips / revenue miles…

										….will a passenger be accompanied by an escort?.......................................................................................................										per Revenue Mile

																				$   - 0

								4.		How much will you charge each escort?..............................................................................................................................										per Revenue Mile

								SECTION IV:  Group Service								You Must Complete This Section!

								1.		If you answered YES in Section I and NO to #1 in Section II for Group Service, what is the projected total

										Group Passenger Revenue Miles?.........................................................................................................................................

												………. And what is the projected total Group Route miles?

								Computations:

										Differentiation Method:  Wait Time & Grouping

										Factor % Weight

										30.0%		Factor 1:  Wait Time				Ambulatory				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

												Average # of minutes for pick-up per stop				7				12				25				10

												Average # of minutes for drop-off per stop				7				12				25

												Average Wait Time in Hours =				0.23				0.40				0.83				0.00

												Service Differentiation for Factor 1 (Ambulatory = 1.00)				1.00				1.71				3.57				0.00

										70.0%		Factor 2:  Grouping

												Projected total Group PASSENGER Revenue Miles =																0

												Projected total Group ROUTE Miles =																0

												Average # of Group Passenger Rev. Miles per Group Route Mile =																0.00

										100.0%		Service Differentiation for Factor 2 (Inverse; Ambulatory = 1.00)				1.00				1.00				1.00				0.00

										0

																Service Differentiation for All Factors, with APPLIED factor weighting =				1.00				1.21				1.77				0.00

								Final Service Differentiation:

																Ambulatory				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group				Aggregate Wght

												Relative Differentiation =				1.00				1.71				3.57				0.00				6.29

												(Ambulatory = 1.00)

								SECTION V:  Rate Calculations for Mulitple Services:																																		$   854,709.69

								1.		Input Projected Revenue Miles and Passenger Trips for each Service in the GREEN cells and the Rates for each Service will be calculated automatically

										* Miles and Trips you input must sum to the total for all Services entered on the "Single Service Rates" Worksheet, MINUS miles and trips for contracted services IF the rates were calculated in the Section II above

										* Be sure to leave the service BLANK if you answered NO in Section I or YES to question #2 in Section II																																$0.00

																										RATES FOR FY:		2025		-		2026

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																				0				0				0.00				0						Does Not = Total Projected Revenue Miles, with adjmt. for contracted services

														Projected Revenue Miles (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section II) =		166,236

																Rate per Revenue Mile =				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

																																per passenger		per group								$0.00

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																				0				0				0.00				0						Does Not = Total Projected Passenger Trips, with adjmt. for contracted services

														Projected Passenger Trips (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section II) =		23,505																0

																Rate per Passenger Trip =				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

																																per passenger		per group

																																										$0.00

								2		If you  answered # 1 above and want a COMBINED Rate per Trip PLUS a per Mile add-on for 1 or more services,………										Combination Trip and Mile Rate

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																				0				0				0.00				0

																…INPUT the Desired Rate per Trip (but must be less than per trip rate above) =																		$0.00

																Rate per Revenue Mile for Balance =				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

																																per passenger		per group

																				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00

																				Rate If NOT Subsidized

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																Rate per Revenue Mile =				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

																																per passenger		per group

																				Ambul				Wheel Chair				Stretcher				Group

																Rate per Passenger Trip =				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00				$0.00		$0.00

																																per passenger		per group



&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N

&L&"Arial,Regular"&F:  &A&C&R&"Arial,Regular"Page &P of &N



Sheet1

		

				Oct 1st of		Sept 30th of

				July 1st of		June 30th of

				Jan 1st of		Dec 31st of





From: Nathaniel P. Ford <pford@itafla com>
‘Sent: Monday, June 3, 2024 2:11 PM

To: Executive Leadership Team <Executivel sadershipTeam @itafla comp; van Rodriguez
<urodrigu=2@itafiz com; Jessica Shepler < >

Ce: Kathryn ). Smith <ksmith@jafla com>
Subject: Fud: Congratulations as next CTC for Nassau County!

Begin forwarded message:

From: Janice Ancrum <janclum@nassaucountycoa org>
Date: June 3, 2024 at 1:45:55 PM EDT

To: "Nathaniel P. Ford" <nford@itafla com>

Ce: Greer Johnson Gills <gaillis@jtafia.com>, jgray@nassaucountyfl.com,
‘epayne@nefrc.org, Mike Hays <mhays@nassaucountycoa.org>, Karen
Hackett <hacket!0420@gmail com, Liz Dunn <Idunn@nassaucountycoa.org>
Subject: Congratulations as next CTC for Nassau County!

Good afternoon Nat,

Itis indeed my pleasure to congratulate and welcome JTA as the
next CTC for Nassau County, effective Oct 1, 2024. We're
convinced you will bring a robust public transportation system to
our community

Please contact me at your earliest convenience so we can begin
discussing plans and activities as we move forward. | can be
reached at (904) 502-5160 or at the above email address

Looking forward to working with you and your team for a smooth
transition!

Janice

Janice Ancrum; President & CEO
Nassau County Council on Aging & NassauTRANSIT






Trip & Equipment Grant Voluntary Dollars
[County. ‘Allocation *_| Local Match ** | _Total Funding. Funding__| Local Match ** | _Total Funding | Total Funding FY25-26
|Alachua $ 500,824 | $ 55,647 [ $ 556,471 | S 25]S 2]s 27($ 556,498
[Baker $ 223692 [ $ 24854 [ S 248,546 | S - s - s - 1S 248,546
Bay $ 545,786 | S 60,642 [ $ 606,428 | S 23 2]s 24(s 606,452
Bradford S 182,877 | S 20319 |$ 203,196 | $ - IS - s - 1S 203,196
Brevard $ 1634966 S 181,662 | S 1,816,628 | $ 68]% 7]s 75 1,816,703
[Broward S 5368687 S 596,520 | $ 5965207 | $ - 1S - s - 1S 5,965,207
[Calhoun $ 174,678 | $ 19,408 [ § 194,086 | S - 1S - s - 1S 194,086
|Charlotte $ 555,005 | $ 61,667 | S 616,672 | S 106 [$ 1S 173 616,789
|Citrus $ 667,318 | 74,146 | S 741,464 | S 45]s s5]s 5008 741,514
|Clay S 421,625 [ § 46,847 | $ 468,472 | $ 39(% 4ls 43[s 468,515
|Collier $ 740,125 | $ 82,236 [ $ 822,361 | $ 8|S s|s s3[s 822,414
| Columbia $ 297,815 [ § 33,090 (S 330,905 [ $ 3[s - s 3[s 330,908
DesSoto $ 121,556 [ $ 13,506 | $ 135,062 | $ 296 [ $ 32(s 3285 135,390
Dixie $ 206,838 | S 22,982 S 229,820 [ $ 2]s - s 2]s 229,822
Duval $ 1285160 [$ 142,795 [ $ 1,427,955 [ § 66]% 7]s 73S 1,428,028
Escambia $ 901,295 | $ 100,143 [ $ 1,001,438 | $ 1685 183 186 S 1,001,624
Flagler $ 907,974 [ § 100,886 | $ 1,008,860 | $ 298 3]s 32(s 1,008,892
[Franklin $ 140,997 [ $ 15,666 | S 156,663 | S - s - s - 1S 156,663
|Gadsden $ 364,973 | S 40,552 | $ 405,525 [ § 1S 1]s 12($ 405,537
[Gilchrist $ 140,201 | $ 15,577 [ $ 155,778 | $ 5303 |$ 5895 5892[S 161,670
|Glades $ 114,559 [ $ 12,7285 127,287 [ $ - 1S - s - 1S 127,287
|Gulf $ 238981 (S 26,553 [ $ 265534 | $ - 1S - s - 1S 265,534
[Hamilton $ 104,801 | $ 11,644 | S 116,445 [ $ - 1S - s - 1S 116,445
Hardee $ 120,037 | $ 13,337 [$ 133374 [ $ - 1S - s - 1S 133,374
Hendry s 2207675 24,529 |5 245,29 | 5 5[s -5 5[% 245,301
[Hernando $ 398,468 | S 48274 442,742 [ § 343 3]s 37($ 442,779
[Highlands $ 358,746 | S 39,860 S 398,606 | S 10]$ 1]s 1[s 398,617
Hillsborough | S 2,477,365 [ $ 275,262 | § 2,752,627 | § 7355 B[S 816 S 2,753,443
Holmes $ 221,849 | $ 24,605 | S 246,054 [ § 1]s - s 1]s 246,055
Indian River $ 343354 [ $ 38,150 [ 381,504 | $ 253 2]s 27($ 381,531
Jackson $ 420,033 [ 46,670 | $ 466,703 | S - s - s - 1S 466,703
Uefferson $ 207,408 | $ 23,045 [ 230,453 [ § - 1S - s - 1S 230,453
Lafayette s 1094615 121625 121,623 | $ s - s s 121,623
Lake $ 862,323 [ § 95813 [ $ 958,136 [ $ 2]s - s 2]s 958,138
Lee $ 11141125 123,790 [ $ 1,237,902 [ $ 546 [ S 60]$ 606 [ $ 1,238,508
Leon $ 697,505 | $ 77,500 | $ 775,005 | $ 2445 27($ 2711]S 775,276
Levy S 351,251 [ § 39,027 [ 390,278 [ $ 183 2]s 20](s 390,298
Liberty S ouges|s  assor]s  amon]s B s B 238,070
Madison $ 272,953 | $ 30328 S 303,281 [$ - 1S - s - 1S 303,281
[Manatee $ 485,278 [ § 53919 [$ 539,197 [ $ - 1S - s - 1S 539,197
[ Marion $ 806,616 | $ 89,624 | $ 896,240 | $ 1385 15([$ 153 ]S 896,393
[Martin $ 255,725 | $ 28,413 [$ 284,138 | § 763 8]s 845 284,222
Miami-Dade | S 5858,652 | $ 650,961 [ $ 6,509,613 | - 1S - s - 1S 6,509,613
[Monroe $ 035 | S 22,7815 227,816 | $ - 1S - s - 1S 227,816

s s 85,468 | S 854,687 | 5 s 2[s 2[5 854,708








Thank Eron,

| am reviewing the rates and Clay County’s Rate Model has an error. The funds needed for Local Match as to be $46,852 see below to correct the negative
amount on the Budgeted Rate Base tab you will need to change $42,166 on County Cash line item on the Comprehensive Budget tab to 46,852. When this is
adjusted the rates will also adjust by a few cents for AMB and WC trips, so the grant application will probably need to be adjusted as well.

- & e = a . 2025- - Read-Only - tibility Made + Saved to this PC v el e
fome Insert Draw Pagelayout Formulas Data Review View Automate Developer Help DYMOLabel Kofax PDF  Power Pivot [=cor
— = b - ~ v
4 [Acil Jho A A ] = T b
B N $ ~ s | & £ - P~
Ed S == 7] [ Format ~ &~
W Font Alignment Number Styles Cels Editing Senitivity | Add-ins
\TES AVAILABLE  Updates for Of to be installed. but first we need to close some apps. | Updatenow |
v fi v 46852
D 3 3 W1 3 K L M NO P QR S T v
Juy 1stor atthe rate per unit funds to purchase.
2025 determined by this equipment, OR.
© spreadsnest, OR | SHICIEd RAIE | i pe ygeq g
e usedas local (Subsidy Revenue| match forthe.
match forthese | EXcluded from purchase of
2026 type revenues? | the Rate Base equipment?
1 I 2 3 3 5

REVENUES erators ONL

Local Non-Govt
Farebox - YELLO)
Wedicaid Co-Pay Received : erated by A
Donations) Contributions z

in-Kind, Confributed Senices B
or

‘Bus Bass Program Revenue N

District School Board
Compl. ADA Senvices
"Eolinty Cash
‘Gounty in-Kind, Goniributed Services -
City Cash :
Cityinkind, Contributed Senices :
‘Gner Cash :
‘Otner inKind, Contribited Senvces :
Bus Pass Program Revenue -

BLUE
generated |

CT I (oc:! match req GREE!
‘fion-8pons. Trip Frogram 421564 8 421564 s = 5 46852 MAY BE Revenue Ge
Hon-Spons. Capital Equipment - $ - Ss - s - Authorized Rate pel
Rural Capital Equipment - s z T - s -

Other TD : [ = I Fill in that portion of budgetec
Bus Pass Program Revenue - § - -

will be GENERATED through th

Nassau same issue; if you don’t have the 8,547 in County Cash you can take 8,547 from Farebox and enter it in column J4 and enter 76,924 in cell J36 to
remove the -8,547. Rates on the grant application will probably need to be adjusted as well

@ sutoswe @or) B 9 O & 8 v Nassauratecalctemplate 2025-2026FirstSubrmission - Protected View » Saved tothis PC v pel (
Fle Home Insert Draw Pagelayout Formulas Data Review View Automate Developer Help DYMO Label KofaxPDF  Power Pivot
() PROTECTEDVIEW  Be careful—email attachments can contain viruses. Unless you need ta edit_ it's safer to stay in Protected View.
() UPDATES AVAILABLE Updates for O to be installed, but first we need to close some apps. | Update now
136 ~ Jev ssaT1
ABCD E 3 G H 1 J K L M NO P QR S T U
The Budaeled the Subsidy

3 from Revenue in col 2 Revenue in col. 4

will be generated will come from
0 July Tstof atthe rate per unit funds to purchase
1 2025 Getermined by this equipment, OR
- ) spreadsheet, OR | Dudgeted Rate | (iy'po coyag
Z o, usedas local (Subsidy Revenue| match forthe.

matchforthese | EXcluded from purchase of
4 2026 type revenues? | the Rate Base equipment?
5 7 z 3 ) 5
o
0
2 Loc
4 Farebox Y
5 Viedicaid € Py R Generate
6 Donations/ Contribiitions
7 InKin
8 Ofher
0 Bus Pass Program Reyenue
2 Local Government
4 District School Board
H Compl. ADA Senices
6] County Cash
7 County inKind, Confributsd Senices
8 City Cash
9 ity n-king, G
0 iher Cash
1 iher inKind, Conlributed Senices
3 Bus Pass Program Revenue
5 I
7 Hion-Sporis. Trip Bragram 786238 s 789,23 T - 5 8547 MAY BE Reven
8 Non-Spons. Capital Equipment - ) - s - s - Authorized R
9 Rural Capital Equipment - 5 - S s - s =
0 Other TD. : [ = I in that portion of buc
g fies baas|rogaeitevenee] g 2 2 g will be GENERATED throl
3 USDOT & FDOT I per mile, per trip, or con

Also double check that revenues and expenses balance on the Comprehensive Budget tabs they are off by 1.00
Let me know if you have any questions,

Dan

70



Feris Comeressin or e

’ = Daniel Zeruto
Transportation Disadvantaged Specialist
7 i{ Project Manager — Area 2
Transportation Tel: (850) 410-5704
Disadvontaged Email: Dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
Website: https:/ctd.fdot.gov/

FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED
605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 49

Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Tel: (850) 410-5700 Fax (850) 410-5752

TD Helpline: 1-800-983-2435

From: Eron Thompson <EThompson@jtafla.com>

Sent: Monday, May 19, 2025 2:35 PM

To: Zeruto, Dan <Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us>

Cc: Eron Thompson <EThompson@ijtafla.com>

Subject: 05 19 2025 RE: FY26 T&E Grant Application Documents for Nassau/Clay/Duval counties

Good Afternoon Dan,

| trust you are having a great start to the week. Attached are the files that were provided to me.
Please let me know if you need anything else.

Thanks,
Eron

Eron D. Thompson, AICP

Director — Grants Management

Jacksonville Transportation Authority

100 LaVilla Center Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32204

Email: ethompson@jtafla.com
Office: (904) 630-3187

www.jtafla.com

From: Eron Thompson
Sent: Tuesday, May 13, 2025 9:10 AM
To: 'Zeruto, Dan' <Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us>

Cc: Eron Thompson <EThompson@jtafla.com>
Subject: RE: FY26 T&E Grant Application Documents for Nassau/Clay/Duval counties

Good Morning Dan,
Let me get with the team and | will get back to you.

Thanks,
Eron

Eron D. Thompson, AICP

Director — Grants Management

Jacksonville Transportation Authority

100 LaVilla Center Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32204

Email: ethompson@jtafla.com
Office: (904) 630-3187

www.jtafla.com

From: Zeruto, Dan <Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us>

Sent: Tuesday, May 13, 2025 8:21 AM

To: Eron Thompson <EThompson@jtafla.com>

Subject: RE: FY26 T&E Grant Application Documents for Nassau/Clay/Duval counties

EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from a non-JTA email address. Do not click any links or open any attachments unless you trust the sender and
know the content is safe.

Thank you Eron,

The applications appear to have new rates. Do you know when | am going to receive the new 2025-2026 Rate Model Rates for me to review and approve prior to
the execution of the new grant?

Thank you,
Dan

71



mailto:Dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fctd.fdot.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188676894%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2BZKnOMYi8s3ZB6B9VVQASTUUSSL4p32VGbyp%2FuKH8Z8%3D&reserved=0
mailto:EThompson@jtafla.com
mailto:Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:EThompson@jtafla.com
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188693895%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=GTGEhNRChBeJQzqANDLjrjzWb19I6lzZQKa1%2BvrUhUQ%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FJTAFLA&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188715966%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8jOiQWqm%2FyxVqMiJX66BeGGOPAn6wtHTK0ubfTRMgm4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FJTAFLA&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188734207%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2BzM1BK5rqE7jBiiLX416W1ZtU0%2FIY%2FJ3Lyi82dPjNuk%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fjtafla&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188751622%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9WxkQ4sw8z8wqAqrzynlVxkNy8oELF4DI%2Fcxcl45Ztk%3D&reserved=0
mailto:ethompson@jtafla.com
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188771594%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NpoEmSNndLY%2B5b6Q6O98%2FyFXSpvvegcIJMnN09V9bzc%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:EThompson@jtafla.com
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188791295%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=sSPQ73N1z0UJlQSM8FLugKqnNP2G79k3ff13rkkFYSA%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FJTAFLA&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188811434%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=yKcWDW2jVIA8gaL5WbDObP4TG6H6dBLI5eDqh7I3lSs%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FJTAFLA&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188830906%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hbbG%2Fg5kNAfAoqfglu2f9kGOn5fdoDNVfGG5RqVNL5Q%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fjtafla&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188848496%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=rgXaN3IRaHLkkKU8Uvb6EpNoFBkxQH9ThhOSHvsiZdM%3D&reserved=0
mailto:ethompson@jtafla.com
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188864424%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=cVEGKQ2uhStI8bNSMfs3WLklEcXzFRfP8H8UK5ig2UE%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:EThompson@jtafla.com

Daniel Zeruto

Transportation Disadvantaged Specialist
y 4 Project Manager — Area 2

Transportation Tel: (850) 410-5704
Disadvantaged Email: Dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us

Website: https://ctd.fdot.gov/

FLORIDA COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED
605 Suwannee Street, Mail Station 49

Tallahassee, Florida 32399

Tel: (850) 410-5700 Fax (850) 410-5752

TD Helpline: 1-800-983-2435

From: Eron Thompson <EThompson@jtafla.com>
Sent: Monday, May 12, 2025 9:25 PM
To: Zeruto, Dan <Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us>

Cc: Eron Thompson <EThompson@jtafla.com>
Subject: FY26 T&E Grant Application Documents for Nassau/Clay/Duval counties

EXTERNAL SENDER: Use caution with links and attachments.

Good Afternoon Dan,

Attach please find the application documents for Clay, Duval and Nassau Counties.
The required resolutions and the signed agreements will be submitted after approval at the JTA Board meeting later this month.

Thanks,
Eron

Eron D. Thompson, AICP
Director — Grants Management
Jacksonville Transportation Authority
100 LaVilla Center Drive, Jacksonville, FL 32204

Email: ethompson@jtafla.com
Office: (904) 630-3187

www.jtafla.com

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority is an independent agency of the State of Florida governed by a seven-member board of directors. JTA operates
Jacksonville’s public bus service, downtown automated Skyway and paratransit service. The Authority also plans, designs and builds roads and bridges. JTA’s
mission is to improve Northeast Florida’s economy, environment and quality of life by providing safe, reliable, efficient, and sustainable multimodal
transportation services and facilities. For more information, visit https://www.jtafla.com

Connect with JTA!

£

This email message and any attachments are confidential and i ded solely for the use of the recipient named above. If you have received

this email message in error and you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and destroy this email message and any attachments. If
you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disclosing, copying, distributing

or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this email message is strictly prohibited. Views or opinions in this email message are solely those of the sender
and may not represent the views or opinions of the Jacksonville Transportation Authority (JTA).

72


mailto:Dan.zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fctd.fdot.gov%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188881642%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ik61Y2nMEa96DoIT1tw5622nWUBtwev4s9j2ZFGSXLk%3D&reserved=0
mailto:EThompson@jtafla.com
mailto:Dan.Zeruto@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:EThompson@jtafla.com
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188897948%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9sL77bhPYkAjX8OVU82KvasdjDYw%2BNp6ofVc%2BZnXA7c%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FJTAFLA&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188917249%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=X7n8sHHknXe6HI4dOH6Ypp4i9CRkVvx3gqGyzz5Bz3c%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FJTAFLA&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188936060%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=pq1dlS6d0Qh03P0vrb%2BUGXMZINA60GQNuiO8dCdPTEY%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fjtafla&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188955289%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0gimGpshsbV4uQ7jXkYkgcMr0gsrBkgdajf3To8REfI%3D&reserved=0
mailto:ethompson@jtafla.com
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188974357%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=L0%2BGZI3EvIxtfYxlamp%2FKtyGO3tHI1zHf4Myf7QsmHs%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103188994734%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=hp24R0ZUKbZIlOUG4mvF7KUQ7zpJRyKOT4BF5kwihhc%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fpages%2FJacksonville-Transportation-Authority-JTA%2F125657514117458%3Fref%3Dsgm&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189014566%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=1QFweMviu6mYFnOknH9UYZDRzzPo8dKtuokVi8VKRUE%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fjtafla&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189029042%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=XFzsj6Q9jPoNAQGx%2Foht%2BXUBF6uskEI%2FuJ9Ct7OHDR8%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2F%40JTAFLA904&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189047162%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=ZoH52aPkTNRO9YP9drD%2FKdHmMpeiyTkDQ2MCzyKd0I4%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FJTAMakingMoves&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189064457%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=3Mq94J2%2BSouRD1FAS4FHWh7ysirehoxOe8kvRt3TbBo%3D&reserved=0

The JTA accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email. Under Florida’s very broad public records law, email communications to
and from JTA officials are subject to public disclosure.

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority is an independent agency of the State of Florida governed by a seven-member board of directors. JTA operates
Jacksonville’s public bus service, downtown automated Skyway and paratransit service. The Authority also plans, designs and builds roads and bridges. JTA’s
mission is to improve Northeast Florida’s economy, environment and quality of life by providing safe, reliable, efficient, and sustainable multimodal
transportation services and facilities. For more information, visit https://www.jtafla.com

Connect with JTA!

This email message and any attachments are confidential and i ded solely for the use of the recipient named above. If you have received

this email message in error and you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and destroy this email message and any attachments. If
you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disclosing, copying, distributing

or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this email ge is strictly prohibited. Views or opinions in this email message are solely those of the sender
and may not represent the views or opinions of the Jacksonville Transportation Authority (JTA).

The JTA accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email. Under Florida’s very broad public records law, email communications to
and from JTA officials are subject to public disclosure.

The Jacksonville Transportation Authority is an independent agency of the State of Florida governed by a seven-member board of directors. JTA operates
Jacksonville’s public bus service, downtown automated Skyway and paratransit service. The Authority also plans, designs and builds roads and bridges. JTA’s
mission is to improve Northeast Florida’s economy, environment and quality of life by providing safe, reliable, efficient, and sustainable multimodal
transportation services and facilities. For more information, visit https://www.jtafla.com

Connect with JTA!

73


https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189083796%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=5nzeTjM6u4BEyqENMcN3EtbjOXIoM6V2SeoMovOfTec%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fpages%2FJacksonville-Transportation-Authority-JTA%2F125657514117458%3Fref%3Dsgm&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189103067%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QAFeNyaJ3dQUZm0ky2%2BDf8gNqdiuwWZ79DBM36lsc5w%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fjtafla&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189121239%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Vb%2FsdTNMYMGNV1ved7ZOFPzyrzwoaEOw9YnE7Xp5xDA%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2F%40JTAFLA904&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189138656%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xMe66tYooxsflokzI2lh3hSbZLdCAGvE9L4h0ne1Nt8%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FJTAMakingMoves&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189157550%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=MCpS1idcggciAGvakIOa7EYJR7Wg0DhC28TqwG0Hkd8%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.jtafla.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189175748%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PVU0u1B8WqWP4bswA%2BvvbKZoJTNySYPwJux%2BSwpnjcE%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fpages%2FJacksonville-Transportation-Authority-JTA%2F125657514117458%3Fref%3Dsgm&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189196075%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=LoDPPXTMV4fgljB9ciJvLfcFLN2PfqHkTm02CP7XFXk%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fjtafla&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189216665%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=PpSbbqXbHLq1GbL5MO44P5SlT8tzFVR7Rehv4O%2FD010%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2F%40JTAFLA904&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189237792%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=k1Dw9LvtvWTftr%2Fazk30yIRSEV1y80li8XW0AsPeiCk%3D&reserved=0

£

This email message and any attachments are conf ial and i

dod

solely for the use of the recipient named above. If you have received

this email message in error and you are not the intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and destroy this email message and any attachments. If
you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that disclosing, copying, distributing

or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this email message is strictly prohibited. Views or opinions in this email message are solely those of the sender
and may not represent the views or opinions of the Jacksonville Transportation Authority (JTA).

The JTA accepts no liability for any damage caused by any virus transmitted by this email. Under Florida’s very broad public records law, email communications to
and from JTA officials are subject to public disclosure.

74


https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FJTAMakingMoves&data=05%7C02%7Csjones%40nefrc.org%7C2ed0307d656c4ece9fb308dd9a0d0289%7C813ea650883b40118b5a6c671fdd3c61%7C1%7C0%7C638836103189258137%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WPWYAtR7YEzhXBqHJ9ZG6TCyubCSKEZ0NpfN9ePyDhA%3D&reserved=0

Jacksonville Transportation Authority
Connnexion Services

Nassau

Carl Weckenmann

(904) 633-5805

75

Page 1 of 9



Comprehensive Budget Worksheet

1. Complete applicable GREEN cells in columns 2, 3, 4, and 7

Version 1.4

CTC: Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services
County: Nassau

Current Year's
APPROVED | Upcoming Year's
Prior Year's Budget, as PROPOSED
ACTUALS amended Budget
from from from Proposed Confirm whether revenues are collected as a system subsidy VS
July 1st of July 1stof | July 1stof % Change a purchase of service at a unit price.
% Change from
2028 202 2025 from Prior | Current
® @ @ Yearto | Yearto
June 30th of June 30th of June 30th of Current | Upcoming
2024 2025 2026 Year Year Explain Changes in Column 6 That Are > + 10% and Also > + $50,000
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

o NOT include coordinati

Local Non-Govt

Farebox $
Medicaid Co-Pay Received
Donations/ Contributions
In-Kind, Contributed Services
Other

Bus Pass Program Revenue

Local Government

18,664  $

19,504

District School Board
Compl. ADA Services

Non-Spons. Capital Equipment
Rural Capital Equipment

Other TD (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

USDOT & FDOT

County Cash $ 73611 ' $ 76,924
County In-Kind, Contributed Services
City Cash
City In-kind, Contributed Services
Other Cash
Other In-Kind, Contributed Services
Bus Pass Program Revenue
CTD
Non-Spons. Trip Program $ 736,113 | $ 769,238

49 USC 5307

49 USC 5310

49 USC 5311 (Operating)

49 USC 5311(Capital)

Block Grant

Service Development

Commuter Assistance

Other DOT (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

AHCA

Medicaid
Other AHCA (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DCF

Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health

Family Safety & Preservation

Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv.
Other DCF (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DOH

Children Medical Services

County Public Health

Other DOH (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DOE (state)

Carl Perkins

Div of Blind Services

Vocational Rehabilitation

Day Care Programs

Other DOE (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

AWI

WAGES/Workforce Board
Other AWI (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DOEA

Older Americans Act

Community Care for Elderly

Other DOEA (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DCA

Community Services
Other DCA (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Admin. Revenue

2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved (002): Comprehensive Budget

76

4.5%

4.5%

4.5%

)
Local Nni.Govt |

Page 2 of 9



Comprehensive Budget Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC: Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services
County: Nassau

1. Complete applicable GREEN cells in columns 2, 3, 4, and 7

Current Year's
APPROVED | Upcoming Year's
Prior Year's Budget, as PROPOSED
ACTUALS amended Budget
from from from | Proposed Confirm whether revenues are collected as a system subsidy VS
July 1st of July 1stof | July 1stof v % Change a purchase of service at a unit price.
% Change from
2028 202 2025 from Prior | Current
® @ @ Yearto | Yearto
June 30th of June 30th of June 30th of Current | Upcoming
2024 2025 2026 Year Year Explain Changes in Column 6 That Are > + 10% and Also > + $50,000
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Office of Disability Determination
Developmental Services

Other APD (specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

(specify in explanation)
Bus Pass Program Revenue

Other Fed or State

Bus Pass Program Revenue |

Other Revenues

Interest Earnings I
XXXX
XXXX
Bus Pass Program Revenue |

Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit

Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve ‘

Balancing Revenue is Short By = [N IEER I

Total Revenues = $0 $828,388 $865,666 4.5%

EXPENDITURES (CTC/Operators ON include Coordination Contractors!)

Operating Expenditures

Labor

Fringe Benefits

Services

Materials and Supplies $ 166,150 @ $ 173,627 4.5%

Utilities

Casualty and Liability

Taxes

Purchased Transportation:
Purchased Bus Pass Expenses
School Bus Utilization Expenses
Contracted Transportation Services $ 747,085  $ 780,704 4.5%
Other

Miscellaneous

Operating Debt Service - Principal & Interest

Leases and Rentals

Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund

In-Kind, Contributed Services $ -8 - 8 -

Allocated Indirect ‘ $ (84,848) $ (88,665) 4.5%

Capital Expenditures

Equip. Purchases with Grant Funds

Equip. Purchases with Local Revenue

Equip. Purchases with Rate Generated Rev.

Capital Debt Service - Principal & Interest

Total Expenditures = $0 $828,388 $865,666 4.5%

Once completed, proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Budgeted Rate Base"

Page 3 of 9
2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved (002): Comprehensive Budget 77



Budgeted Rate Base Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC: Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services
County: Nassau

1. Complete applicable GREEN cells in column 3; YELLOW and BLUE cells are automatically completed in column 3

2. Complete applicable GOLD cells in column and 5

Upcoming Year's

BUDGETED
Revenues What amount of the
Budgeted Revenue What amount of the
from in col. 2 will be Subsidy Revenue in
generated at the col. 4 will come
July 1st of rate per unit from funds to
2025 determined by this purchase

spreadsheet, OR | Budgeted Rate | qqipment, OR will
used as local match | Subsidy Revenue |  pe used as match
for these type EXcluded from for the purchase of
2026 revenues? the Rate Base equipment?
1 2 3 4 5

to
June 30th of

REVENUES (CTC/Operators ONLY)
Local Non-Govt

10,957 YELLOW cells
- are NEVER Generated by Applying Authorized Rates

Farebox

Medicaid Co-Pay Received
Donations/ Contributions
In-Kind, Contributed Services
Other

Bus Pass Program Revenue

s
&
g
<
P
®
g
5

© »o oo
o
© 0o we

©

Local Government

1

District School Board $ - $ -8 - BLUE cells

Compl. ADA Services $ - $ S - Should be funds generated by rates in this spreadsheet

County Cash $ 76,924 $ 76924 $ [©)

County In-Kind, Contributed Services $ - $ -8 -

City Cash s - s B —

City In-kind, Contributed Services $ - $ -8 -

Other Cash $ - $ -1

Other In-Kind, Contributed Services $ - $ -8 -

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
CTD local match req. GREEN cells

Non-Spons. Trip Program $ 769,238 $ 769,238 $ - s - $ 85471 MAY BE Revenue Generated by Applying

Non-Spons. Capital Equipment $ - $ - -8 - $ - Authorized Rate per Mile/Trip Charges

Rural Capital Equipment $ - $ -8 - 8 - $ -

s 0 I B r— o —

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ R $ _s R Fill in that portion of budgeted revenue in Column 2 that will be
USDOT & FDOT GENE‘RATED thr.oug!| the app!lcatlon of au?horlzed per mile,

per trip, or combination per trip plus per mile rates. Also,

:Z Llﬁg Zg% 2 - : - z - | s | s include the amount of funds that are Earmarked as local match

49 USG 5311 (Operating) s . ,7 s a for Transportation Services and NOT Capital Equipment

49 USC 5311(Capital) $ - $ s s B} s } purchases.

Block Grant $ - $ -8 -

Service Development $ R $ - s R If the Farebox Revenues are used as a source of Local Match

Commuter Assistance $ - $ -8 - Dollars, then identify the appropriate amount of Farebox

Other DOT $ - $ - Revenue that represents the portion of Local Match required

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 - on any state or federal grants. This does not mean that
AHCA Farebox is the only source for Local Match.

Medicaid $ - $ -8 -

Other AHCA $ R I:l $ R Please review all Grant Applications and Agreements

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ K - containing State and/or Federal funds for the proper Match
DCF Requirement levels and allowed sources.

Alcoh, Drug & Mental Health - $ - -

Family Safety & Preservation - $ - -

Comm. Care Dis./Aging & Adult Serv. $

©» »» o n

Other DCF - 1 - GOLD cells
Bus Pass Program Revenue - $ - -

DOH Fill in that portion of Rate idy in
Children Medical Services - $ - - Column 4 that will come from Funds Earmarked by the Funding
County Public Health - $ - - Source for F ing Capital i Also include the

Other DOH
Bus Pass Program Revenue

DOE (state)

portion of Local Funds earmarked as Match related to the
Purchase of Capital Equipment if a match amount is required
by the Funding Source.

“

@ v n
» » 0o

Bus Pass Program Revenue

Carl Perkins $ - $ -8 -

Div of Blind Services $ - $ -8 -

Vocational Rehabilitation $ - $ -8 -

Day Care Programs $ - $ -8 -

s : —

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
AWI

WAGES/Workforce Board $ - $ -8 -

A s : — :

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
DOEA

Older Americans Act $ - $ -8 -

Community Care for Elderly $ - $ -8 -

s - — :

Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8 -
DCA

Community Services $ - $ -8 -

s - — :

Page 4 of 9
2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved (002): Budgeted Rate Base 78



Budgeted Rate Base Worksheet Version 1.4 CTC: Jacksonville Transportation Authority Connnexion Services
County: Nassau

1. Complete applicable GREEN cells in column 3; YELLOW and BLUE cells are automatically completed in column 3

2. Complete applicable GOLD cells in column and 5

Upcoming Year's

BUDGETED
Revenues What amount of the
Budgeted Revenue What amount of the
from in col. 2 will be Subsidy Revenue in
generated at the col. 4 will come
July 1st of rate per unit from funds to
2025 determined by this purchase

spreadsheet, OR | Budgeted Rate | oqiipment, OR will

' )
June 300m of used as local match | Subsidy Revenue | pe ysed as match

for these type EXcluded from for the purchase of
2026 revenues? the Rate Base equipment?
1 2 3 4 5

APD

Office of Disability Determination
Developmental Services

Omer D —
Bus Pass Program Revenue
DJJ

: o I — o —
Bus Pass Program Revenue s - $ -

Other Fed or State

© oo
» oo

XXX $ - $
XXX $ - $
XXX $ - $
Bus Pass Program Revenue $ - $ -8

Other Revenues

L]
JE—

Interest Earnings $ - $ -8
XXX $ - $
X000 $ - $

$ $

Bus Pass Program Revenue
Balancing Revenue to Prevent Deficit

Actual or Planned Use of Cash Reserve | $ - $ -Is -

Total Revenues = _§$ 865,666 $ 854,709 § 10,957 § -
EXPENDITURES (CTC/Operators ONLY) $ 10,957
Operating Expenditures Amount of
Labor $ - Budgeted
Fringe Benefits $ - Operating Rate
Services $ - Subsidy Revenue
Materials and Supplies $ 173,627
Utilities $ -
Casualty and Liability $ -
Taxes $ -
Purchased Transportation:
Purchased Bus Pass Expenses $ -
School Bus Utilization Expenses $ -
Contracted Transportation Services $ 780,704
Other $ -
Miscellaneous $ -
Operating Debt Service - Principal & Interest | $ -
Leases and Rentals $ -
Contrib. to Capital Equip. Replacement Fund | $ -
In-Kind, Contributed Services $ -
Allocated Indirect $ (88,665)
1Rate Base Adjustment Cell
Capital Expenditures
Equip. Purchases with Grant Funds $ - If necessary and justified, this cell is where you
Equip. Purchases with Local Revenue $ - could optionally adjust proposed service rates
Equip. Purchases with Rate Generated Rev. | § - up or down to adjust for program revenue (or
Capital Debt Service - Principal & Interest $ - unapproved profit), or losses from the Actual
period shown at the bottom of the
$ - Comprehensive Budget Sheet. This is not the
— only acceptable location or method of
Total Expenditures = § 865,666 $ reconciling for excess gains or losses. If
minus EXCLUDED Subsidy Revenue = § 10,957 allowed by the respective fun_ding sources,
Budgeted Total Expenditures INCLUDED in excess gains may also be adjusted by providing
Rate Base =_§ 854,710 system I e or by the p of
= additional trips in a period following the Actual
Rate Base Adjustment” = period. If such an adjustment has been made,
Adjusted Expenditures Included in Rate provide in the resp
Base= § 854,710 area of the Comprehensive Budget tab.
" The Difference between Expenses and Revenues for Fiscal Year: 2023 - 2024

Once Completed, Proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Program-wide Rates”

Page 5 of 9
2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved (002): Budgeted Rate Base 79



Worksheet for Program-wide Rates CTC:  Jacksonville Trans Version 1.4
County: Nassau

1. Complete Total Projected Passenger Miles and ONE-WAY Passenger Trips (GREEN cells) below

Do NOT include trips or miles related to Coordination Contractors!
Do NOT include School Board trips or miles UNLESS

INCLUDE all ONE-WAY passenger trips and passenger miles related to services you purchased from your transportation operators!
Do NOT include trips or miles for services provided to the general public/private pay UNLESS..

Do NOT include escort activity as passenger trips or passenger miles unless charged the full rate for service!

Do NOT include fixed route bus program trips or passenger miles!

PROGRAM-WIDE RATES

Total Projected Passenger Miles = 166,236 Fiscal Year
Rate Per Passenger Mile = $ 5.14 2025 - 2026

Total Projected Passenger Trips = 23,505

Rate Per Passenger Trip= $ 36.36 Avg. Passenger Trip Length = 7.1 Miles

Rates If No Revenue Funds Were Identified As Subsidy
Funds

Rate Per Passenger Mile = $ 5.21

Rate Per Passenger Trip= $ 36.83

Once Completed, Proceed to the Worksheet entitled "Multiple Service Rates"

Vehicle Miles
The miles that a vehicle is scheduled to or actually travels from the time it pulls out from its garage to go into revenue service to the time it pulls in from revenue service.

Vehicle Revenue Miles (VRM)
The miles that vehicles are scheduled to or actually travel while in revenue service. Vehicle revenue miles exclude:

Deadhead

Operator training, and

Vehicle maintenance testing, as well as
School bus and charter services.

Passenger Miles (PM)
The cumulative sum of the distances ridden by each passenger.

Page 6 of 9
2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved (002): Program-wide Rates 80



Combination Trip and Mile Rate

Page 7 of 9
2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved (002): Multiple Service Rates




Worksheet for Multiple Service Rates CTC:  Jacksonville Tra Version 1.4

1. Answer the questions by completing the GREEN cells starting in Section | for all services County: Nassau

2. Follow the DARK RED prompts directing you to skip or go to certain questions and sections based on previous answers

SECTION Ill: Escort Service

1. Do you want to charge all escorts a fee? Q Yes
® No
Skip #2 -4 and
Section IV and
Go to Section V
2. If you answered Yes to #1, do you want to charge the fee per passenger trip OR ............. ® Pass. Trip Leave Blank
per passenger mile?......................... Q Pass. Mile
3. If you answered Yes to # 1 and completed # 2, for how many of the projected
Passenger Trips / Passenger Miles will a passenger be accompanied by an escort? ‘ Leave Blank
4. How much will you charge each escort?. ‘ Leave Blank
SECTION IV: Group Service Loading Lt
1. If the message "You Must Complete This Section" appears to the right, what is the projected total Section IV
number of Group Service Passenger Miles? (otherwise leave blank). - \
Loading Rate
.......... And what is the projected total number of Group Vehicle Revenue Miles? [ 0.00 to 1.00

SECTION V: Rate Calculations for Mulitple Services:
1. Input Projected Passenger Miles and Passenger Trips for each Service in the GREEN cells and the Rates for each Service will be calculated automatically
* Miles and Trips you input must sum to the total for all Services entered on the "Program-wide Rates" Worksheet, MINUS miles
and trips for contracted services IF the rates were calculated in the Section Il above
* Be sure to leave the service BLANK if you answered NO in Section | or YES to question #2 in Section Il

RATES FOR FY: 2025 - 2026

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Leave Blank Leave Blank
Projected Passenger Miles (excluding totally contracted services addressed in Section Il) = 166,236 S ‘ 141,001 + ‘ 25,235 + ‘ + 0
Rate per Passenger Mile = $4.64 $7.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
per passenger per group
Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Leave Blank Leave Blank
Projt F Trips ing totally contracted services addressed in Section Il) = 23,505 = ‘ 20,109 + ‘ 3,396 + ‘ i
Rate per Passenger Trip = $32.96 $56.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
per passenger per group
2 If you answered # 1 above and want a COMBINED Rate per Trip PLUS a per Mile add-on for 1 or more services,... Combination Trip and Mile Rate
Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Leave Blank Leave Blank
...INPUT the Desired Rate per Trip (but must be less than per trip rate above) = \ \ \ $0.00
Rate per Passenger Mile for Balance = $4.64 $7.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
per passenger per group

Rates If No Revenue Funds Were Identified As Subsidy Funds

Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Rate per Passenger Mile = $4.70 $8.05 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
per passenger per group
Ambul Wheel Chair Stretcher Group
Rate per Passenger Trip = $33.38 $57.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
perpassenger  per group

82

Page 8 of 9
2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved (002): Multiple Service Rates



Worksheet for Multiple Service Rates cre:

1. Answer the questions by completing the GREEN cells starting in Section | for all services County:  Nassau

Jacksonville Tra Version 1.4

2. Follow the DARK RED prompts directing you to skip or go to certain questions and sections based on previous answers

83

Page 9 of 9
2025-2026 Nassau Rate Model Approved (002): Multiple Service Rates



Nassau County Transportation Disadvantage Operational Report
October 2024 - September 2025

Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25
Trips 2017 1746 1709 1871 1902 1941 2100 1965 1761 1918 1831
Passengers 2056 1790 1740 1920 1974 2011 2201 2030 1832 2009 1945
Service Days 22 20 23 23 20 21 22 22 21 23 21
On-time Performance (OTP) 81% 88% 94% 86% 90% 95% 95% 92% 89% 91% 93%
OTP (Appointment) 60% 67% 81% 86% 90% 97% 97% 96% 93% 96% 96%
OTP (Medical) 73% 86% 91% 93% 92% 97% 97% 96% 87% 88% 86%
Passenger Per Hour 1.98 1.86 1.69 1.87 1.97 1.61 1.92 1.83 1.91 1.96 1.65
Average Daily Vehicle Use 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 7 6 6
Averages Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25
Trips 1824 1905 1942 1875
Passengers 1862 1968 2021 1977
Service Days 22 21 22 22
On-time Performance (OTP) 88% 90% 92% 92%
OTP (Appointment) 69% 91% 95% 96%
OTP (Medical) 83% 94% 93% 87%
Passenger Per Hour 1.84 1.82 1.89 1.81
Average Daily Vehicle Use 6 6 6 6

84




	Nassau County
	Transportation Disadvantaged
	Local Coordinating Board (LCB) Quarterly Meeting
	MEETING AGENDA
	3a.2025-05-15_NassauLCB_MeetingMinutes_DRAFT.pdf
	Nassau County Transportation Disadvantaged
	Local Coordinating Board Quarterly Meeting
	Thursday, May 15, 2025
	Meeting Minutes

	4.TD_Membershi_ Roster_25-26.pdf
	Nassau

	5b.Nassau_2024-2029_TDSP_APPROVED.pdf
	SECTION 1: DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	Introduction of the Service Plan
	Background of the Transportation Disadvantaged Program
	Community Transportation Coordinator Designation Date and History
	Organizational Chart
	Consistency Review of Other Plans
	Public Participation

	Service Area Profile/Demographics
	Land Use
	Population/Composition
	Employment
	Major Trip Generators/Attractors
	Inventory of Available Transportation Services


	SECTION 2: SERVICE ANALYSIS
	Forecasts of Transportation Disadvantaged Population
	Needs Assessment
	Barriers to Coordination (From Prior Plan)
	Goals, Objectives, Strategies and Implementation Plan

	SECTION 3 – SERVICE PLAN
	Operations
	Operations
	Types, Hours, and Days of Service
	Phone Number and Office Hours:
	Accessing Services
	Eligibility Process

	Local Service Standards
	Trip Prioritization
	Trip Scheduling Policies
	Other Local Service Policies

	Commission Service Standards
	Driver Safety Policies
	Rider Policies
	Vehicle Policies
	Service Policies
	Additional Information

	ADA Policies
	Accommodating Mobility Aids / Life Support Systems
	Standees on Lift
	Service Animals
	Transfer
	Equipment Operation (Lift and Securement Usage)
	Passenger Sensitivity
	Clients’ Requirements for Receiving Services

	Client Code of Conduct and Denial of Service
	Policy Statement
	Definitions of Prohibited Conduct
	Disciplinary Procedures
	Code of Conduct for Nassau TRANSIT

	Appeals Procedure for Violations of Code of Conduct
	Local Grievance Procedures/Process
	Definition of a Complaint
	Filing a Complaint
	Recording of Complaints
	Appeal to the Grievance Subcommittee
	Responsibility of Coordinating Board to Grievances
	Definition of a Grievance
	Grievance Procedures
	Filing a Grievance
	Grievance Committee Hearing Procedures
	Appeal to the Grievance Subcommittee

	Code of Conduct
	Purpose and scope
	Rules of Transit
	Customer Courtesy
	Penalties
	Florida Statutes
	Publication


	SECTION 4: QUALITY ASSURANCE
	CTC Evaluation Process


	6c.Nassau_Quarterly_Report.pdf
	Sheet1




